
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Thursday 11 July 2013 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Room 6, 

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Tony Ferrari  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Paul Osborn 
 

Sue Anderson 
Graham Henson 
 

Mano Dharmarajah 
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Chris Mote 
2. Amir Moshenson 
 

1. Jerry Miles 
2. Ann Gate 
 

1. Husain Akhtar 
 

 
 

Contact:  Manize Talukdar, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1323    E-mail:  manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 11 July 2013 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN    
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the 2013/14 Municipal Year. 

 
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 18) 
 
 That the minutes of the Special meeting held on 4 March 2013 and of the meeting 

held on 23 April 2013 be taken as read and signed as correct records. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 
8. CHAIR'S REPORT   (Pages 19 - 42) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning. 

 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 11 July 2013 

 
9. REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2012-13   (Pages 43 - 60) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
10. PROGRESS REPORT ON SCRUTINY REVIEW OF PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR 

HOUSING IN HARROW   (Pages 61 - 76) 
 
  Report of the Divisional of Director Housing Services. 

 
11. CHILDREN AND FAMILIES PERFORMANCE   (Pages 77 - 98) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Families. 

 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������
������� �������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�



	������

���	��������


�
��	����



������
�

�

�
���	�
����

�
�
��������	� �� ���	

����������	��� �	�
� � �
�
����


��	�
�

�� !�	��������
�
�� "�������
���������
	�	���
�

#� $������
�� �
�� %�� ����������&�'�
�

�������������	�
��
����


����
�

�� �
�(
�)���	�
�

�
	��������

�� *�	��� ��������+�� �	��
&�'����*�	��� �
���,�������-� ��.�������� �
#� *�	��� ��+���,
� ���
�
.���
�
�

����� ��������������������������������
�
��� !"�#	� � !�� 	���� ���� ����	��	
�� ��� ��
 �����
	,� ��� ���� �����/
	,� �����
�++�
	����-� ��.��������0��
�
1��
	������������
�

-� ��.���������
�

���	

������		�)���� ���	

�����%�� ����������
�

��$�� #��
�����
���
%������������
�
��� !"�#	��!��	������������������/
	,�
	���� ��/� ���
�����0�
�

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 18

1



�

������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������
�������

�,�	���2������3����,��  �-�+���0�2�+����	�
	,�����1.��.
�/��	���
���
	��
-�+����4-����
	
	,�5�����6	,�,���	�7�
���	

�����"�������
���������
	�	����
��������	�	�+�
�	
���� 
	���� �� 
	� �����
�
 � 
 ����/� ������
�������8��
��6	��8
,���
����9� �8��/���������
	� 
	�����
�����/�
� �������������/� �
�	 
�������	��.������+�	9�
�

��� !"�#��&������
�

��'�� (�
)����� ��*
��	� ��*
�������)� ����  ������+� ���� ��������� �
��������
��*
���,����%����)�-
������)�)�����,���
�
!��� ���
�� /��
����� ��� �� +�� �	�� ��� ���� �+�

��� ����
	,� ��� ���� ����
����
����:�/�

��/� ������������������ �5������	�������	
�����	���9������

	.
����;��������������������7 �8������������	
������,
.������
������<�������
�����
 ������	��+��,����������.�	� ����������	���9�!������
���� ��/��
�����
��������+�� �	���
.� ���������������/
	,�,���+ 0�
�
�9� 8����/�5���������
���	��&85�'=�
�
�9� ������ ������
����=��
�
�9� >�?�&��+�����	������
	�  ��	��/��<��@+��
�	
�� 
����'=�
�
�9� A��<���������
�
����	�&�A�'=�
�
B9� ���@�)
�� �5���������=�
�
?9� C��A
�
� �&������ 
�����
���'=�
�
D9� C��
�	����
�
(�	 �
+��
�����,������� �&C��'=�
�
E9� F �� ������������� ���	���9�
�
�����/
	,���
 :�������������
�������
�
.�������+��������������+������*
��
����
��� ��
����	� �	�� ���
�
� � /�

��  ��� ���� +��,��  � 
	� ��<
	,� ���/���� ����
�����
����	���
�	 ���
 
	,� ����� ���� 4-����
	
	,�5�����6	,�,���	�7� &-56'�
��.
�/:�/�

���������	�
�	 
�������������1.��.
�/��	���
���
	������
�����
�	������������9��1��

�� ��
,��
,��������������/
	,����� ����������+���0�
�

•� ���
	�������	���������-56���+�����	����������,������� +�	 
�
�
������
�������+������*
��
���� ������
����	��	�����
�
� :� 
	� 
�	 �����
�	�/
���
�����������
��8������������
����	:��
���� ��	�����
�
� ������.���+��	��

�+����	�������� +�	 �����������+���:�/�
� ��/��<
	,�
	�+���	�� �
+�/
���
����.�	�� ��<������� =�

�

•� ���������
����	���
�	 ��������������
���
	��-�.
�/�)���+�/���� ���
/
��
	� ���� /
���� 
�	��@�� ��� ���� ���	

�7 � +�
��
�
� � �	�� ����
)�.��	��	�7 �4�� 
�
.������5����7��,�	��=�

�

•� ������
����	���
�	 ������ 
	������������/
	,����������������� 0�,�������
�	,�,���	��/
��� ����85���	�����	,� �� 
��	� ����8����/:���	���
	,�

2



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������
������� �������

�	�� +� 
�
.�� �
�
.
�
� � �	�� ��+�����
�
��� �	�� .���	����
	,�  
���� 9��
!��� ��
����	7 � ���.

� � 5����� *�.���+��	�� !���� /���� /��<
	,� ���
�	��	
����� ������ ��	��������������
� �����D�������+��G�
� �
����	����
�	���/���
	�8����/�
�����������	��
	���������.�	�����<���=��

�

•� 
��/�����	������+�  
�������
�+����	������������
����	���
�	 ���
 
	,�
����� ���� -�.
�/� 
	� ���� 
����	�� �
�	��

� 
�
����9� � 8�/�.��:� ����
-�.
�/� ���� ���+��� ��� +��.
��� �� �����/��<� ���� ������� ��.���+��	�:�
/�

���������	

��/� �
���
�������9�

�
!������
�� 
	.
���� ��+�� �	���
.� � �����85�� ��� +��.
����	��+����� ��,���
	,�
����8����/�5���������
��/�

��������<�	�+��
��
	�C�.����������:�/�����?�
��� ���� ��� -�
����	���
�	 � ���� ���	� �������� �@+������ �	�� �������9��
-�+�� �	���
.�������� ��������85����������������/
	,�+�
	� 0�
�

•� ����5���������
���������	�����	��������.����������	,�+��+����	��
����� ����/	�������
�����	���
,�� 
���� :�
����,� :� +�

��� 
���� :�����
5�����1���	�
	,����.

�:��A� :�����C��:�5�����6�+�����	���
����:�
����!�
�
�	����.

��� �/����� � ����.���	����� �
����+���	�� =�

�

•� �
�
�	�+��	 :� �

����
�
�	�+��G�
����� ��	��+
����/��< ��+ ��������	�
�
,��
,����� ���� +�
��
�
 ��
�	9� !��� ������ �
�
�	� �,�	���  ������ ���
 �++�������	�� ��<�	� ���/����� � ��� ��+��G�
� �/�������	��
�� 	��� G� ��
���	,�+��+�����������
����	
���� ���/����9��5��	,�+��+���/����<��	�
��� ��
���� 
	.��.��� 
	�  �

��� �
�
�	� +��G�
� :� ��� ,�
	� �@+��
�	
��
�����,��.���	����
	,��	�� ������
���/	����� ����������	
�=�

�

•� �������8����/7 ���
����	7 ���	��� � ������ ����
	��+�	��	�� �������	,�
+��+���� 
	,���� �� ����������	
����,����	������/������
�	��
��������
���� +��		
	,� �	�� ��		
	,� ��� ��� �� 
�	��� :�/�

�� /����� ,
.�� ����� ��
 �	 �� ��� �/	�� �
+9� � ������ � ��� 85�� �
�� 	��� ��.�� ���� �
��� ���
�� ���
� � ��� ��<�� ���� ������	� ��
 ��	��/���� ���<
	,� ��� �������	

�� ���
+��.
��� ���
�
�	��� �� ���
� � ���� ��
 � ��� ��� �
�
�.��9� !��� ��
�	��
�@+�	 
�	����������+��.
 
�	��������;���� ��	����	����/� �/��
����=�

�

•� �����+,������85��/�� 
���������
�
.�����,������ +�	 ����������	,�
+��+�������������/� �����������
����������	�����
�9��85�����G�
��)���+�
���� 
������� �	� �
�
�	� +��	� �	�� /� � /��<
	,� 
�� ���� /
��� /�� 
���
��.���+�� 9� ��

��� ���
�:� ��
	��� !/
����� �	�� ��
����<:� ���� ��������
�
�
.�� �	�� ��

�
���
	,� ���� 
�+����	���
�	� �	�� ���
.���� ��� ���� ������
��
����	���
�	 9� � !��� ���	

��  ������ � ��  �

��� ���
�� �	�� ����

	���	��� ��� �
  ��
	���� 
	������
�	� �	�� ��� �������� �	,�,��/
��� ���	,�
+��+��=�

�

•� 85�� ��������� 
	.
���� ��� ��<��+���� 
	�
���
  
�	
	,�+��
�  � 
	�������
���/
��	�+���


+��
�	� ��� ���	,� +��+��� �	���	����� ����� ��� 
	����	
��
+��

�� �	�� ��

 
�	���<
	,� ��� ��<
	,� 
�� ����� ��������
�	���� �	��
��H�� ���� �� ����
	,� /
��� ���

�� � ����� ���� ��
����	� �	�� ���
�
� �
*
��
�����������
 
�  ���
 ��	������+�  
�
�
��������
�
.
	,����
	
	,�
	���
 �
����=�

�

3



�

������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������
�������

•� 2�� /� � 
�+����	�� ���� �������	

�� ��� ���
�� ���� ��� ���	,� +��+��� 
	� ����
�����,�� ������� ���	� �@+�
�� ���	,� +��+��� ��� 
�	��
�� ����� �	�� ����
���	

��  ������ 
������ �� ������ �� ��� 
�	��
� � ��� �	����� ����� ���
�
�
�.����
 =��

�

•� 
��/� �
�+����	�����������
��	

��
	.� ��
	����	,�+��+���
	����������,��
�����,�� 
���� ��	��
	
�
��
.� � +�

�

������
�����������9��-� ���
��
���� ��/	������������/����
�	 
����������	,������ �

����	���
�	��

�
��	��
� � ���  �
�� �
�
.
�
� � �
���� ��� ���	,� +��+��:� ���� �@��+��:� ��
����
�
�	� 
	� ������ 
�
��� �	�� ������� �	,�,���	�� 
	� ���
��
�	� �	��
����	
	,=�

�

•� ���
��� � /��<��� ��� ���� ,��  ���� � ��.��� /
��� +�+
� � �	�� ����:� �������
���	���������
��� :� ����������	
����,������	��
	����+�+
� ����85��
�	�� ����	�� ����� 9��
������  ����
� �/������� �������,����/��� ���
�	,�,��/
������	,�+��+��9�

�
�	� 85�� ��+�� �	���
.��  ������ ����� �� ������ .�� 
�	� ��� ���� C�
,����������
����+
�	 � &C�'�  
����� /����� ��H�
��� �������� 
�	 �����
�	� ���	,� ���	,�
+��+��9� � 5��	,� +��+��� <	�/� ���
�� 	�
,��������� � /���� �	�� /���� ��,�����
� �� ���� ��
������	
�
� � �
��� �+��< ��	�� �
����
� ��	�� ������/� �+���	�
���
���� �� ,���+� ��� ���	,� +��+��� 
	� �� 	�
,���������� ��� �
�� � � C� � 
	� ��
<�
	,�

  �� � �
��� � �
����:���� 
	���H����� ������ �
,��
	,���
:����� 
�� ���������	�����
����������/����,�	�����������
��	�������+����
�
��9����
�
!��������/
	,�
����	� �/���������������������	,�+��+���+�� �	�0�
�

•� �.�������8����/����	,�+��+����	�����C���+��,������������<�	�+����

	�+
���� �

����
�
�	� 
���� ��	�
��+���
�	�������
��)��6 ����
	,�����
 ������ ��	�� � /�

�� ���� ���	� �	� �@
����	�� �++����	
��� ��� �����
+��+��������/�����	���	��������
����
	���
�	��
��/
��9��!��������������
���� ����� �� +� 
�
.�� 
�	��
���
�	� ��� ���� 
����	
��� �	��  +�	�� ����
 ������ ��	�� � 
	� �� 
�	 ���
�
.�� /��� �	�� ��+��� ��������  �
��
�++����	
�
� �/�����
�	�
	����������.�
�������������	,�+��+��=�

�

•� ���	,� +��+���  ������ ��� ��������� 
	
��� ��� �++����	
�
� � ��� ��
����
����� 
	.��.���/
��� �������	

�9�85���
���� ��� ��+�� �	�� ����.
�/ ����
���	,� +��+��� ��� �������	

�� �	�� ��+��� ��� ��
��� �	� �
	< � �	�� ��������
��.���+���
 ������
�	 �
+=���

�

•� 85�� 
	��	���� ��� ,�� 
	���  
���� � ��� �	,�,�� /
��� ���	,� +��+��:�
��/�.��:� 
�� /� � �H������ 
�+����	�� ���� ����� ���	

���� � �	�� ���	

��
���

�� ����������� ���=�

�

•�  �

������
���
 
�  
�	������ �/������,����/������������
  ��
	��
	,�

	������
�	���:��	��,���
	,�����.
�/ :�������	,�+��+��9�

�
�����/
	,� H�� �
�	 � �	�� 
����	� � ����� ������ ��+�� �	���
.� :� �	� ���

���
��.
 �������� �������	

��/� ���������+��.
����� ���
� � 
	����������������

���
�
��� �	�� �
�
���� �
	�	

���  �++���� 
	� ���+
	,� ��� �������� ��.���+� ���� 85��
/�� 
��9� � ��	� � ���� ���	� ����
����� ��� ���� ���	

�� ���� ����I��� ��� ���
.���

4



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
������������
������� ���B���

 ���� ��� ���� ������ ��
����	���
�	 9� 5����� +���


+��
�	�/����� ���/
��	���
�����,�� ���,
	,� �
	< � /
���  
����� 
��	

� :�  �

��� �
�
�	� +��G�
� � ��
9� � !���

�+����	
�� ��� �	,�,
	,� /
��� ���	,� +��+��� /��� ���� �����  
����� /� � �� ��
��+�� 
 ��9�
�
!��� �������
�� 8������ ���� ��
����	:� �
���� � �	�� ���
�
� �  ������ �����  ��� �����

	 +
�������������.����������	��	
���	���	,�,���	����������� ����85���	��
������,���+ ��	������������0�
�

•� �������	

��/� �
���
�������������������	,�,���	���,�	��=�
�

��������
  
�	
	,���	�� � ��������� ���	
�����������+������������
�	�����
	,���	
�����	��JD�<�/���������.�
��������������+�
������9��!�
 �
��	����
	���
��+�
 ������
� �������

����
��=�

�

•� 
	������
�	� �����
	,� ��� ���� ��	�
	,:� ��/� 
�� /����� ���  +�	�� �	��
�
�� 
��� � /����� ��� 
����	

����� ��� ���� ����.�	�� +���
� � �.��� ����

��
	,�/��< 9�

�
������������������������
����� �����������������/������	��������� ���
� �
�.�
������ �	�
	��/�

�� ����85�� �	�� ������ ������ ,���+ � 
����� ��	��
�� ����9��
8��������������������	

���/	�����	���������+��+���
� �����	�����������,��
�	���
,��������������+��.
�������
	,����� ���������
���,�����85���	��������
������,���+ 9�
�
��� !"�#	��!�����
�
&�'� ���� ��

 
�	� ��� ���
	��� �	� ��� $���� ����� ��� ����,���� ������
��� ��� ����

���+������ *
��
���:� 
	� 
�	 �����
�	� /
��� ���� �������
�� 8������ ����
��
����	:��
���� ��	�����
�
� ����	����:��	������+��,����������
�
�	�
 �������
	�����-�+�����	���++�	�

� �����	��� ��=�

�
&�'� ������������
�����/�����
�	�
	�������
�
.�����	��������	,�+��+������

+���


+���� 
	� ���� /��<� ��� ����1.��.
�/� �	�� �
���
	�� ����
����� �	��
�	
����,�����������	

��,���+ �����
�� 
�
�����9�

�
&C���0��!�������
	,:���.
	,�
����	
������?9���+�:�
�� ������D9���+�'9�
�
�
�
�
�
&�
,	��'��1FC�2AA1-��F6��C*6-�1C�
���
��

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� �������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�



	������

���	��������




������
�

�

��
�����
����

�
�
��������	� �� ���	

����������	�����	�
� � �
�
����


��	�
�

��  �	��������
�
�� �		�!�����
�

�� "��
	��#$��
��%�&�
�� '�����(�
���������
	�	��
�

�������������	�
��
����


����
�

�� ����$�	�)�
*$��
�

(
	������+�

�� ,�	�����(�����������	��
%�&����,�	�����
���*�������-����.��(�������
�
�

����� ��������������������������������
�
�� !"#�$	� �  �� 	���� �$�� ����	��	
�� ��� �$
������
	*� ��� �$�� �����/
	*� �����
����
	����-����.��(�����0��
�
1��
	����(�������
�

-����.��(������
�

���	

�����2�����(
���� ���	

�����"��
	��#$��
��
�

����� $��
�����
���
%������������
�
�� !"#�$	�� ��	�����$����$�������/
	*�
	��������/������
�����0�
�
�*�	���3������4���	���
����	�����
�����	����.
	*��
���	

����� ���� �	�����	� ��
������ �� 	�	���
�	
���� 
	������� 
	� �$��� $��� ��	�
/���
	���
�
��������������

���
���5���$��/���������
	� 
	��$�������/$
���� �$��
�������/���
�	�
�������	��.��������	5�
�

7



�

���+��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

���	

����� '�����(�
���������
	�	� ��
������ �� 	�	���
�	
���� 
	������� 
	� �$����
$�� $��� ���	� �������
�� 6������ ���� ������� �	�� 6���
	*� ��� �$�� �
��� �$��

�	������
�	�/
�$������� ��

��� 
�������.

��������/���
���
������5� �6��/�����
����
	�
	��$�������/$
�����$���������/���
�	�
�������	��.��������	5�
�
���	

����� ����$�	�)�
*$�� ��
������ �� 	�	���
�	
���� 
	������� 
	� �$��� $�� $���
���	��������� �$��������$���$���	�*��
������$��6
*$/����
�	���
�5� �6��/�����
����
	�
	��$�������/$
�����$���������/���
�	�
�������	��.��������	5�
�

����� ����������
�
�� !"#�$	� $��� �$���
	����� ��� �$������
	*� $���� �	���� 2�	����� ��������
��7�	����������	���
*	��������
����
����
���5�
�
�� (������ ������� �$��� 
�� $��� ���	� �+8� ����� �
	
�� $
�� 
	
�
��� ��9����� ����

	������
�	� �����
	*� ��� �$�� ���� ������5� � 6�� ������ �$��� �$
�� ������ �
�� 	���
�����
���$�����	�����	�����	�����	
����9�
��������$���
���
	����	
�
�	�����$��
�����
�� ���� ��� (������5� � 6�� ��9������� �$��� �	� �:���	��
�	� ��*���
	*� �$��
������ 
	� ���.
�
	*� �$
�� 
	������
�	� ��� ���.
���� ��� (������� ��� ����.�	��
���

���5�
�

��&�� '��
���(�����
���)�'�����
�����
�
�� !"#�$	�� ��	�����$���	������

�9����
�	��/�������;�������
�
�	����
�
.��5�
�

��*�� ��%��������%�
���
����
�����!������
��������+'���
����
�
�� !"#�$	�� ��	�����$���	��������	
���/������
�
.��5�
�

�� !"#�$��,�� ���
�

��-�� �����.����/
�����
�
 $����������
�������
�
.������������/$

$���������
������
�	�
����������$��
�$�
�� �
	
�� �$�� ����� ����
	*� ��� �$�� ��������	
�� �	�� �
	�	
�� �
���
	��
��������
����5�
�
�� !"#�$	�� $����$������������	����5�
�

��0�� ��������������/���
��
���
���1�2�(�������&�2�������&��$���������������
�
 $����������
�������
�
.����������������$������������,
��
�������-�����
��;�
/$

$�$������	����.
������
�	�
������������
	����	��8��������������5��� $��
������� ���� ���� �$�� ���	

�<�� ��.�	��� �	�� 
��
���� ��	
���
	*� ���
�
�	� ����
=������������������,�
����������5�
�
�	� ���

��� ������� �$��� ��
$� ��� �$�� ����� 
	� �$�� =������� �� ������� $��� ���	�
���������������$��=�������8���������	��$
*$�
*$�����$�������/
	*�����������$��
������0�
�

8



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� ���>���

•� �$�� ���
�
�	� /
�$
	� �$�� -�����
��� ,
��
������� $��� �
*	
�

�	����

����.��� �
	
�� �$�� ���.
���� 9������;� ������
	*� 
	� �� 	��� ��.��������
.��
�	
�5� �  $
�� 
����.���	�� $��� ���	���
	��� ���� ��� �� ����
�
�	� 
	�
?:���	��� ���
�� ����;� �	������	��� �	� ��	�
�	� �
��
�
�
��;� �������� ���
�:
���� 
���
���	��� �	��:��	�
����� ���.

�� 
���
��� �	� �$�����
��� 3 �

�	���
���	��.�
�	
����	�*���	���
������$��,
��
������@��

���

•� �$�� ?	.
��	��	�� �	�� ?	�����
��� ,
��
������� /��� ����
���
	*� ��
�
*	
�

�	�� ��.�������� .��
�	
�5� �  $���� /��� �	� 
	
������ 
	� ����� �����

����.������7
	*��	���
���	�@�

�

•� �$����/����	���.�����.��
�	
�����A�����	����B+��7�
	��$���$
����	��	��
���
�
���,
��
������5�� $
��/���������
	�������	��
���� ������;������
���/$

$�$��������9��	�������	���
�.����@�

�

•� �$����/����	� 
����.���	�� 
	� 
	.�����	�� 
	
���� 
	����
���� �
	�	

	*;�
$�/�.��;� ����� ��
���*�� /��� �	�


������ 
	� �$�� �����/
	*� ����� /$

$�
���	������
�����.�	��@�

�

•� �$���� $��� ���	� �� �
*	
�

�	�� 
����.���	�� 
	� �$�� 6���
	*� -�.�	���
�

��	��%6-�&��
	
��9��������@�

�

•� �$����/��������������
*	
�

�	���	������	���
	��$�����
�������*������
���� ��
	��� ��� ������� 
	� ���*����
	*� ���A�
��� ��
$� ��� �$�� �
$�����
?:��	�
�	����*�����5�

�
��(��������������$���
��/��������$�������������$����	

�������	�������������
�$�� ����

� 
�;� 
	� �$�� ������;� �$�� -�.�	��� �	�� ���
���� (�	
���
	*� ��������
���.
���������������
�����:���	��
�	����$�/��	��/$�����*����/���� ��.
����
���
	*��$��������	��/$��/��������	�
���������$���5�� $�����

�����������$����$��
��
*
	������*����
*�����$������	�����������	

���	���$����.
�����
*�����/����
�$���������9��	��������������
	��;� ��7
	*� 
	����

��	���	��.
����	��5� � $��
���

����	������7����
	
������$
����.����������
��
	���������������5�
�
 $�� (������ ��7��� $�/� �$�� ������� 
	� �$�� C��*$�	� �
$���� �:��	�
�	�
���*������/����� 
���
�� �	� ��.�	����	��$�/��	�� �
�7�� ��
�
	*� ����� �$����
/���� ��
	*� �
�
*����� �	�� ��	�*��5� �  $�� ���

��� ������� �$��� �� 	������ ���
����������D���*�<�
�������/������
	*����		�����������/
�$��$
���	���������$���
��
���*��
	��$�����
�������*������*�	�������
���
�������
�
.�����	���.�	��5��
 $�� ���

��� �	������7� ��� ���.
��� �$
�� 
	������
�	� ��� (������� ��� �$��
��������
����5�
-�����
	*�����$�����	

�<����	���������;�/$

$�$������	�/�
���	��������
	*��$��
�$
��� 9������;� �� (������ ��7��� /$�� ������ �
$���� 
����� �	�� 	�����
��� $���
��	
����/
	*� ����� �$��5� � $�����

�����.
���� �$��� �$
��/���	����	��	������
�

����	
�����6����/��
��	�����9�
��������	��������	�������$�������.

����	��
�����
��������	��������������	��$���5�
�
 $���$�
����������$����$����������������������$��
����������!���	$
�������
�	��

��� ���75� � 6�/�.��;� ��� �$���� /��� 	�� 
��� ���7� 
	� !���	$
��� ����
�	�;� �$��
���*$��
���
�

��
�	��	�/$��$����$
���������������$���������7�
	�!���	$
���)���

9



�

������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

��� ��� �$�� �	�� �	� !���	$
��� -���5� �  $�� ���

��� �	������7� ��� 

�
������ �$
��

	������
�	����(�����������$����������
����5�
�
�� (������ ��7��� $�/� �$�� /��7� ��� �$�� 	�/� �
���	���� '��	�� �	�� 6����/�
?��
��
�	� '��
	���� ���.

�� %'6?'�&;� /$

$� ����� ��� ��� �����	�
���� ����
�
	�
	*�/��7��:���
�	
������$
*$��
$�������
��;�/��������
�.����5���	����

���
��.
���� �$��� �$�� *�.��	��	�� /��� 
	
����
	*��� ��7
	*� �� ����� 
	��*������
������
$� ��������	�

��$
����	������$���������	���
$������	�� �$�� ��	���
/���� ��
	*� �
.������ ��� �$���� 	�/� 
	
�
��
.��5� �  $�� �$�
�� ��9������� �$���

	������
�	���*���
	*��$��
���������$��'6?'�����

�
����������(������5�
�
�� (������ �	9�
���� ������ �$�� �
���
����� ���� �$�� 6����/� ����� ����
�
�
���
����
��;� /$

$� $��� ��
�
.��� �����.��� ����� ���
	��� ��� ����� ��� �$��
 ��	�������
�	��	����
��
��� 3	
�
��
.�����	��% �3�&5� � $�����

����	������7� ���


�
�������$
��
	������
�	����(�����������$����������
����5�
�
�� !"#�$	�� $����$������������	����5�
�

��3�� �
������������'�
��������� ����1����
�
 $������
���
�������
�
.������������/$

$����������$�����*�����
	���.�	

	*�
�$�� ���	

�<�� ���
�����	��  ��	�������
�	� ���*������ �
	
�� 
��� ���	
$� 
	�
1
����������5���
�
 $���$�
��	����� �$�������	�
:������ �$
�� ������;�/$

$��������� �����������

���
�����$������	����7������D��������/<;��	����7���/$���$
������	�
:�$���	�������
���	�

�
�����������$����������
����5���	����

�����.
�����$����$
������	�
:�
����������������
7�
�	���
���$���$���	�/��	���������������������.
	*���*�����

	��$��( ��5�
�
 $���$�
����������$����$
���
����
�	�/����	�

���������	���
��	�������	�������
�$����.�����������
�
*�	
���:��
����������	

�����

���5���$���������$��;�
	��$��
������;� (������� ��� �$�� ��������
����� /����� �:��
�� ���� �������� ��� ���
���.
���� 
	� �
��� 
	� ������ ��� ����/� (������� ����


�	�� �
��� ��� ����� �	��

�	�
�����$�����
����������
	*���	���	����������������$�������������
���/
�$�
�����	����������	����
	��$��������5��
�
 ����� ��� ������	
�� ���� �$�� ������*

� ���
�����	�� '����� E� ,
��
�������
��	���
���'������
�
��(��������������$���$��$������
����
�	
��	����*���
	*����$��$��
����	���	��
�������������
�����
$������	���$�� ��������-�����	
��% 1-&������$��������*

�
���
�����	��'�����%��'&��	��,
��
���������	���
��'������%,�'&������������

	� �$�� ������5� � '��$� ��
���	��� ��
���� ��� 
	�

���� (������ �.���
*$�� �	��

	.��.���	�� 
	� �$�� *�.��	�	
�� ��� /$��� /��� �� .���� 
������	�� ����� ��� �$��
���	

�<�������	�
�
�
��;�/
�$�����	�
�������$�*����.
	*���	��
����5���
�
 $�� ���������� ,
��
���� ��� -�����
��� ��.
���� �$��� �$�� ��������� ����
�����

$���� /��� �� �����
�
�	� ��� ��
�	�� 
$�	*��� 
	� ���

���<� ������ �	�� 	�/�
����
	���	��5��6���������.
�����$����$�� ��������-�����	
����
���	���/����
���� �	� ���

��� ��.��� ����
	*� �	�� /���� 	��� �� ����� ���
�
��
�	� ��� �$�� ����� ���
��������
	��.�����
	*��$
������������	�5�� $��	�/�����
������
	
��������	�/�

10



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� ��������

,
.
�
�	��� ,
��
���;� ������

��� ��	���
��� �	�� ���
�����	�� �	�� �$����
������

��� '��
	���� ����	��� �����5� � �  $�� ��
��
���	�� �	�� A��� ���
$
	*�
���
�������� �$����/����	���/��5� �1��

���� 
	� �$��-�����
���,
��
�������$���
���	�
�	���������*���
	*��$������������������
	*��$����������������5���
�
6���������$��;��$�����	

�����	���.���B������	�
�	���
���/
�$��$
�������
��;�
�	�� ������� ��	�*���	�� ��� �$
�� �
�
.
��� /����� ��� �
$
�.��� �$���*$� �$��
����
	���	�� ��� ��	
��;� $
*$� 
��
���� ���

���� /
�$� �.���
*$�� ��� �$�� �	�
���
���
�����	����	
�
�	��	�������	�
�
�
�����������$�����.����
	*��$�����.

�5���
�
 $�� (������ ��7��� $�/� �$�� �����	��
���
�	� ��� ����� '��*���� %�'�&� /�����

���
���	����
�����	�� �	�� 
	
���� �������5� �6�������� �$��� $��$�����7���
�$
��9����
�	���� �$�����.
��������
	*��	��/�����
����/�
�
	*��������	��������
���

���5���
�
3	������	��;����

����������$�������/
	*���
	��0�
�

•� �$�����	

��$����	*�*��� 
	��:��	�
.��
�	������
�	�/
�$����.

��������
��*���
	*��$�
�����

�

�	����@�

�

•� �$�����	

��/�����
�	�
	������$�.������A��������
	��$�������/
	*������0�
���
$���� ��� 
���� �	�� ���.

��@� ��
��
	*� ��� �$�� ���7��@� �	���
	*�
���	������ �	�� 9���
��� ��� ���.

�� /���� ��
	��
	��@� �	�� �$��� ���.

���
�	�������
���/���������
	������	�����.
����.�����������	��5�

�
��(������/$��/���	��������������� �$����������
�������7����$��� 
����
$�
,
��
�������$��������

��������
�����	����	�*��;�/������$�����	�*���$�.��
���$��
��� ��� �
�� �	� �$�
�� �/	� ��� /����� �$��� �����	� ��� �	�/������� ��� �$��
,
.
�
�	��� ,
��
���5� � 6�� ����� ��7���/$��$��� �
�����	�� ������ ����
��� �����A���
�	���
	��� 
�	���
��5� � 6�� ������ �$��� �$�� ����
����� 
$����� �	��  1-� �
�� 	���
�:��


���� ������ /$�� $��� �.����
$
	*� �����	�
�
�
��� ���� �$�� ���
�����	��
��	
�
�	� �	�� ��
���� ��� ����	������� (������<� �.���
*$�� ��� �$
�� ���.

�5� � 6��
����$��� ������ �$��� 
�	���
�� 	�*��
��
�	� /��� �� ���

��
���� ����� �	�� ��7���
/$��$����$
���7
�������
����	�����:
�����/
�$
	�,
��
�������5�
�
3	������	��;����

������.
�����$��0�
�

•� �$�� ���������� ���
�����	�� -����� %��-�&� ����/��� ���
�����	��
��	�*��������*�����������	���;�$�/�.��;��
*$��	
	*�������
�������	��
�$�� ��
�	�� 
������	���
�	� ��� �$�� ���� �-(� ������� /����� ����/�
��	�*������������.���
*$���������
�	���
��@�

�

•� �$�� 
�	���
�� ���
������ ������ $��� 	��� 
$�	*��;� ���� �$�� ����	�� ���
���:
�
�
��� ����/��� ��� �$���� $��� ���	� ����
��;� /$

$� /����� �	�����
*�������
�	������	���

��	���
�
��@�

�

•� �$�� ,
.
�
�	��� ,
��
���� /����� ��� 	��
�
��� ��� ���$� ��A��� �	�� �
	���

�	���
��;� $�/�.��� �$
�� /����� $����	� �	
�� �$�� 
�	���
�� $��� ���	�
�*����5� � �������� 
�	���
��� ����	�
	*� ��� ����� �$�	� BF7� ��9�
���� �$��
���.
�
�	�����/��9��������������$�������������/���������/��$�����

���
������
���5��3	����
�
�	;��$��/�
.������
������9�
������������������.��@�

11



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

�

•� ���� 
�	���
��� /���� .
�
���� �	� �$�� 
��������� 
�	���
��� ��*
����5��
,
��
����������

�

�
�	���
��� ��*
������ �
���������
����	��
�	���
����.���
BF�75� � ����$������;� ���� /����� ���*� ��� ���� ���
�
�	��� ���	��� ����

�	���
�@�

�

•� 
�� /����	.
��*��� �$��� �$�� �� ���������������

���'��
	��������	����
������/�����$�.���$����9�
�
����������
�	���
�	���
��	�*��
��
�	��7
���@�

�

•� ��'� �	�� ,�'� /���� /��7
	*� ��� �	*�	���� ��$�.
���� 
$�	*�� ���	*�
���

����������.
�
	*�
����
��*�
��	
���	����.

������$��@�

�

•� �������$
������$����'�/���������
	��$��������	��/��������
$�
����
����$������������,
��
�
�	����-�����
��5���

�
(�������������$�������/
	*�
����	����	����9�����0�
�

•� ��'�E�,�'�����
�����
$������	�� 1-��$�����
�����������
	��(������

	.��.���	��
	�����
	*���
��
�
��������$
�����.

�@���

•� �� 	�/� ��
���	�� /��� ��9������� ��� �$�/� �.���
*$�� ��� �$
�� ����� ���
����.�	���������
��6������;����
	��;����	

������
���
	������
�����@�

�

•� �� ���
7� 
$�	*��� .���
�	� ��� �$�� ����
����� 
$����� �	�� �	�� �� 	�/�
��
���	�� � 
	
�������
	*� �$�� ��**������ ���	���	��� ���.�� ���


�
������������������
�����(������5�

�
 $������������,
��
������.
���� �$��� �$������
�����
$������	�� 1-��������� ����
���

��� *������ �	�� /���� 	��� 
	��	���� ��� �	� �.����
$
	*� ���
�
��
�	� ���
*�.��	�	
�� ����	*���	��� �����
	*� ��� �$
��� ������ ���	��5� � 6�� �	������7� ���
������� �$�� ����
����� 
$���� �	�� �$��  1-�� �	�� ��.����� �� 	�/� ��
���	�� ���
�����
��(������
	.��.���	���	���.���
*$���	��

�
�������$�������(������5�
�
 $�� �$�
�� ������ �$��� �$�� !�.��	��	�� ���
�� �	�� -
�7� (�	�*���	��
����
����� %!�-(&� /����� ��� 
	��������� 
	� ��.
�/
	*� �$���� ���	����
��
���	����	���$����$�����$������������
��������!�-(�����
����	�5�
�
�� (������ ������ �$��;� 
	� �$�� ����;� ��	
��� ���

���� $��� /
�$$���� 
��

���

	������
�	������(��������	�����
����������
������$�����*���
	*��$�����	��
�	� �$��)$
������6
*$��
$�������A�
�;�/$���� �$�����	��$������	� ��	� �
����
�.��� ���*��5� �  $
�� 
����� $��� �	��� 
���� �
*$�� �����/
	*� �	� ���
�� �	�� ��7���
/$������
�������/���� 
	����
�� ������.�	���������
�
�	���� �$�����.�� 
	

��	�5��
 $�� ���������� ,
��
���� ������� �$��� �$�� 
	.���
*��
�	� �����
	*� ��� �$�� ���.��
�.�����	�� $��� ����� �� 	������ ��� ��
����	���
�	�� /$

$� $��� ���	�

������	���5���
�
G�������	�H�
�������	���
�������
�
�	����

������.
�����$�������/
	*���������	��$��H�
�������	���
�0�
�

12



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� ��������

•� �� ���������� �/������� 
�	���
��/
�$�!���	/

$�H�
�����H��� %!HH&�$���
���	�����
	����
��/$
������

�����:���������$������
�	�������$�����.
�
�	�
�����
����@�

�

•� �$��
�	���
��$������	������������	����	����7�����
	*��

��	���	��/���
��������:�
�������$���	��������
������;�����$������	��:��	�����	�
���$��
�	�������*������������������	����������	�������	�������@�

�

•� �$����$������	���	��������� 
����.���	������6����/�H�
�������	����
%6H�&;���
$���;��	�
	
������
	�.
�
������	���������$
�;���
�
	��
	��$��
	���������
�����
	�����
�
.����	��
	
���������������
���
�
�	@�

�

•� ������� 
�	���
�� ��	�*���	�;� 
�
�	�� ��	
���
	*� �	�� ��������	
��
��	
���
	*����
��������	���	��		������.
�/�/����
	����
�@�

�

•� �	� �		���� ��	�*���	�� ���� ��� B�F�7� /��� �������� ��� !HH� ��� �$��
���	

�@��

�

•� �$����/���������
�
�
��� �$��� 
	
����/����������/����$�	��$�����*�������
�	�� �$
�� /����� ��� 
���
�
��� �	
�� �$�� ������	� �
*����� ���� ����I��� $���
���	��
	��
���@��

�

•� 	�����������$����
�.�������C� �$������	��
$
�.����	���$����$������	�
����� ���
�
�	��� 
	������ 
������ �����
	*� ��� ������� ����
��� �	��
��
	��	�	
�@�

�

•� �$���� $��� ���	� ������ 
�����
�
�	� ����� �� ��
�	���� ���	��� *��� 
	�
J���$�6����/;�/$

$�/���
$��*
	*�.������/��������$
������5�

�
�� (������ ��7��� /$��� �
	�	

��� �
�7�� ��
��� �$�� ���	

�� ���� ��� �$�� �	����
��������	
���	���$��/$���/����$�������
	������������
*	
	*��$��	�/�
�	���
�5��
 $�����

�����.
�����$����$
��/������
���������B�+87��	���$����$���
	�	
�������
/���� ���7
	*� 
	��� �$
�5� �  $�� 	�/� 
�	���
�� /��� ���� ��� ��� �
*	��� ��� �$��
��*
		
	*����2��������;����A�
����������.���������
	����	���(�������5�
�
�� (������ /$�� /��� 	��� �� (������ ��� �$�� ��������
����� ��7��� /$�� �$��
��.�	��� ��������I���/����:��
���� ������ ��/��� �$�	� 
	� ���������	���5� � $��
���

�����.
�����$����$
��/������������������$���
��*��*��
�	������	��;�/$������
�� �������
�	� ��� �������$
�� 
	
���� /����� ��� ������� �	� ��� �$�� 	�/�

�	���
���;��	���������$����$��/������	���$�.���$�����
	
�
.���	�/��� ��� �$
��
9����
�	��	
���$���
*�����$������	��
	��
���5���
�
�� (������ ��7��� /$�	� �$�� �	��	�


������ �$�������� $��� 
���� ��� �
*$�;� �	��
/$��$���
���	���$���:��	�
�	�����$��
�	���
���	�
����*����/������������
	�������
������$����������������:
�������B>�7;��	��/$��$����$
��$������	���
������
	���
�$�� ���*��� ���� ����I�85� �  $�� ���

��� ��.
���� �$��� �$
�� ��
*$�� �$�������� $���
��
����������	��
	�9����������	��$������	����$���
������
	����$�����*����	��
���	����**������ ��� �$��,
��
��������
	�	
���	��������	
�5� ��$���������$���
�$��2�	��������������������
*�����$������	���/����$�	��:��
���;������������
�������
���������� �$�� ��
�����
�	�������
	*��	�� 
	� �$�� �������� ����$�
�����5��
 $��(��������7���/$��$�������
����������6H�����
	*��$���$�
���������
���

13



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

$��� 
����
���� ���	� ��
������ 
	��� �$�� ���*���� ���5� �  $�� ���

��� ������� �$���
�
	�	

��������
	*�/���
���
��������	���9������������
�;�$�/�.��;�!HH<������
���
$������	������*�	�������	���$������

����
	��
	�	
��/���������	����
	*��$��
�
*�����
	�����$�������
�5�
�
6
*$/������	����
�
�	���	���
��
�
�	� ���

��� ���.
���� �$�� �����/
	*� ������� �	� �$�� 6
*$/���� ��	����
�
�	�
��	���
�0�
�

•� �$�� $
*$/���� 
�	���
�;� /$

$� ����	���� ��� ���/��	� B����F�� ����
�		��;� $��� ���	� �/������ ��� (��� !��	��� �����/
	*� �� �����*��
�����

�������
�����	�����
���������
���;��	�����
	��������.��@�

�

•� �$�� 
�	���
�� $������	� ��	��������� �$���� ��������� H1 �;� ���� �$�������
/$

$� /���� /�	� ��� (��� !��	��� �	�� �$�� H1 �� /���� �����9��	����

�	���
������/
�$��$����������	���������K�
��������
�
�	@�

�

•� �
�7� $��� ���	� ��	�*��� �$���*$� �$�� ���� ��� �� �
*������ �
�7� ����
:�
�.�����	�����	$�	
���
�	���
��*�.��	�	
�����
������@�

�

•� �$�� 
�	���
�� /����� ��� ���A�
�� ��� ��	�$��� ��	
���
	*� �*�
	��� �� �����
��������	
�� 
	�

������ ����.������� 
���	�� �
	�	

�����	���
���/��������

�������
���$����/����	������@�

�

•� ��������������������	�*���	��/������	����� ��	��� ������
$�		������
/$�����$���/������9�
���@�

�

•� �	���	.
��	��	����
���
��/��������7����������
	
���@�
�

•� �$�� ����� ��� �����	��� 
	� ������ ��� ���
��	��<� ������
7� ��*���
	*�
���
���
�
�	���.����$������	���/5�

�
��(��������������$����$��*�.��	�	
������
�����
$���������
	*�����$��$
*$/����

�	���
���$�/���
������
	������
��������������	�
�
�
��;�(�������.���
*$���	��

	.��.���	��
	��$�����
���5��6�����
�����$�����

��������	��:
����	��������5�6��
�������$����$��	�/��
	
�$���
	*�������	�����������������������$�������
���
������	������
�
������$�5�� $�����

�����.
�����$�����	�/;�������
�	��

���
����������
�������
���/�����
	*���
�������	�
����
	�������
	�6����/5��6�/�.��;�
������� �$
�������
���/���������
�
�	�
	������� �$�� ������
7� ����������������
$���	������	����
�
.�5�
�
��(��������7���/$��$����$����/������
	
����.���������
$��������
$�����$��

�	���
��5� � $�����

��� �����	�����$��� �$���
	
����.�����/���L�����	���$���
�$����/���	��*����	����� ���	�� ���

�
��� 
	� �$�� 
�	���
�5� �6�������� �$�����
	������ ��� �		���� #��� ��������	
�� 3	�

������ $��� ���	� 
��	�
�
��� �	�� �$���
�$����$����	�����
�	�������	��
	��
�������������������$��
�	���
�5���
�

14



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� ����8���

 $�� '��	�;� ?��
	*� E� 6����/� ������*

� ��������� ����	���$
�<�� ���
�����	��
���
��������H�
�����E�H
���������.

���
�
�	� ���

��� ���.
���� �$�� �����/
	*� ������� �	� �$��  �
������*$� H�
����� �	��
H
���������.

���
	
�
��
.�����/��	�6����/;�'��	���	��?��
	*����	

��0�
�

•� �$���$���������*$��$���������
�$�����������*

��������������	���$
�����
A�
	�������
�����:���	�����	�*���	������ ��
������	�� �
���������.

��� 
	�
������ ��� �
$
�.�� ���


�	

��� ��� ���.

�;� ���
.���;� 
�
�	�
	*� �	��
��	�*���	�@� �	�� ��� ������� /$��$��� ���
�
�	��� ���


�	

��� 
	� ��$���
����������$��������.

���
��������
��	�
�
��@�

�

•� ��
������*$�/��7
	*�*������$������	���������	��A�
	��(��������
��
	*���
�	�� 
	���	�����
��
	*��/
�$� ����.�	���������
��6�������$������	�
���
���
���������
$����$��
��5��?�
$����$��
���$������������������
�������
	����

���;� �	�����7��� ����
	*� $��� ���	� 
���
��� ���� ��
��� ��� �$�� ��	���
	*�
�:��

��5� �  �	���� ���

�

��
�	�� $��� ���	� ���
*	��� ��� ��� ���
�����
�����@�

�

•� �$�� ���
�����	�� ���
���� /��� ���A�
�� ��� �� �
*������ ���
�����	��
���
���;�/$����9���
����	����


	*�/����������
�$��5�� $��������
�	���
��
$������	����������������	
����*���������$
���	�����������
������	��
�
���������.

����	������
��
�����
�
	�@��

�

•� 
	� 
����� ��� �	� 
	
������ 
	� ��
�
�
��� 
����;� �$�� 
�	���
���� /����� ���
��9�
�����������	��������$����$����$������	������������	�*��@�

�

•� ���

����$������*$���
����
�����.

���	�/$��$����$����	�
�	���	�����


��
�$����� �

���� ��� �$�� ����.�	�� 
��	

�� ��� ��� �$�� 
�	���
���5� � 3�� /���
�*������$����	�����
������
�7�/������������
����������$��
��	

������	��
��.
	*���	��$��
�	���
��/��������/�
*$��	������	�
����
�7�5�

�
��(��������������$��;�
	�$
��.
�/;��$����������
��	�������
���$����.��������.
	*��
��� ���.

�� 
����.���	����	�


�����5� �6�������� �$��� 
��/��� �$�� ���
����� �$��
��������
���������
���
	
����$�����	

��
	������������������	
���	���
	�	
��
�	�� ���� �������� ��
	*� ����
����� ��� �$�� ��������
����;� ����

������� �$����
����
	*� /
�$� ��A��� 
�	���
��� �$����� 
�	��
	� �$
�� ��.��� ��� ����
�5� � 6�� ��7���
/$��$������

����
���$������	���
������
	����$��
��
����
�	���	��$�/����	��$��

�	���
��/����:��
����������
.�����.
	*�5���
�
 $�����

�����.
�����$����$�����
*�����/������������������
�����������
	����	��
�$�������� 
��/�����	�������������
���� ��� ��.���� �$���� ��� �$����������
����5��
�$�� ������ �$��� 
�� /��� �	�


������ �$��� �� ��.
	*� ��� B���7� �.������ /����� ���
����;� B���7� ��� /$

$� /����� ��� 
	� ����I�8� �	�� B8��7� 
	� ���8I�F5� � )
�$�
��*���� ��� ���

��� �
��;� ����� ��� �$�� /��7� �	�����7�	� ���� �$
�� ���A�
�� /���
������� ��� ����������������

���<������������ �����	�
�
�
�
��5� ��$�������� �$���
��
$������*$�$���
�	��
������B�F7� ��/������� A�
	�����
�����	�� ��	��/$

$�

�.���������
�����
$�����$��
���������.

��������
����
����	����$����:�����5��
 $�� ���

��� �	������7� ��� ���.
��� (������� /
�$� ����� ����
���� 
	������
�	�
�������$��
����������

����
����	��$
�����A�
�5�
�

15



�

����F��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

�� (������ /$�� /��� 	��� �� (������ ��� �$�� ��������
����� 9���
��� �$��
B�8��B������
*����/$

$��$������������

�
�������$��������.��������
�	���
��5��
 $�����

�����.
�����$����$
��/���������.��������
������F������������
����
����	��
��������� ���� ��
����5� � $��(������9���
��� �$���������	�� 
	���
�
�	�8���� �$��
�������/$

$�
	�

������$�����/����$�	��	�


�������
������
��������/�������7��
���
���	�����$������	���$
�5�� $�����

�����.
�����$���	���
������
��������/����
�	�


���������6����/;�$�/�.��;�?��
	*�$������	�
�	�
���
	*��$
�����
�	5�� $��
(������ �����	���� �$��� �$
�� /��� �
�����
	*� �	�� �$����� $�.�� ���	� �����

�����
	��$��������5���	����

�����.
�����$���
����	�	���
	��$���������$������	�
��7�	� ����� ���.
���� �������� /$

$� $��� ���	� ����
����� A�
	���� ��� ���� �$����
���$��
�
��;�/$

$�/����$�������	������$��������	
������
������
�������5���
�
 $�� �$�
�� ��
�������� $��� ����
��� ��9����� ��� ���� ����.�	�� ���

���� �$��� ��������
��
	*� ����
����� ��� �$�� ��������
����� �$����� ��� ����.�	�;� �
����� �	��
�

�����5���$���������$���
�� 
	��$�����������������
�����(�������/����	���
���
��
���/
�$��$��9���
�������������;��$�	��$���/�����������
*��������	���$���
��
7�������

�����������	�
	*5�
�
��(��������7���/$������������/����
	����
���$������	�����$��
�����

������
/
�$���/�������$���*�����	�5�� $�����

�����.
�����$����$��
�	���
��$������	�
����������� ��� �$��� �	�� ���$��
��� /
�$���/
	*� /����� ��� �
����� ��� ����

����	���
�	5� �  $�� (������ ��7��� /$��� �������
�	� ��� �$�� B�8��� �
*����
6����/�/���
���
�������5�� $�����

����	������7����

�
�������$
��
	������
�	�
���(������5��
�
 $�� (������ ��7��� ���� ����$��� 
	������
�	� ��*���
	*� �$�� �$�������� 
	� �$��
��	�
�	� ��	�� �	�� /$��$��� �$�� �	�


������ ��.
	*�� /����� ������� �$
�5� �  $��
���

�����������$������

����$���
���
�����������
�����	�������/
�$��$����	�
�	;�
�
	�	
���	���
����
��� �����;�/$��$�����.
���� �$��� �$���
�7���� �$
��/��� ��/5��
 $��(���������$��
�����$����$����	�
�	���	��/����/	��������	�
�	���	��
(��������	��	��� �$�����	

�5� � $��(�������������$��� �$
���
����
�	�/�����
�
�
���� ��� ��	�
�	� ��	�� ����	*���	��� ���� �$�� +� 6����/� �
$����� /$

$� $���

�	.����������
������������5���
�
 $��,
��
��������
	�	
���	��������	
����.
�����$�������������/�����������A�
��
��� ��	��������G	�����7
	*�� %�����
�
�	����?�������	�&�-�*����
�	�� % G�?&�
�	���$����$��	�/������/���������	����
�����'�����	��/�����
�	�
	����������
�����$�����


������$��
����	��������	���$���
��
�
���/�����	��������������	5�� $��
(������ ������� �$��� 6����/� ���	

�� �$����� ���/� ��� �� 
�	���
�� /
�$� �$��
��	�
�	���	�������������$�/�
��/�����������
	*��$�����


�5�� $��,
��
�����������
�$��� �$����	�
�	���	��/�����	��������	��
�����	���� �$������	*���	��5� � $��
�$�
�� ������� �$��� �$
�� 
�����:� 
�����/����� ��9�
��� ����$��� �
�
���
�	� ��� �$��
��	�
�	���	��3	.�����	����	��5�
�
�� (������ ������� �$��� �$�� ������� ��
���� ��� ������
�$� 
	� (������<� �
	���
/$��$��� ��� 	��� �$�� ��������� 
�	���
�� /��� .����� ������	��� ���� 6����/� �	��
��9������� �$��� ����$��� 
	������
�	� ��� ���.
���� ��� (������5� �  $�� �$�
��
��9��������$����	����
�
�	�����
��
	*�������.
��������
���
	��(���������
������
�$����(������
	�������
	*5�
�
�� !"#�$	�� $����$������������	����5�
�

16



�

��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
������� ��������

��4�� '
�����1� �������2��,���%��������������
�
 $����������
����� ��
�
.��� �� ������� ��� �$��,
.
�
�	���,
��
���� ��� ���		
	*�
/$

$� ���� ���� �$�� ��
�	�� 3 � 
������ ����
�
	*� �$�� 
�	������
�	� ���
������ 
	�
�����
�� ��� ���		
	*� ����

��
�	�5�  $�� ,
.
�
�	��� ,
��
���� $
*$�
*$���� �$��
�����/
	*�����
�������$��������0�
� �

•� �$���� $��� ���	� 
�	
��	�� ��
���� ��� ����� ����
��� ��*���
	*� /���
���
�

���
�
�
��� ��� �$���
.

�� � ������� �	�� ���		
	*� ��
���	��� �����
	*� ���
�$��C��*$�	��
$����
�	������
�	@�

�

•� ���/��	��8�����������	�����(��
$�������

���� ��� �$��/���
���$���
	��� ���	� ����
���� ���� �� ���
��� ��� ��� $����� 
	� �����5� � 3�� $��� �$��������
���	� 	�
������� ��� �����	�� �$�� 
�	������
�	� �	� �$��C��*$�	��
$����
���		
	*�����

��
�	��	������.���$����
���	���������$��/���
����	��
����������$�����
���5��3��/���
������	�����	�����$����$��C��*$�	��
$����
���
�	������
�	� $��� ��	� ���� ��� ����� ��
��� ��� ��
	*� 
�	�
������ ��� �$��
���		
	*�����
���������$�
������
	*�
	����
�@�

�

•� 3 � 
�����*���� $��� ��������� �� 	������ ��� ���$� �$���� �	�� ��	*������
�����
�	�5� �  $����
	� 
������ �������� ��� �$�� ����/���� ���������;� �
.

��
�	��(C(;�/$

$�/�������
7����

�� ������5� � $�������*�������$���
���	�����
����� 
	��*������/
�$���
$���$��;�$�/�.��;� 
	.���
*��
�	��$���
��.�������$����$���
.

���������$�����M����������7;N�/$

$�
������	���
��������.����$���*$��	�����/������*����@�

�

•� �$�����	

��$�����
$�

�����/��	�����/���
���;����������*����;�/$

$�
/����� �����.�� �$��������� ���7� ��� ������� �:��	�
.�� �����
�	� /
�$� ��
��	*��������
	��
����	��������
*	
�

�	��7	�
7��	�
���
����
�������$���
���.

��� ��
	*��
.

�5� � H�	*��� �����
	� �
�������	�� ����
��� ��	��
��5��
1��

���;� 
	� 
�	������
�	� /
�$� �$�� ����.�	�� �������
�� 6�����;� /����
/�
*$
	*� ��� 
����;� �
���
����� �	�� ����	�
��� ��	��
�� ��� 
������	�
	*�
�$���5�

�
��(������������� �$���$��/����
�����
	���� ������� �$��� �$�����
�	�����$�����
���.

������������
���������
�	�$���	������	�
�	�
�����5�� $�����

�����.
����
�$��� ���

���� $�.�� �	� �	*�
	*� �
���*��� /
�$� ��$��� H�
��� ���$��
�
��� ������
�����	��
.�����
.�������
�	�5��J�
*$����
	*����$��
�
���$�����**�������$����$���
$��� �
����� 
	������� %��� 
����� �
	�	

��� 
	
�	�
.�&� ��� �	*�*�� 
	� ��.����
	*� ��
$�
���
�	������$�������	���
��5��1��

���������6����/�/����$�/�.���
�	�
	�
	*����

�	�
������������
�
�
�
��5��1�$�������
�������
�	��
	
������
$�	*
	*�������*���
.���������
���
	*����.

����
$�������.
�������J���$*���������
�������$������
����	������	��
.�����		
	*����������
	*��$�����
	�5���
�
 $��(��������������$����$����������$�����$�.��
	
������.������������*������
���.���
�	��F�����
.

���	�� ���� �$����$�������
�������
�	�5� ��	����

����������
�$��� $�� $��� �	��� ��
�	���� ��
�
.��� 
	�

��
.�� �
*����� ��*���
	*� �$
�� �����
���
��;� /$

$� ��**������ �$��� �	� 
	���
�� ��*����� ��� .���
�	� �F� /����� ��7��
���/��	�+�>���	�$�� ���
�������5� �1��

����/�����/�
�
	*� ����$��� 
	������
�	�
����� J���$*���� �	� �$�� �
���� �����.�� �/��� ����� �$�� 
����	�� �
.

�� ������
���
���5� �6�������� �$��� �$�����	

�<�����

��$������	����*�����:
��������

17



�

����+��� � ��������	
���	���
	�	
���
���
	����������
�������������
�������

���������������������	*��������
���;��	���$���6����/�$������	���
	*��	��������
������������ ��������� �
��5� � $��(��������7��� ���7	�/� �$�� �
���
����� ����
�$�� �����
�	� ��� ��� 
������	���5� �  $�� ���

��� ��.
���� �$��� �$
�� 
	������
�	�
/���������.�
�������	
������ �$������.�	�� 
	������
�	�$������	�����������	��
�
�
���
�	�� $��� ��7�	� ���
�� /
�$� ����.�	�� ����
��� ��
$� ��� J���$*���� �	��
���
��5��6���	������7����

�
�������$
��
	������
�	����(��������	
���.�
�����5�
�
�� !"#�$	�� $����$������������	����5�
�

��5�� �6�
���
��
%�����'���������'��
�����
�
�� !"#�$	� �  $��;� 
	� �

����	
��/
�$������ 3� ����
$���������� ��� �$�� H�
���
!�.��	��	���
����+�;��$���������	������

�����:
������������$������
	*�����
�$�������/
	*�
���������$�������	�������������/0�
�
3����  
����

�
-����	�

�5� ��	���
��� �	�� ���
�����	��
��.
	*��

3	������
�	� �	���� ����*���$� ��
%
�	��
	�� 
	������
�	� �����
	*� ���
�$���
	�	

���������
	��������
������
�	�� ����

����� �����	� %
	
���
	*�
�$�� ���$��
��� $���
	*� �$���

	������
�	&5�

�
�&��� �
������������'�
��������� ����1��2��//����6�&���

�
 $�� ��������
����� 
�	�
������ �$�� ����	�
:� �����
	*� ��� 6���
	*� ������
(�	�*���	�0� -����	�
.�� -���
��� ��	���
��5� � �� (������ ��9������� �$���

	������
�	������
	*������.
	*���$���$������	������
	�����I����	���	�


������
��.
	*�� 
	� �����9��	�� ������ �	� �$�� ����� �����	�
.�� ����
�� 
�	���
��� ���


�
����������(������5�
�
%J���0�� $������
	*;�$�.
	*�
����	
������+5�����;�
����������5F����&5�
�
�
�
�
�
%�
*	��&��1GJ�3HH1-��G?��J,?-�1J�
�$�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

18



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

11 July 2013 

Subject: 

 

Chair’s report 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Alex Dewsnap, Divisional Director, 
Strategic Commissioning 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

All areas 
 

Exempt: No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A: Note of Chair’s briefing held 
on 17 June 2013 
 
Appendix B:  Summary of issues selected 
for further monitoring at Q4 2012/13 
 
Appendix C – Quarterly Corporate 
Scorecard 2012/13 
 
Appendix D – Annual Corporate 
Scorecard 2012/13 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report sets out issues considered by the Chair since the last meeting of 
the Performance and Finance scrutiny sub-committee.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
The sub-committee is requested to note the report.  
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 19 to 42

19



 2 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introductory paragraph 
This report outlines the work of the 2012-13 Chair & Vice-Chairman and of the 
new 2013-14 Chairman since the last report to the meeting of the sub-
committee held on 23rd April 2013. 
 

Background 
 
1. Chairman’s Briefing – 17th June 2013 

A briefing for the Chairman was held on 17th June 2013. 
Councillor Sue Anderson also attended as Vice-Chair Elect .     
 
The meeting covered 
• Financial information on Public Health transition from the PCT and 

expected running costs that the Sub-Committee had requested on 
29th January 2013 

• Finance update for Quarter 4 2012-13  
• Corporate Scorecard for Q4 2012/13 and update on indicators identified 

for further monitoring 
• Matters arising from last P&F questions (these were in hand). 
 
On future P&F agenda items it was agreed to ask that two reports 
previously scheduled for 11th July 2013, on Capita Outsourcing (current 
contract) and on IT Disaster Recovery, are postponed to 30th September. It 
was also agreed to request that the follow-up report on Procurement go to 
the 30th September meeting. The other items for 11th July were agreed.  
 
A note of the briefing is available at Appendix A. 
 

2. Future Chairman’s Briefings 
The next Chairman’s briefing will be held in August/September 2013.   

 
3. Agenda items – 11th July 2013 

• Appointment of Vice-Chair 
• Chairman's report 
• Revenue and capital monitoring 2012-13 Quarter 4 
• Revenue and capital outturn 2012-13 
• Children and Families: Performance Issues 
• Private Rented Sector review: progress report. 
 

Financial Implications 
This report deals with matters of financial and service performance 
throughout.  
 

Performance Issues 
This report deals with matters of financial and service performance 
throughout.   
 

Environmental Impact 
Not applicable. 

20



 3 

 

Risk Management Implications 
Not applicable. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
The work of the sub-committee addresses all of the council’s corporate 
priorities.   
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
Not required for this report. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Guy Fiegehen, Scrutiny Officer, 020 8420 5389, 
guy.fiegehen@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 

Background Papers:   
 
 
Quarterly Corporate Scorecard for 2012-13 Q4 and the Annual Corporate 
Scorecard for 2012-13 – available at:  
 
{Manize – Normally the quarterly corporate scorecard is already published 
with the relevant Cabinet report, but this time it needs to be placed on the web 
as a separate background document as that won’t be published in time. In 
addition, because it’s the end of the year, there is also the annual corporate 
scorecard. Copy of scorecards attached to my covering email. 
 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/13770/strategic_performance_report
_q3_oct-dec_2012 ] 
 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Chair’s briefing – Monday, 17th June 2013 
 
 
Members: 
Councillor Tony Ferrari (Chairman) 
Councillor Sue Anderson (Vice-Chair Elect) 
 
Officer attendees: 
Brian Jones, Public Health Business Manager (item2) 
Simon George, Director of Finance & Assurance (item 3) 
Martin Randall, Senior Professional, Corporate Performance & Planning (item 4) 
Guy Fiegehen, Scrutiny Officer 
 
 
NOTES 
 
1. Welcome/introductions 

The Chairman and Vice-Chair Elect welcomed officers attending. 
 

2. Matters arising from the last P&F: 
- Public Health Transition and Expected Running Costs 
The previous Chair and Vice-Chairman had requested further briefing on the financial 
information provided following the P&F meeting on 29th January 2013, especially the 
£17 million of ‘transfer payments’. The Public Health Business Manager apologised that 
little explanation had been provided and elaborated on the detail in the two tables. 
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chair Elect requested a written explanatory overview including: 
background and context; clarification of the funding arrangements for the service; and 
reasons for differences in income levels and spending patterns between Barnet and 
Harrow. In view of the time since Members made their request the Chairman and 
Vice-Chair Elect asked to see the note before the Sub-Committee’s meeting on 11th July. 
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chair Elect thanked the Public Health Business Manager for 
attending. 

 
3. Q4 Finance – Update 

The Director of Finance & Assurance said the Q4 update was in effect the Capital and 
Revenue Outturn report to Cabinet on 20th June. It had been a good year financially for the 
council including a £1million underspend. The spending protocol to incur discretionary 
spending only if absolutely necessary had had a key role. As well as setting up specific 
reserves for the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) implementation cost of 
£4.8 million and adding another £1 million to the general reserve fund officers were 
recommending a Business Risk Reserve of £1.7 million. 
 
The Chairman and Vice-Chair Elect asked to see the list of disputed contracts underlying 
the Business Risk Reserve and that in presenting his report to P&F on 11th July the 
Director of Finance & Assurance explain the 50% under spend on capital. 
 

23



4. Corporate Scorecard Q4 2012/13 and update on indicators identified for further 
monitoring 
The scorecard was reviewed and updates considered: detailed comments and follow-up 
actions are identified in Appendix B. The Chairman and Vice-Chair Elect said they wanted 
the ‘Watch List’ for further monitoring to focus only on those items Members expect they 
can do something about before the next council elections in the rest of this council and 
asked for those that did not fit this criterion to be removed. 
 

5. P&F sub-committee meeting – 11th July 2013 
The provisional agenda items were confirmed as follows: 
 

1. Appointment of Vice-Chair 
2. P&F Chairman's report (Guy Fiegehen) 
3. Revenue and capital monitoring 2012-13 Quarter 4 (Simon George) 
4. Revenue and capital outturn 2012-13 (Simon George) 
5. Children and Families: Performance Issues (Catherine Doran) 
6. Private Rented Sector review: progress report (Lynne Pennington/Alison Pegg) 
 

   
Guy Fiegehen 
Scrutiny Officer 
June 2013 

24



P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
5

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
t 

P
&

F
 C

h
a
ir

m
a
n

's
 b

ri
e
fi

n
g

 (
W

a
tc

h
 L

is
t)

 -
 U

p
d

a
te

d
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

 o
n

 1
7
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
4
 s

ta
tu

s
U

p
d

a
te

 a
t 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 Q

4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

K
e
e
p

in
g

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 c

le
a
n

, 
g

re
e
n

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

N
I 
3
2
 -

 r
e
p
e
a
t 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e

Q
3
, 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
H

G
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
e
 u

s
u
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
n
 e

v
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 b

o
th

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
p
e
rs

. 
If

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

 

w
is

h
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 t
h
is

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
v
e
n
t 
o
r 

m
o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
, 
it
 i
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

a
tt
e
n
d
 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
C

h
a
ir

m
a
n
’s

 B
ri

e
fi
n
g
 o

r 
a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o
 

N
I 
1
8
4
 F

o
o
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h
 f

o
o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 l
a
w

Q
2
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
: 
N

e
w

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
in

s
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
re

, 
b
y
 

d
e
fa

u
lt
, 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 "

n
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t"

. 
T

h
is

 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
.

In
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
o
v
e
r 

5
0
 n

e
w

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 (

m
a
in

ly
 h

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
).

 T
h
is

 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
n
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

s
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
lly

 Q
4
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 d
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
y
e
a
r.

 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

to
 b

e
 i
n
v
it
e
d
 t
o
 n

e
x
t 
C

h
a
ir

m
a
n
's

 

b
ri

e
fi
n
g
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
.

Y
e
s

N
I 
1
9
2
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
t 

fo
r 

re
-u

s
e
, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
L
R

N
e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
o
n
 w

h
y
 t
h
is

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 r

e
d
, 
w

h
a
t 
re

m
e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

ta
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

m
e
a
n
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

L
a
n
d
fi
ll 

T
a
x
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
.

Y
e
s

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

25



P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
5

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
4
 s

ta
tu

s
U

p
d

a
te

 a
t 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 Q

4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
: 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
a
 –

 l
it
te

r 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
b
 –

 d
e
tr

it
u
s
 

- 
N

I 
1
9
5
c
 –

 g
ra

ff
it
i 

Q
2
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(l
it
te

r/
 

d
e
tr

it
u
s
);

 

Q
4
, 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

(g
ra

ff
it
i)

H
R

H
R

H
R

N
o
 n

e
w

 s
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 Q

4
 -

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 d

e
ri

v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
re

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
.T

h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 

fo
r 

lit
te

r 
w

e
re

 I
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 &

 W
a
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

O
th

e
r 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
.

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

b
in

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 4

 

v
a
ri

a
n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fr

o
m

 Q
1
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

o
n
w

a
rd

s
, 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
w

 o
n
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

d
is

ti
n
g
u
is

h
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
(p

ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
).

 [
N

o
te

 -
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 c

o
u
n
t 
b
o
th

.]

F
e
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

' v
ie

w
 t
h
a
t 

a
) 

c
o
m

b
in

in
g
 f

o
u
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
to

 o
n
e
 m

a
y
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

e
in

g
 

m
a
s
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 

b
) 

if
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
s
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 L

it
te

r 
a
n
d
 G

ra
ff

it
i 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
.

Y
e
s

U
n

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
: 

a
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 t

h
a
t 

li
s
te

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
d

s

H
o
w

 w
e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 d

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 

(I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e
r)

Q
1
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
-

N
o
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

in
 Q

4
, 
n
e
x
t 
re

p
o
rt

 a
t 
Q

1
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

e
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s

Q
1
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
H

R
S

e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

Q
4
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 m

o
s
t 

in
 n

e
e
d

- 
 a

d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(s

a
m

e
 

a
s
 N

I 
1
5
0
 -

 n
a
m

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
)

Q
1
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
L
G

7
7
 /
 6

7
9
 =

 1
1
.3

%
 (

ta
rg

e
t 
1
1
%

)
R

e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o

It
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
c
lin

e
, 
a
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 

is
 a

 s
ta

ti
c
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 w
h
ic

h
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

ra
w

n
. 
In

e
v
it
a
b
ly

, 
n
o
t 
e
v
e
ry

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 H
a
rr

o
w

 w
is

h
e
s
 t
o
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 d

o
n
e
 s

o
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

ir
s
t 
b
e
g
a
n
 (

h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
1
).

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 n

e
w

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
e
ir

 m
in

d
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 (

o
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 h

e
a
rd

 o
f 

it
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

),
 m

o
s
t 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 m

o
v
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 p

o
o
l 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

.

T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
s
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

, 
c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
le

 r
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 m

o
v
e
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

r 
a
s
 t
h
e
ir

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
, 
m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 

2
0
0
0
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

o
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 8

9
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 2

4
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

9
1
9
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 t
h
in

k
 a

re
 r

e
a
lis

ti
c
a
lly

 a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
a
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 o

f 
1
1
2
0
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

to
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
.

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

26



P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
5

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
4
 s

ta
tu

s
U

p
d

a
te

 a
t 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 Q

4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

- 
%

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 

w
it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

L
R

5
3
9
 /
 6

7
9
 =

 7
9
.4

%
 (

ta
rg

e
t 
8
8
%

)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 u

s
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 2
1
s
t 
in

 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
o
 1

5
th

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 (
c
a
u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

) 
- 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

1
8
 -

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 (
n
o
t 
ro

lli
n
g
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 s
ta

te
d
)

Q
2
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
N

o
n
e
 (

n
o
 

ta
rg

e
t)

S
e
p
a
ra

te
 n

o
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t
N

o

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
e
p
is

o
d
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
4
 h

rs

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

1
 J

u
ly

.

Y
e
s

%
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 u

s
in

g
 C

A
F

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
n
o
 d

a
ta

N
e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

1
 J

u
ly

.

Y
e
s

In
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 

d
a
y
s

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

a
s
 a

b
o
v
e

Y
e
s

(P
A

F
 C

6
4
) 

 T
im

in
g
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

(N
I 
6
0
)

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

a
s
 a

b
o
v
e

Y
e
s

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
: 

- 
T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 

in
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 n

e
e
d

Q
2
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(a
s
 a

 s
u
it
e
)

H
G

N
o

- 
N

I 
1
5
6
 -

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

H
G

N
o

- 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r

H
R

W
e
 s

ti
ll 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
o
b
ta

in
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 
w

e
 w

e
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 B

&
B

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 b
e
lo

w
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

.

S
ta

tu
s
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

.
Y

e
s

- 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

L
G

N
o

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

27



P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
5

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
4
 s

ta
tu

s
U

p
d

a
te

 a
t 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 Q

4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

e
x
-B

V
 2

1
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
-l

e
t 
L
A

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 (

d
a
y
s
)

Q
2
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 Q

4
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

D
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 o

n
 t
im

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
tr

u
g
g
le

 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 f

o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 

b
u
t 
n
e
w

 s
te

p
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

.

A
 n

e
w

 V
o
id

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 V

o
id

 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 i
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
-l

e
tt
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 a

le
rt

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

e
la

y
s
 b

e
lo

w
 (

fr
o
m

 

M
a
g
g
ie

 C
h
a
llo

n
e
r)

:

E
a
rl

y
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
n
 

h
o
w

 m
u
c
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

re
le

t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
n
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 y
e
t 

b
e
in

g
 s

e
e
n
. 
O

n
 t
h
is

 b
a
s
is

, 
C

h
a
ir

m
a
n
 a

n
d
 V

ic
e
-

C
h
a
ir

 t
o
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r'
s
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
n
e
x
t 
b
ri

e
fi
n
g
.

Y
e
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
to

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
, 
o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s

V
is

it
s
 t
o
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 -

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 

v
is

it
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 t
h
e
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

th
a
t 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 a
n
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

Y
e
s

In
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 c

it
e
d
 a

re
 a

ll 
lin

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 -

 i
.e

. 
b
o
th

 m
o
v
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

in
g
le

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 3
 a

re
a
 b

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 t
h
a
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 u

n
ti
l 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

S
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 "

n
e
w

" 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
o
lv

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 o

n
 a

ll 
v
o
id

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 
A

 l
o
t 
o
f 

th
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 t
o
 n

e
w

 p
e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 t
h
e
 r

o
p
e
s
 (

b
o
th

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

) 
a
n
d
 g

e
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 r

ig
h
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
in

g
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 I
 a

m
 n

o
w

 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
s
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
-a

n
d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

T
h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 n
o
w

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
:

• 
In

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
o
id

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 b
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 s

ta
ff

e
d
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
n
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 h
o
ld

in
g
 3

 v
o
id

s
 i
n
 

a
 m

o
n
th

 t
o
 h

o
ld

in
g
 1

6
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

o
n
th

• 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 a
b
o
u
t 
w

h
e
n
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 v

o
u
c
h
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
c
o
m

in
g
 t
e
n
a
n
t

• 
O

rd
e
rs

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

• 
D

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
o
rd

e
r 

o
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 v
o
id

• 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 p
o
s
t 
w

o
rk

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
b
o
th

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 t
a
k
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

ff
 n

e
w

 v
o
id

s
 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s

• 
N

o
 d

e
ta

ils
 g

iv
e
n
 o

f 
v
o
id

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ip
e
lin

e
, 
a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

• 
In

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
fo

 g
iv

e
n
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
-m

a
k
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 w

o
rs

e
 t
h
a
n
 i
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 w
a
s

• 
P

o
o
r/

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il

T
h
e
 o

n
ly

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
, 
a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 w
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 a

ff
e
c
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

:

• 
D

e
la

y
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 u

ti
lit

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

• 
P

o
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 r

e
q
u
ir

in
g
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

s

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

28



P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
5

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
 

S
e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

Q
4
 s

ta
tu

s
U

p
d

a
te

 a
t 

Q
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 Q

4
 

m
e
e
ti

n
g

K
e
e
p

 o
n

 W
a
tc

h
 

L
is

t?

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 h

e
a
lt

h
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti

v
e

%
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

Q
1
, 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
L
G

S
e
p
a
ra

te
 n

o
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

u
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
t 
Q

4
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t.
N

o

%
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

Q
1
, 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

(f
o
rm

e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 Q

2
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
)

H
R

In
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

e
re

 8
5
%

 w
h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 o

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
.

Y
e
s

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti

v
e

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 I
P

A
D

 i
n
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
Q

2
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
o
 9

1
%

 o
v
e
ra

ll,
 b

ro
k
e
n
 

d
o
w

n
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 8

4
%

C
h
ild

re
n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 9

4
%

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 9

0
%

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
&

 E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 9

3
%

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 w
a
tc

h
 l
is

t.
N

o

T
o
ta

l 
d
e
b
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
d
e
b
t 

ra
is

e
d
 [
Y

T
D

]

Q
1
, 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
L
G

Q
4
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 7

5
%

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 7

5
%

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

(i
ii)

 L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 -
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
is

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
(h

e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
d
a
ta

) 
b
u
t 
ra

th
e
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 y

e
a
r 

ru
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

to
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 A

p
ri

l 

to
 M

a
rc

h
. 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 w

a
s
 3

7
.8

6
%

 a
n
d
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
 w

a
s
 5

2
.2

5
%

, 
w

it
h
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

8
0
%

 b
y
 3

0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
T

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

a
s
 £

1
0
2
,5

4
3
. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

re
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
is

h
 t
o
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 (

n
o
t 

th
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

).

N
o

%
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
v
a
ri

a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 b
u
d
g
e
t:
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

In
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 1

1
 J

u
ly

 w
h
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 

h
a
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
.

Y
e
s

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
re

n
t 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 %

 o
f 

re
n
t 
ro

ll
Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
L
R

N
e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

Y
e
s

O
v
e
ra

ll 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
te

n
a
n
ts

' r
e
n
t 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 (
£
k
)

Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
N

e
w

ly
 l
is

te
d
.

Y
e
s

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 p
la

n
n
e
d
.

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



K
e
e
p

in
g

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 c

le
a
n

, 
g

re
e
n

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a

s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

Q
3

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

N
I 
3

2
 R

e
p

e
a

t 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

"
3

0
%

1
6

%
H
G

2
5

%
1

4
%

H
G

2
5

%
5

%
H
G

 
 

N
I 
4

0
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

rs
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t

 
4

1
3

4
1

9
L
G

4
3

8
4

3
2

A
n
o
n
e

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
"

1
,7

6
2

2
,0

6
1

H
R

5
6

0
5

0
2

H
G

4
7

5
6

0
0

H
R

 
N

I 
1

5
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

"
2

9
9

1
8

3
H
G

3
7

3
6

L
G

3
8

4
0

L
R

 
!

N
I 
1

6
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 r

a
te

"
4

,1
5

5
4

,7
2

0
H
R

1
,1

4
3

1
,1

2
9

L
G

1
,1

4
3

1
,2

9
8

H
R

 
!

N
I 
1

8
4

 F
o

o
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g

ie
n

e
 l
a

w

 
7

6
%

7
1

%
L
R

7
6

%
7

0
%

L
R

7
6

%
6

8
%

H
R

!
!

N
I 
1

9
1

 R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 

(k
g

)

"
1

3
5

1
3

6
A

1
3

5
n
o
n
e

1
3

5
n
o
n
e

N
I 
1

9
2

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

n
t 
fo

r 

re
u

s
e

, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

 
5

0
%

4
3

%
L
R

5
0

%
n
o
n
e

5
0

%
4

6
%

L
R

 
 

N
I 
1

9
5

a
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 L
it
te

r

"
6

%
4

%
H
G

6
%

1
5

%
H
R

6
%

9
%

H
R

!
 

N
I 
1

9
5

b
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

  
D

e
tr

it
u

s

"
9

%
4

%
H
G

9
%

1
1

%
H
R

9
%

1
4

%
H
R

!
!

N
I 
1

9
5

c
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 G
ra

ff
it
i.

"
3

%
7

%
H
R

3
%

5
%

H
R

3
%

6
%

H
R

 
!

N
I 
1

9
5

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 F
ly

 p
o

s
ti
n

g
.

"
1

%
1

%
L
G

1
%

1
%

L
G

1
%

2
%

H
R

!
!

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
1
 -

A
p
p

e
n
d
ix

 C

31



U
n

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 i

n
v
o

lv
e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
: 

a
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 t
h

a
t 

li
s
te

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
d

s

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a

s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
3

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
a

te
 t
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
' p

a
n

e
l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 
5

5
%

5
7

%
L
G

5
7

%
n
o
n
e

5
7

%
N

o
 s

u
rv

e
y

%
 w

h
o

 a
re

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

ru
n

s
 

th
in

g
s
 (

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e

r)

 
N

o
 T

ra
c
k
e

r
6

0
%

5
7

%
A

N
o

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r
n
o
n
e

%
 w

h
o

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

g
iv

e
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 

g
o

o
d

 V
fM

 (
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e

r)

 
N

o
 T

ra
c
k
e

r
3

8
%

3
7

%
A

N
o

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r
n
o
n
e

C
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
' v

ie
w

s
 w

h
e

n
 

m
a

k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 (

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e

r)

 
N

o
 T

ra
c
k
e

r
3

2
%

3
1

%
A

N
o

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r
n
o
n
e

%
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 (
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
T

ra
c
k
e

r)

 
N

o
 T

ra
c
k
e

r
3

2
%

2
6

%
H
R

N
o

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r
n
o
n
e

H
o

w
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e

d
 d

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

l 
(I

n
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

T
ra

c
k
e

r)

 
N

o
 T

ra
c
k
e

r
5

7
%

5
4

%
L
R

N
o

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r
n
o
n
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

tr
a

in
e

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

 
1

,5
0

0
1

,1
1

0
H
R

n
o
n
e

2
,0

0
0

9
1

9
H
R

 

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
2
 -

A
p
p

e
n
d
ix

 C

32



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 m
o

s
t 

in
 n

e
e

d

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a
s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
 
!

o
r

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
3
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

R
e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
- 

%
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 
7
0
%

7
4
.6

%
H
G

7
2
%

7
9
.3

%
H
G

7
2
%

7
8
%

H
G

 
!

%
 O

v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

t 
re

a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
s
 

's
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
' 
o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r

 
9
3
%

H
G

9
6
%

n
o
n
e

9
5
%

n
o
n
e

 
!

N
I 
1
4
6
 %

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

 
1
8
%

1
8
.2

%
L
G

1
4
.0

%
1
3
.9

%
A

1
8
.0

%
1
8
.7

%
L
G

 
 

E
4
8
 -

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

0
.9

-1
.1

1
.0

2
%

H
G

0
.9

-1
.1

1
.0

4
G

0
.9

-1
.1

1
.0

4
G

N
I 
1
5
0
 %

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(s

a
m

e
 

a
s
 N

I 
1
5
0
 -

 n
a
m

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
)

 
1
2
%

6
.1

%
H
R

1
0
.0

%
6
.5

%
H
R

1
1
.0

%
1
1
.3

%
L
G

 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 (
n
o
t 
c
a
re

rs
, 

n
o
t 
M

H
 f

o
r 

n
o
w

) 
e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 o

n
e
 (

o
f 

a
n
y
 t
y
p
e
).

 
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

8
9
.0

%
7
7
.9

%
H
R

1
0
0
.0

%
9
1
.8

%
L
R

 

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
 o

r 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s

 
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

6
9
.0

%
6
5
.9

%
A

7
0
.0

%
6
8
.7

%
A

 

%
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 
w

it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

8
8
.0

%
7
9
.8

%
L
R

8
8
.0

%
7
9
.4

%
L
R

!

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 (
c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

) 
- 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

1
8
 -

 r
o
lli

n
g
 y

e
a
r

"
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

4
.8

n
o
n
e

4
.0

n
o
n
e

 

C
a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

a
s
 %

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
)

 
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

3
8
.0

%
3
5
.8

%
L
R

5
5
.0

%
6
9
.2

%
H
G

 

%
 o

f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

b
s
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
g
e
 C

L
A

, 
in

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

"
1
2
%

1
5
.6

%
H
R

1
2
%

7
.6

%
H
G

1
2
.0

%
8
.4

%
H
G

 
!

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r:

 r
a
te

 o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
L
A

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

"
0
.0

1
%

0
%

H
G

0
%

0
%

H
G

0
%

0
%

H
G

"
"

C
h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r:

 R
a
te

 o
f 

fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
L
A

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

"
5
%

1
7
.6

4
%

H
R

5
%

2
.7

%
H
G

1
0
.0

%
8
.5

%
H
G

 
!

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

"
0
.0

3
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

s
p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

)

0
.0

4
%

H
R

0
.0

2
%

0
.0

4
%

H
R

0
.0

3
%

0
.0

2
%

H
G

 
 

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
3
 -

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 C

33



T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a
s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
 
!

o
r

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
3
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

"
0
.7

8
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

s
p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

)

1
.0

6
%

H
R

0
.7

0
%

0
.8

1
%

H
R

0
.9

7
%

0
.6

7
%

H
G

 
 

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

"
5
.6

%
 

(s
u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

)

5
.2

4
%

 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

)
H
G

4
.5

%
4
.9

6
%

H
R

4
.5

0
%

4
.7

3
%

L
R

 
 

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

"
6
.7

%
 

(s
u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

)

5
.2

%
 

(a
u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

)
H
G

5
.0

%
5
.3

3
%

L
R

5
.0

0
%

5
.6

8
%

H
R

 
!

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

g
o
o
d
 o

r 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

L
G

1
0
0
%

9
0
%

L
R

1
0
0
%

9
0
%

L
R

!
"

P
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 

o
r 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r

 
9
5
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

9
5
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

9
5
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

"
"

%
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
e
p
is

o
d
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 

2
4
 h

rs
 

 
6
0
%

6
6
%

H
G

7
0
%

6
3
.6

%
L
R

7
0
.0

%
6
1
.0

%
H
R

!
!

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

"
1
6

1
2

H
G

1
0

1
0

L
G

8
6

H
G

 
 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 
5
0

8
4

H
G

1
0
5

1
2
8

H
G

1
0
5

1
3
5

H
G

 
 

%
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 u

s
in

g
 C

A
F

 
1
0
0
%

2
7
%

H
R

n
o
n
e

n
o
n
e

In
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 d

a
y
s

 
8
5
%

7
1
%

H
R

8
5
%

4
3
.2

%
H
R

8
5
.0

%
5
1
.9

%
H
R

!
 

(P
A

F
 C

6
4
) 

T
im

in
g
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 (
N

I 
6
0
)

 
8
3
%

8
4
%

L
G

8
3
%

6
3
.7

%
H
R

8
3
.0

%
6
5
.8

%
H
R

!
 

N
I 
1
9
 R

a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

"
n
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

1
.2

2
n
o
n
e

n
o
n
e

N
I 
1
1
1
 F

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 1

0
-1

7

"
n
o
 t
a
rg

e
t

2
6

n
o
n
e

n
o
n
e

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
4
 -

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 C

34



T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a
s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
 
!

o
r

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
3
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

N
I 
1
1
7
 1

6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

)

"
3
.5

0
%

3
.6

%
2
.0

%
H
G

3
.6

%
2
.0

%
H
G

 
!

N
I 
1
5
5
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

(g
ro

s
s
)

 
2
8
5

4
0
8

H
G

2
3
0

2
4
3

H
G

2
7
5

2
7
8

L
G

 
"

T
o
ta

l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 n
e
e
d

"
6
0

1
1
0

H
R

1
0
5

8
4

H
G

1
5
0

1
1
5

H
G

 
 

N
I 
1
5
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

"
4
2
0

4
0
0

L
G

4
0
0

3
7
3

H
G

4
0
0

3
6
0

H
G

"
"

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
 a

s
s
is

t 
w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r

 
2
5
0

2
5
6

L
G

2
6
0

2
0
7

H
R

4
0
0

2
4
8

H
R

 
"

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

 
1
,0

0
0

1
,1

3
3

H
G

7
5
5

8
3
3

H
G

1
0
5
0

1
0
5
1

L
G

 
"

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
: 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 (
w

e
e
k
s
)

"
3
5

3
2

H
G

3
5

2
1

H
G

3
5
.0

0
2
9
.0

0
H
G

"
 

D
F

G
s
: 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 

D
F

G
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
d
a
te

 (
w

e
e
k
s
)

"
3
5

2
1

H
G

3
5

1
0

H
G

3
5

1
3

H
G

"
 

e
x
-B

V
2
1
2
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
-l
e
t 
L
A

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

(d
a
y
s
) 

"
2
1

2
0
.4

L
G

2
1

3
5
.8

H
R

2
1

3
6
.3

H
R

 
 

e
x
-B

V
6
4
 P

ri
v
a
te

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 i
n
to

 u
s
e

 
2
0
0

2
7
1

H
G

1
5
0

1
6
6

H
G

2
0
0

2
5
9

H
G

 
"

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
5
 -

A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 C

35



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
to

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
, 

o
u

r 
lo

c
a
l 

s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a
s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
3
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

V
is

it
s
 t

o
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 -
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s

 
1
2
,0

0
0

6
,3

2
4

H
R

6
,1

2
0

n
o
n
e

4
,9

6
3

n
o
n
e

 
 

V
is

it
s
 t

o
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 -

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s

 
2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
8
5
,4

9
5

H
G

2
7
5
,0

0
0

2
7
4
,8

8
0

A
2
7
5
,0

0
0

2
7
7
,5

6
3

L
G

 
!

V
is

it
s
 t

o
 L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 -

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s

 
3
1
5
,0

0
0

3
1
0
,5

3
3

A
3
1
5
,0

0
0

2
8
3
,8

4
8

L
R

3
1
5
,0

0
0

2
7
7
,5

2
5

H
R

 
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
p
a
ti
a
l 
v
is

io
n

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

H
G

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

H
G

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

H
G

"
"

H
o
u
rs

 o
f 

u
s
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 c
o
m

p
u
te

rs
 -

 n
o
 t

a
rg

e
t

 
N

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t

2
2
,2

6
4

1
4
,5

9
0

n
o
n
e

1
1
,8

6
6

n
o
n
e

 
 

T
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 
"

6
.9

8
.7

H
R

8
.3

0
%

7
.9

0
%

L
G

8
.3

0
%

8
.3

0
%

L
G

!
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

in
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

1
.6

0
%

1
.6

0
%

L
G

1
.6

0
%

1
.6

0
%

L
G

"

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
6
 -

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C

36



C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 h
e

a
lt

h
 p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti

v
e

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a

s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

Q
3

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
3

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

Q
4

 T
a

rg
e

t 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 A
c

tu
a

l 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

Q
4

 S
ta

tu
s

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

N
I 
1

4
 P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 a

v
o

id
a

b
le

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

in
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

H
a

rr
o

w

"
2

0
%

1
6

%
H
G

1
8

%
1

9
%

L
R

1
8

%
1

8
%

L
G

 
!

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
d

a
y
s
 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 

O
m

b
u

d
s
m

a
n

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts

"
2

8
3

0
L
R

2
8

2
2

H
G

2
8

2
1

H
G

!
!

%
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 t
o

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
 

8
5

%
8

7
%

L
G

9
0

%
6

1
%

H
R

9
0

%
9

1
%

L
G

!
!

R
e

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 
- 

ra
te

 
 

8
0

%
9

1
%

H
G

9
0

%
9

0
%

L
G

9
0

%
9

0
%

L
G

 
"

%
 o

f 
O

n
e

 S
to

p
 S

h
o

p
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
/ 
v
e

ry
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d

 
9

5
%

9
6

%
L
G

9
5

%
9

6
%

L
G

9
5

%
9

6
%

L
G

"
"

O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 (

m
in

.s
e

c
)

"
1

5
:0

0
1

5
:0

0
L
G

1
5

:0
0

0
3

:2
0

H
G

1
5

:0
0

0
4

:4
0

H
G

!
 

%
 o

f 
C

o
n

ta
c
t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 c
a

lls
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 3

0
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

s
 

 
9

0
%

9
0

%
L
G

9
0

%
9

1
%

L
G

9
0

%
8

3
%

L
R

 
 

%
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

lls
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 (

<
5

%
 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
)

"
5

%
3

%
H
G

5
%

3
%

H
G

5
%

5
%

L
G

 
 

%
 o

f 
 e

m
a

ils
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 i
n

 <
7

2
 h

rs
 (

A
c
c
e

s
s
 

H
a

rr
o

w
)

 
9

5
%

9
6

%
L
G

9
5

%
9

6
%

L
G

9
5

%
9

6
%

L
G

"
"

%
 o

f 
 w

e
b

 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 i
n

 <
2

4
 h

rs
 (

A
c
c
e

s
s
 

H
a

rr
o

w
)

 
9

5
%

9
9

%
L
G

9
5

%
9

9
%

L
G

9
5

%
9

9
%

L
G

"
"

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 c

o
s
t 
p

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 (

£
) 

(A
c
c
e

s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

)
"

0
.8

5
0

.7
3

H
G

£
1

.0
0

£
0

.8
4

H
G

£
1

.0
0

£
0

.8
2

H
G

 
!

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
w

e
b

 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

b
 v

is
it
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
ta

c
t

 
6

0
%

6
5

%
H
G

6
0

%
6

1
%

L
G

6
0

%
6

1
%

L
G

 
"

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
' s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 (
%

) 

(t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
) 

 
8

8
%

9
0

%
L
G

9
5

%
n
o
n
e

9
5

%
9

2
%

A
!

%
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

N
e

w
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

6
0

%
7

5
%

H
G

6
0

%
7

5
%

H
G

"

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

N
e

w
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

9
0

%
7

3
%

H
R

9
0

%
7

3
%

H
R

"

Q
u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3

- 
7
 -

A
p

p
e

n
d
ix

 C

37



R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 P
e

rs
p

e
c

ti
v
e

T
it

le
 o

f 
M

e
a
s
u

re

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

Q
3
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
3
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
4
 T

a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Q
4
 S

ta
tu

s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

4
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 Q

3
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

B
V

1
2
 P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)

"
7
.1

4
7
.3

5
A

7
.1

4
7
.8

2
L
R

7
.1

4
7
.8

0
L
R

 
P

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)

"
8
.8

8
8
.5

8
n
o
n
e

8
.9

4
n
o
n
e

 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 I

P
A

D
 i
n
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

9
5
%

8
5
%

H
R

9
5
%

8
9
%

L
R

9
5
%

9
1
%

A
!

!
T

o
ta

l 
d
e
b
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
, 

a
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 

to
ta

l 
d
e
b
t 

ra
is

e
d

 
7
5
%

7
8
%

L
G

7
5
%

6
7
%

H
R

7
5
%

7
5
%

L
G

 
!

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
b
to

r 
d
a
y
s

"
8
8

1
2

H
G

6
0

3
0

H
G

6
0

2
2

H
G

 
!

%
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s

 
9
5
%

6
8
%

H
R

7
5
%

7
6
%

L
G

7
5
%

7
2
%

A
!

 
%

 o
f 

S
A

P
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

rd
e
rs

 r
a
is

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 

d
a
te

 
9
0
%

8
3
%

L
R

8
1
%

8
8
%

H
G

8
1
%

8
9
%

H
G

!
!

N
I 

1
8
1
 T

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t/

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 D
W

P
 D

S
O

 (
d
a
y
s
)

"
9

6
.0

2
H
G

9
.0

0
8
.5

5
H
G

9
.0

0
6
.8

2
H
G

 
!

%
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 n
e
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

0
%

-8
5
%

R
0
.0

0
%

-1
.1

3
%

G
0
%

-0
.6

%
G

!
!

%
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 b
u
d
g
e
t:

 c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

0
%

4
5
%

R
0
%

-2
5
.6

0
%

R
0
%

-5
6
.2

%
R

 
 

B
V

9
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

9
7
.0

0
%

9
7
.8

0
%

L
G

8
5
.0

0
%

8
5
.0

7
%

L
G

9
7
.0

0
%

9
7
.7

0
%

L
G

 
!

B
V

1
0
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

9
6
.7

5
%

9
6
.2

0
%

A
8
6
.7

5
%

8
5
.6

3
%

A
9
7
.0

0
%

9
5
.4

6
%

A
 

!
%

 o
f 

c
o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 f

o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 S

A
P

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 
N

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

Q
4

1
0
0
%

8
6
%

H
R

-
N

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

e
x
-B

V
6
6
a
 L

A
 r

e
n
t 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

rr
e
a
rs

: 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

n
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
  

 

 
9
8
.5

0
%

9
9
.0

3
%

L
G

9
8
.3

0
%

9
7
.7

9
%

A
9
9
.2

5
%

9
8
.3

9
%

A
 

!
C

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 %

 o
f 

re
n
t 

ro
ll

"
2
.1

5
%

1
.6

4
%

H
G

1
.5

5
%

1
.6

5
%

L
R

1
.5

0
%

1
.5

8
%

L
R

!
!

O
v
e
ra

ll 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

' 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 (
£
k
)

"
4
5
0

4
0
1

H
G

3
7
2

4
3
3

H
R

3
5
0

4
1
4

H
R

 
!

O
v
e
ra

ll 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 (
£
k
)

"
1
0
0

8
7

H
G

n
o
n
e

n
o
n
e

IT
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
s
k
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

 
1
0
0
%

9
9
.9

6
%

A
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

L
G

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

L
G

!
"

IT
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

 
9
9
.1

6
%

9
9
.7

6
%

L
G

9
9
.1

6
%

9
9
.6

8
%

L
G

9
9
.1

6
%

9
9
.2

5
%

L
G

 
 

IT
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

(i
n
te

rn
a
l)
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

"
2

3
.6

6
H
R

2
.0

0
7
.0

0
H
R

2
.0

0
7
.6

0
H
R

 
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o

re
c
a

rd
 Q

4
 2

0
1

2
/1

3

- 
8

 -

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

38



U
n

it
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
: 

a
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 t

h
a
t 

li
s
te

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
d

s

N
I 
R

e
f:

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

A
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
ta

tu
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

A
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

N
I 
8

A
d

u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

1
8

.3
%

1
8

.9
%

L
G

1
8

.4
%

1
9

.1
%

L
G

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
2
/1

3

- 
1
 -

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

39



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 m

o
s
t 

in
 n

e
e
d

A
Y

 =
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

N
I 
R

e
f:

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

?

A
Y

 2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
Y

 2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

A
Y

 2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
ta

tu
s

A
Y

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
Y

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

A
c
tu

a
l 

A
Y

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 A

Y
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

u
n

d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

t 
K

S
2

"
0

4
H
R

0
1

H
R

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
u

n
d

e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

t 
K

S
4

"
0

0
H
G

0
1

H
R

!
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
S

4
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 B

a
c
c
a

la
u

re
a

te
 

 

2
5

%
2

3
.7

%
L
R

2
5

%
2

1
.8

%
H
R

!

N
I 
7

2
N

I 
7

2
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 (

E
Y

F
S

P
) 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 

a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
a

g
e

 5
 

5
5

%
5

6
.0

%
L
G

5
8

%
6

0
.0

%
L
G

 

N
I 
7

3
N

I 
7

3
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 –
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

le
v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
th

s
 

7
9

%
7

8
%

A
8

2
%

8
3

.0
%

L
G

 

N
I 
7

5

N
I 
7

5
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 –
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 

A
*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
iv

 i
n

c
l 
G

C
S

E
 E

n
g

lis
h

 

a
n

d
 M

a
th

s

 
6

5
%

6
4

.6
%

A
6

5
%

6
3

.6
%

A
!

N
I 
9

2
N

I 
9

2
 N

a
rr

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

2
0

%
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

Y
F

S
P

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t

"
3

7
%

3
6

.5
%

L
G

3
4

.5
%

3
0

.8
%

H
G

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
"

0
.1

5
%

0
.0

7
%

H
G

0
.0

7
%

0
.1

0
%

H
R

!

A
n

n
u

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
F

ix
e

d
 T

e
rm

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
"

3
.8

5
%

3
.6

6
%

L
G

3
.6

6
%

3
.0

6
%

H
G

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
"

-
5

.1
5

%
-

5
.4

0
%

4
.5

7
%

H
G

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 r
a

te
 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
"

-
5

.9
3

%
-

6
%

5
.3

2
%

H
G

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
2
/1

3

- 
2
 -

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

40



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
to

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
, 
o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s

N
I 
R

e
f:

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
o

la
ri

ty
 

G
o

o
d

 t
o

 b
e
 

H
ig

h
  
!

o
r 

L
o

w
 "

2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

A
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
ta

tu
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3

T
a
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

A
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

to
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

N
I 
1

6
8

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

s
 w

h
e

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
"

8
%

5
%

H
G

8
%

1
0

%
H
R

 

N
I 
1

6
9

N
o

n
-p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 r

o
a

d
s
 w

h
e

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
"

7
%

7
%

L
G

7
%

5
%

H
G

!

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 2
0
1
2
/1

3

- 
3
 -

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 

Date: 

 

20 June 2013 

Subject: 

 

Revenue and Capital Outturn 2012-13 

Key Decision:   Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance & Assurance 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar (Leader and 
Portfolio Holder for Business Transformation and 
Communications,  Finance, Performance, 
Customer Services and Corporate Service, 
Property and Major Contracts) 

Exempt: 

 

No  

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

Yes 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 - Revenue Directorates Summary 
Appendix 2 - Capital Monitoring 
Appendix 3 – Housing Revenue Account  

 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out the Council’s revenue and capital outturn position for 2012-13 
 
Recommendations:  

1. Note the revenue and capital outturn position for 2012-13;  
2. Approve the contributions to reserves outlined in paragraph 3;  
3. Approve the net remaining revenue under spend of £0.996m is utilised 

to increase the general reserves from £7.650m to £8.646m; 
4. Approve the changes in quarter 4 and carry forwards on the capital 

programme outlined in paragraph 26 and set out at Appendix 2; and 
5. Note the timetable for accounts completion and external audit review 

as outlined in paragraph 29. 
 

Reason (for recommendation) 
To confirm the financial position as at 31 March 2013. 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 43 to 60

43



   

2 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The outturn of the Council at the end of the year is showing a net under spend of 

£0.996m after transfer to various reserves, which is a very significant achievement for 
the Council.  The Council has not only been able to deliver services within the 
approved budget but has also contained the pressures arising from the challenging 
financial environment and the risks around service demands.  This also meant that 
there were no calls on contingency as reported at quarter 3.  In addition, there were 
favourable variance on income budgets resulting from parking enforcement, rents from 
the investment property portfolio, investment returns and grant income.  This was 
offset by, additional contribution to the insurance provision of £0.900m for Municipal 
Mutual Insurance liability (MMI) as detailed in paragraph 15 of the main report.   

 
2. As reported at quarter 3 to the February 2013 Cabinet, Managers were asked to 

implement the spending protocol right through to the year-end to deliver a significant 
under spend to fund the cost of change and delivery of future year savings.  This was 
implemented by ensuring discretionary spend was only incurred if it was absolutely 
necessary and through vacancy management by implementing additional approval 
processes in respect of recruitment.   

 
3. It is recommended that this under spend is used to set up specific reserves for the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) implementation cost of £4.849m, Carry 
Forwards totalling £3.268m and a Business Risk reserve amounting to £1.691m as 
detailed in paragraphs 16 to 19.  It is recommended that the remaining balance of 
£0.996m is utilised to increase General Reserves from £7.650m to £8.646m.   

 
4. The contribution to the Provisions, General and Other reserves as mentioned above 

will increase the Council’s capacity to deliver services in a very challenging climate 
resulting from demographic pressures, economy, welfare reforms and pressures on 
formula grant funding. 

44



 

 3 

Introduction 
 

5. The total outturn for the Council after transfer to reserves for the financial year 2012-
13 is £172.117m against the approved budget of £173.113m which represents an 
under spend of £0.996m, a 0.6% variation to budget.   

 
Table 1 below summarises the position: 

Outturn %

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

3,854 Assistant Chief Executive 3,333 2,429 -904 -27.1 -329
3,379 Legal and Governance 3,230 3,325 95 2.9 229

18,634 Corporate Finance 20,809 19,526 -1,283 -6.2 75
25,867 Resources 27,372 25,280 -2,092 -7.6 -25

48,674 Environment 37,694 34,696 -2,998 -8.0 1,881
3,547 Enterprise 3,618 3,560 -58 -1.6 444

52,221 Environment & Enterprise 41,312 38,256 -3,056 -7.4 2,325

66,431 Community,Health and Wellbeing 75,880 75,712 -168 -0.2 -50
39,475 Childrens' and Families 48,096 47,850 -246 -0.5 -2,545

183,994 Sub Total Directorate 192,660 187,098 -5,562 -2.9 -295

-946 Inflation and Corporate Items 1,118 -661 -1,779 -159.1 -907
1,000 Contingency 1,000 0 -1,000 -100.0 -300

-8,327 Capital Financing -6,494 -8,303 -1,809 -27.9 -1,602
-2,608 Non Specific Grant -12,733 -12,766 -33 -0.3 0

Carry Forwards 2011-12 -2,438 -3,059 -621 -25.5 1,804
173,113 Sub Total 173,113 162,309 -10,804 6.2 -1,300

Contribution to Reserves

   MTFS Implementation cost 4,849 4,849
   Carry Forward Requests 12-13 3,268 3,268
   Business Risk 1,691 1,691

173,113 Total Budget Requirement 173,113 172,117 -996 0.6 -1,300

Original 

Budget

Latest 

Budget 
Directorate

 Provisional 

Outturn 

Variation 2011-12 

Outturn

 
Directorates’ Position  

6. The outturn for the Directorates is a favourable variance of £5.562m against the 
revised budget which represents 2.9%of the net budget of £192.660m.  The position 
for each directorate is summarised below and further details are provided in Appendix 
1 to this Report. 

 
Resources 

7. The provisional outturn position for the Resources Directorate is a favourable variance 
of £2.092m resulting mainly from Capita contract credits (£0.476m), Copier contract 
(£0.493m), Concessionary fares (£0.262m), additional income, External Audit Fees 
(£0.240m), slippage on one off projects and vacancy management.  This has been 
offset by pressures resulting from Cross cutting efficiencies, Learning and 
Development commissioning, additional procurement staffing costs, increase in 
Insurance Provision (£0.900m) and increase in legal cost resulting from higher volume 
of child protection cases.  

45



 

 4 

Environment and Enterprise 
8. The provisional outturn is a favourable variance of £3.056m resulting mainly from 

additional parking enforcement income (£0.968m), rental income (£0.315m), slippage 
in the delivery of highways work following the migration to a new contractor (£0.649m), 
delays in the Public Realm Integrated Service Model (PRISM) project (£0.156m) and 
vacancy and spending management (£1.2m).  This was offset by additional West 
London Waste Authority (WLWA) charges (£0.188m), shortfall of income on dry 
recyclables (£0.332m) and Building control fees (£0.248m). 

 
Community Health and Wellbeing 

9. The Directorate position is a net under spend of £0.168m.  The main contributing 
factors are under spend on Personalisation and Reablement budgets (£0.371m), 
Housing Needs budgets (£0.134m) and vacancy and spend management.  Some of 
these were offset by over spends on long term care (£0.202m) and Leisure Centre 
income shortfall (£0.481m) 

 
Children’s and Families 

10. The outturn position is an overspend of £0.162m which is offset by an under spend on 
the Troubled Families ring fenced grant (£0.408m) resulting in a net under spend of 
£0.246m.  The main areas of overspends are Targeted Services (£0.790m) due to 
agency staff and overtime and increase in Bad Debt provision (£0.286m).  This is 
offset by an under spend on Commissioning budgets (£0.231m), DSG funding for the 
nursery provision (£0.208m), Special Needs Transport (£0.120m) and vacancy 
management.   

 
Inflation and Corporate items 

11. The position shows a favourable variance of £1.779m which is mainly in respect of 
unused energy inflation, provisions and additional funding in respect of winter 
pressures.   

 
Contingency 

12. As previously reported there are no calls on the contingency and therefore £1m is 
contributing to the overall position. 

 
Capital Financing  

13. The outturn is a favourable variance of £1.809m resulting from increase in Investment 
returns (£0.909m) and Minimum Revenue Provision (£0.900m) due to slippage in 
delivery of the 2011-12 capital programme.  

 
Provisions 

14. The Council must hold adequate provisions against known events and in respect of its 
statutory duties as appropriate.  All the provisions are reviewed on a quarterly basis 
and in 2012-13 additional contributions were made to Bad Debt, Employees and 
Litigation provisions.   

 
15. Additionally, £0.900m contribution was made to the Insurance provision for Municipal 

Mutual Insurance (MMI) liability which was not budgeted for.  MMI was the insurer of 
Harrow Council prior to ceasing its underwriting operations in September 1992 and 
entering into a Scheme of Arrangement in 1993.  Council has been taking advice of 
the actuary, who has reviewed the position recently and considers it to be wholly 
appropriate and justifiable to provide for the £2.000m minimum future liability in 
relation to MMI claims.  The Council made a provision of £1.100m in 2011-12 and has 

46



 

 5 

made additional contribution of £0.900m in the current year, which will bring the 
provision for MMI liability to £2.000m. 

 
MTFS Implementation Cost 

16. The Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2013-14 identified one off implementation 
costs and potential redundancy costs of £5.694m to deliver the savings.  These costs 
were not included in the MTFS and the main funding source identified was the in year 
(2012-13) under spends arising from the spending protocol.  At the February 2013 
Cabinet, as part of the MTFS the Members approved a revised policy on General 
Reserves as outlined below: 

 
“The first call on any under spend at the end of the year will be to fund the one 
off cost to transition. A contribution to general balances will then be considered 
with regard to the size of the under spend, the underlying strength of the 
balance sheet and the need to support other priorities.” 

 
17. At year end the redundancy costs were reviewed along with the existing provisions 

which resulted in reduction of the overall implementation cost by £0.845m as detailed 
below.  In line with the strategy, part of the under spend is deployed to set up a 
reserve for the implementation cost. 
  £000 
One off implementation costs  904 
Potential Redundancy costs 7,363  
Less Provisions (2011-12 provision not utilised due to 
slippages) -2,418 4,945 
   
Less Budget provision in 2013-14 MTFS -1,000 -1,000 
Net requirement  4,849 

 
Carry Forwards 2011-12 and 2012-13 

18. The under spend on 2011-12 carry forwards is £0.621m which mainly represents 
savings and slippages on the one off projects.  The 2012-13 carry forward request of 
£3.268m mainly relates to ring fenced grants of £0.532m, slippages on projects 
funded by 2011-12 carry forwards (£0.347m) and also projects that were not 
completed in 2012-13 which is contributing to the overall directorates under spends.  
The carry forward request is summarised below:- 

Directorate Council 
Funding 

Grant 
Funding 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 

Resources 1,074 12 1,086 
Environment and Enterprise 782 33 815 
Community, Health and 
Wellbeing 

235 79 314 

Childrens’ and Families 38 408 446 
Corporate Items 260 0 260 
2011-12 roll forward 347 0 347 
Total 2,736 532 3,268 

 

47



 

 6 

Business Risk  
19. This is a new reserve established to contain contractual risk amounting to £1.691m.  

This represents additional funds required to cover potential risks around social care 
PCT pressure (£0.750m), Waste related costs (£0.381k) and other business risks 
(£0.560m). 

 
Transformation and Priority Initiatives Fund (TPIF) 

20. The total of £66k has been funded in respect of Harrow Card and Pot Holes from the 
TPIF fund resulting in a year end balance of £1.117m.  A total of £0.584m is 
committed against this fund in 2013-14 in respect of Pot Holes, Harrow Card, Circles 
of support and Welfare Reforms which will leave an uncommitted balance of £0.533m. 

 
General Reserves 

21. After assigning the under spends to fund MTFS implementation costs, Carry Forward 
Requests and Business Risks, it is recommended to allocate the balance of £0.996m 
to General Reserves which will increase the balance from £7.650m to £8.646m as 
detailed below.  

 
 General 

Fund 

 £000 

Balance b/fwd as at 01.04.2013 7,650 
Contribution 996 
Balance as at 31.03.2013 8,646 

 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

22. The surplus is £0.383m against a budget of £0.415m.  Main contributing factors are 
the revaluation losses of £0.490m relating to non dwellings, reduction in Service 
Charges income and increase in depreciation cost due to revised policy.  This is offset 
by savings resulting from vacancy management, reduction in utility and supplies and 
services costs, slippage in the Customer Initiative project and repairs expenditure.   

48



 

 7 

 
Capital 

23. The total capital programme at the end of the financial year stands at £31.842m 
(£24.288m General Fund and £7.554m HRA).  This is funded from Grants (7.389m, 
23.20%), Capital Receipts (£5.157m, 16.20%), Revenue Contribution (£8.068m, 
25.34%) and Borrowings (£11.228m, 35.26%).   

 

Directorate

Revised 

Budget Outturn

Total 

Variance Slippage

Under 

spends

Resources 12,472 4,415 -8,057 -8,057 0
Environment & Enterprise 18,494 11,220 -7,274 -7,006 -268
Community Health & Wellbeing 5,912 2,035 -3,877 -2,542 -1,335
Children's Services 18,616 6,618 -11,998 -11,998 0
Total Exp General Fund 55,494 24,288 -31,206 -29,603 -1,603

Funding:

Grant 21,575 7,329 -14,246 -14,076 -170
Section 106 469 42 -427 -427 0
RCCO 739 676 -63 -63 0
Capital Receipt 5,013 5,013 0 0 0
Borrowings 27,698 11,228 -16,470 -15,037 -1,433
Total Funding General Fund 55,494 24,288 -31,206 -29,603 -1,603

HRA 9,083 7,554 -1,529 -757 -772

Funding:

Grant 386 60 -326 -42 -284
Section 106 0 34 34 0 34
RCCO 8,697 7,392 -1,305 -715 -590
Capital Receipt 0 68 68 0 68
Total Funding HRA 9,083 7,554 -1,529 -757 -772  
24. The total variance on General Fund is £31.206m against a revised programme of 

£55.494m.  This represents slippage of £29.603m resulting mainly from Schools 
expansion programme (£5.7m), Primary Schools Development programme (£2.9m), 
Devolved Formula Capital (£1.0m), Information Technology (IT) projects (£7.7m), 
Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) camera extension project (£0.5m), Highways, street 
lighting programme (£2.5m), Environmental Improvement schemes (£2.2m), City Farm 
(£0.342m), Day Centre refurbishment and remodelling (£0.9m), IT systems for social 
care (£0.4m) and Headstone Manor project (£0.3m).  The balance of £1.603m is an 
under spend resulting from the Disabled Facilities Grant and various minor under 
spends within Environment and Enterprise directorate.   

 

25. The HRA capital programme is showing a spend of £7.554m against the revised 
programme of £9.083m resulting in a variance of £1.529m which includes a slippage 
of £0.757m and an under spend of £0.772m.   

 

26. The capital programme by directorate is included at Appendix 2 which provides an 
analysis of the changes during quarter 4 and slippage of £29.603m on GF and 
£0.757m on HRA.  The slippage is recommended for carry forwards and will be 
funded from Grants £14.118m (46.50%), Borrowing £15.037m (49.53%), Capital 
Receipts £0.427m (1.41%) and Revenue Contribution £0.778m (2.56%). 

49



 

 8 

Collection Fund 
27. The actual surplus for 2012-13 is £1.124m against an estimated surplus of £1.319m 

resulting in a small adverse variance of £0.195m.  This mainly resulted from lower 
billing (£0.298m) than estimated which was offset by decrease in bad debt provision 
requirement (£0.103) due to an improved collection rate as detailed below. 

 
28. The in-year Council tax collection rate for 2012-13 was 97.7% which is 0.7% above 

target and a tremendous achievement in the current economic climate.  Business rate 
collection was 95.46% which was below the target of 96.5%, however this was 
expected as the Council’s predominant rate payers are Small Medium Enterprise and 
these businesses are most affected by the current economic climate. 

 
Timetable for Accounts completion and external audit review 

29. The draft accounts will be completed by the statutory deadline of 30th June.  The audit 
will commence in early July.  The final accounts will be considered by the 
Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee (GARM) on 24 September 2013 
and must be signed off by the Council and the Auditor by the end of September. 

 
Legal Implications 

30. There are none directly related to this report. 
 

Financial Implications 
31. Financial matters are integral to the report. 

 

Performance Issues 
32. Good financial monitoring is essential to ensuring that there are adequate and 

appropriately directed resources to support delivery and achievement of Council 
priorities and targets as set out in the Corporate Plan. In addition, adherence to the 
Prudential Framework ensures capital expenditure plans remain affordable in the 
longer term and that capital resources are maximised. 

 
33. .The financial performance is integrated with the strategic performance of the Council 

through quarterly Improvement Boards for each Directorate where the financial 
position is considered at the same time as performance against key projects, service 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (including customer data and complaints) and 
workforce. Monitoring of finance and performance is reported regularly to the 
Corporate Strategic Board and Cabinet and is also considered by the Council's 
Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub- Committee. 

 
Environmental Impact 

34. There are none directly related to this report. 
 
Risk Management Implications 

35. The risks to the council and how they are being managed are clearly set out in the 
report:  

Risks included on Directorate risk registers? Yes 
 
Equalities Implications 

36. Financial monitoring is important in ensuring resources are used to deliver equitable 
services to all members of the community.  There are no direct equalities impacts 
arising from the decisions within this report.  

50



 

 9 

 
Corporate Priorities 

37. This report deals with the Revenue and Capital monitoring which is key to delivering 
the Council’s corporate priorities. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

    
Name:  Simon George √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:   24 May 2013 

   

   on behalf of the 
Name:  Matthew Adams √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:  05 June 2013 
 

   
 

 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
    

 
Name:  Alex Dewsnap √  Divisional Director Strategic 

Commissioning 
  
Date:    24 May 2013 

   

 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
    
Name:  Andrew Baker √  Head  of Climate Change 
  
Date:     24 May 2013 

   

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Simon George (simon.george@harrow.gov.uk) 
Background Papers:  
http://moderngov:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&MId=60645&Ver=4 
http://moderngov:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&MId=61076&Ver=4 
 

Call-In Waived by the 

Chairman of Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 NOT APPLICABLE 
 
[Call –in applies] 
 
 

 

51



Appendix 1 – Revenue Monitoring 

10 

Original Latest

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Assistant Chief Executive

Assistant Chief Executive 1,089 -166 924 1,029 105 11.36      
Balance of directorate's corporate savings not achieved during 2012-13, 
but contained within the total budget for the directorate.

Customer Services & IT 
Client Team 815 -723 92 -809 -901 -979.35 

In the main the favourable variance results from savings on Capita contract 
£-360k and Delayed projects £-508k for which carry forward is requested.

Human Resource Dev. & 
Shared Services -253 263 10 -555 -565 -5,942.1 Print contract saving £-493k and Vacancy management £-108k.
Strategic Commissioning 2,127 -76 2,052 1,884 -168 -8.16 Vacancy management

Risk Audit & Fraud 74 -12 62 702 640 1,032.26
£900k additional provision for MMI liability, Occupational Health contract 
saving £86k and vacancy management £134k.

Corporate Items 2 192 194 178 -16 -8.25 
Sub-Total Assistant Chief 

Executive 3,854 -522 3,333 2,429 -904 -27.12 

Legal & Governance 3,379 -149 3,230 3,325 95 2.94

Increased income offset by increase in cost  and delayed start to set up 
Shared Legal service.

Corporate Finance

Finance & Director of 
Finance 226 526 752 659 -93 -12.37 Delays in transformation project  requested as a carry forward
Revenue Benefits & Traffic 
and Parking Operations 4,105 288 4,393 4,402 9 0.20
Procurement -604 601 -3 -85 -82 2,733.33

Finance Other 5,490 760 6,250 5,422 -828 -13.25 

Audit Fee saving £-238k, Levies £-53k, Goods Receipt Invoice Receipt 
(GRIR) and old debt recovery £-363k, Pension augmentation £-131k 
reduction in number of pension augmentation payments.

Concessionary Fares 9,417 0 9,417 9,128 -289 -3.07 
Reduction in takeup of taxicard scheme following changes to trip limits 
and increased contribution made at the start of the year.

Sub-Total Corporate 

Finance 18,634 2,175 20,809 19,526 -1,283 -6.17 

Directorate Total Net 25,867 1,504 27,372 25,280 -2,092 -7.64 

Budget 

Adj.

Variance

COMMENTS Resources

 
 

52



Appendix 1 – Revenue Monitoring 

 11 

Original Latest

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Environment

Community Safety -1,495 -172 -1,667 -3,242 -1,575 -94.48

Favourable variance mainly resulting from additional income from parking 
enforcement  (£968K), Licensing & housing enforcement (£107k) and Car 
Parks (£49k). In addition underspend on budgets resulting from vacancy 
and spending management of £501k. 

Property & Infrastructure 17,332 -1226 16,106 14,893 -1,213 -7.53

Underspend is mainly due to slippages in the delivery of highways works 
in the final quarter following from migration to a new contractor and various 
project delays.  
Additional income for SLAs, Depot rental, Civic Centre car parking, Street 
Works and Major Works.  There was also salary savings in Property 
Services.  This was offset by £85k MTFS saving in respect of Property 
Repairs and Maintenance Procurement Value Chain which did not 
materialise.

Public Realm Services 22,512 -120 22,392 22,401 9 0.04

The service has been overspending due to pressure arising from under 
achieving the corporate income target for dry recyclables (£332k) resulting 
from lower market prices for the recyclable waste & additional WLWA 
charges(£188k). This is contained by salary savings due to transformation 
programme (£209k) & spending management across the services 
(£146k).

Directorate Management 940 -77 863 644 -219 -25.38 Variance resulting mainly from spending protocol and salary savings.
Community and Culture 9,385 -9385 0 0 0
Sub-Total Environment 48,674 -1,595 37,694 34,696 -2,998 -7.95

Enterprise

Planning Services 2,709 106 2,815 2,903 88 3.13
Overspends resulting mainly from under recovery of Building control fees 
(£248k) which is offset by underspent on Building Control salaries £139k.

Economic Dev. Research & 
Ent. 1,197 47 1,244 1,256 12 0.96
Major Development Projects 320 -97 223 360 137 61.43

Corporate Estates -679 15 -664 -959 -295 -44.43

Additional £315k for rental and other income and underspend on premises 
related expenses.  This is offset by overspend resulting from increase in 
various provisions (£117k).

Sub-total Enterprise 3,547 71 3,618 3,560 -58 -1.60

Directorate Total 52,221 -1,524 41,312 38,256 -3,056 -7.40

Environment and Enterprise

Budget 

Adj.

Variance

Comments

 

53



Appendix 1 – Revenue Monitoring 

 12 

Original Latest

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Adults Services

Commissioning & 
Partnerships

18,290 -493 17,797 17,710 -87 -0.49 Variance due to under spend in carers grant of £97k, contract savings on 
Service Level Agreement (SLA) of £92k, offset by an overspend on 
Consortium of North West London (CNWL) of £120k.

Long Term Care 25,359 -1256 24,103 24,275 172 0.71 The overspend is mainly due to purchasing in relation to additional 
continuing care cases £105k, £96k for in house residential due to agency 
costs to cover sickness and increased utility costs.

Personalisation and 
Reablement

19,229 140 19,369 18,999 -370 -1.91 The underspend in the main relates to £116k for the decommissioning of 
the Greenview contract and £195k in relation to reablement.

Strategic Management 1,343-   407 -936 -1,032 -96 10.26 Under spend mainly results from implementation of spending protocol.
Sub-Total Adults Services 61,535 -1,202 60,333 59,952 -381 -0.63
Housing General Fund

Housing Needs 2,800 -156 2,644 2,510 -134 -5.07 Underspend due mainly to higher levels of homelessness prevention 
resulting in reduced requirement for Bed & Breakfast (families in B&B 70 
at end of year, expected to exceed 100 in 2013-14). Help 2 Let (H2L) 
placed 48 families resulting in underspend, offset by lower than expected 
income from Private Sector Leasing (PSL) scheme. 

Housing Partnerships 818 111 929 838 -91 -9.80 Favourable variance resulting from vacancy management.

Travellers Site 25 0 25 6 -19 -76.00 Reduced officer time spent

Other Housing GF Services 350 1,167 1,517 1,467 -50 -3.30 Underspend due mainly to lower than expected spend on staff training

Resident Services 461 -2 459 495 36 7.84 Agency cover for leave and suspended staff
Sub-Total Housing GF 4,454 1,120 5,574 5,316 -258 -4.63

Community & Development 0 2,320 2,320 2,258 -62 -2.67 Underspend in relation to cancellation of the Under One Sky festival and 
vacant post held on the grants support unit.

Cultural Services 0 1,462 1,462 1,943 481 32.90 Overspend mainly in relation to Leisure Centre income shorftfall.
Libraries 0 5,709 5,709 5,736 27 0.47 Overspend due to later than anticipated implementation of the Terms & 

conditions savings offset in part by a rent free period on Gayton Libraries.

Sub-Total Comm.& Culture 0 9,491 9,491 9,937 446 4.70

Transformation 442 1 443 468 25 5.64
Public Health 0 39 39 39 0 0.00

Directorate Total 66,431 9,449 75,880 75,712 -168 -0.22

G:\Budget Monitoring\2012-2013\Period 12\Revenue\Outturn\[Children's Outturn 02.05.13.xls]Sheet2

Community and Culture 

Community Health and 

Wellbeing

Budget 

Adj.

Variance

Comments

 

54



Appendix 1 – Revenue Monitoring 

 13 

Original Latest

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Quality Assurance, 
Commissioning  Schools

4,694 2,200 6,894 6,052 -842 -12.21

The favourable variance results mainly from an underspend on Troubled 
Families grant (£408k), recommissionng of Childrens and Adolocesne 
Mental Health Service ( CAMHS) contract (£190k) and Commissioning 
budgets (£231k) were retained to help offset pressures in Targeted 
Services.

Early Intervention Service 2,824 4,740 7,564 7,176 -388 -5.13

The variance results from early delivery of MTFS savings in respect of 
Children's centres (£132k) and the Connextions contract.  In addition 
vacancy management contributed (£270k) to the under spends and 
support from the Dedicated Schools grant to support areas of pressure 
within the nursery provision to a sum of £208k.  

Targeted Services 16,996 -148 16,848 17,638 790 4.69

The adverse variance results mainly from Staffing costs due to interim 
cover and agency staff in respect of qualified social workers.  In addition 
there was a net overspend on Placement budgets due to pressures 
around the adoption allowance and Childrens placements.  These were 
offset by underspends on the leaving care placements and Asylum 
budget.

Management 340 298 638 752 114 17.87
The overspend relates mainly to procurement savings relating to the 
Childrens and Families Service as a whole. 

Special Needs 9,167 962 10,129 10,214 85 0.84
The overspend relates to an increase in the Bad Debt provision of £286k 
offset by underspends on Special Needs Transport (£120k) and vacancy 
management.

Schools 5,454 569 6,023 6,018 -5 -0.08

Directorate Total 39,475 8,621 48,096 47,850 -246 -0.51

Children's and Families Comments
Budget 

Adj.

Variance

55



Appendix 2 – Capital Monitoring 

14 

Resources Original 
Budget

Changes 
in Q4

Revised 
Budget Outturn

Total 
Variance Slippage

Under 
Spend Reasons for Variance 

ITO Transformation 3,247 0 4,441 585 -3,856 -3,856 0

Change in delivery times of various parts of 
the project ie some set back and some 
parts brought forward - Balance of spend to 
be carried forward into 13-14

SAP Server Refresh 413 0 413 413 0 0 0

Business Transformation Programme (BTP) 2,368 80 4,424 2,326 -2,098 -2,098 0 Ongoing projects

BTP - SAP Financial Ledger 0 0 250 118 -132 -132 0 Ongoing project 

BTP - Mobile & Flex 1,148 0 1,148 133 -1,015 -1,015 0 Ongoing project

BTP - Cash Receipting system 701 0 701 469 -232 -232 0 Ongoing project

My Harrow Services 0 0 100 0 -100 -100 0
Implementation delayed as a result of 
redesign of new systems coming in due to 
the Welfare Reform.

Council Tax Support 200 0 200 63 -137 -137 0 Ongoing project

Local Area Agreement (LAA) Performance 
Reward Grant

0 10 663 344 -319 -319 0

A number of projects are mid delivery 
including Telehealth - The Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) reached 
agreement on proceeding with the 
Telehealth project in March and it will be 
delivered by the Hospital Trust during 2013-
14; the current e-caf solution is due to be 
user- tested by Childrens and Families with 
the Early Intervention Service (EIS) and 
refinements may be needed.  The balance is 
unallocated LAA monies which have been 
set aside for consideration by the 
Partnership Board on how to allocate for 
future partnership projects.  

Small Schemes (Council wide) 0 0 132 -36 -168 -168 0
The unspent monies needs to be c/fwd to 
fund projects in 2013/14.

Total 8,077 90 12,472 4,415 -8,057 -8,057 0  
 

56



Appendix 2 - Capital Monitoring 

 15 

Environment and Enterprise Original 
Budget

Changes 
in Q4

Revised 
Budget Outturn

Total 
Variance Slippage

Under 
spends Reasons for Variance 

Highway, Drainage & Flood Defence 
Infrastructure

349 0 403 370 -33 -33 0

Highway Improvement 4,340 0 5,023 4,828 -195 -206 11
Parks, Open Spaces & Cemeteries 300 0 300 99 -201 -201 0
Waste and Recycling 200 0 218 132 -86 -84 -2
Harrow traffic and parking schemes 
programme

300 0 300 221 -79 -79 0

Street Lighting Improvement 1,000 0 1,702 1,374 -328 -328 0
Harrow Green Grid 350 0 350 118 -232 -41 -191
Transport Local Implementation Plan 2 2,223 -123 2,247 1,019 -1,228 -1,218 -10
CCTV and Car Parks 715 0 715 0 -715 0 -715 Due to complex procurement conclusions there has been 

dealys on the project.
Section 106 Schemes 0 0 469 42 -427 -427 0 Contributions from the BAE site carry forward into 2013/14 

requested for undertaking annual reviews of the bus route 
on Wood Lane in 2013/14 and 2014/15 & to install the 
necessary infrastructure to facilitate development with 
street lighting and junction improvements in Warren Lane.

Affordable Warmth 110 0 120 10 -110 -90 -20 In the absence of a capital budget in 2013/14, the roll-over 
of all unspent allocation is sought to continue to support 
this programme.

Carbon Reduction 500 217 717 754 37 -289 326 Energy saving retrofits at civic centre complex. Projects 
rephased to allow future of (some) buildings to be decided, 
following consultation on budget, and to allow additional 
consultation with building manager on implementation.

High Priority Planned Maintenance 300 0 300 269 -31 0 -31
Corporate Business Office Accomodation 100 -40 60 56 -4 0 -4

Neighbourhood Investment Scheme 210 0 229 88 -141 -140 -1 Project based on Member spending budgets
City Farm/Pinner Park Farm 350 0 350 9 -341 -342 1 Late approval of capital and lengthy procurement process 

Pinner Park Farm Master Planning runs to at least 
03/2014.Asset Development 250 0 250 0 -250 0 -250 Feasibility Studies not to be capitalised

Development of an Integrated Civic One 750 174 1,591 1,033 -558 -462 -96 £409,779 committed expenditure for works that are due to 
be completed by the end of May 2013. 

College Road Environmental Imp scheme 100 0 25 9 -16 -16 0
Harrow Town Centre and OLF 2,722 500 2,975 789 -2,186 0 -2,186
Civic Centre Parking 0 150 150 0 -150 -150 0
Development of strategic sites 500 -500 0 0 0 0 0

Total 15,669 378 18,494 11,220 -7,274 -7,006 -268

A significant part of this year’s Capital programme has 
backed up to last quarter delivery, mainly through the 
introduction of the new Highways Contract, mobilisation 
and establishing and approving the supply chain. This 
does cause contractor resourcing problems and a 
consequence is that not all the scheduled work have been 
completed in the financial year.

This project is extensive and complex in terms of works 
and funding, planning has taken much longer than 
Consultation is being carried out with regards to charging 
for parking and will be completed in 2013/14.

 

57



Appendix 2 - Capital Monitoring 

 16 

Community Health and Well Being

Original 
Budget

Changes 
in Q4

Revised 
Budget Outturn

Total 
Variance Slippage

Under 
Spends Reasons for Variance 

Bentley Day Centre Remodelling and 
Refurbishment

657 0 1,004 94 -910 -910 0 Changes on hold awaiting outcome of strategic review 
in July 2013 which is likely to have capital 
considerations.

MOSAIC Social Care and Community 
Health System

180 100 530 274 -256 -256 0 Project funding agreed late in financial year, and initial 
release dates from Core Logic also delayed. 

Upgrading the People's Network and 
Installing Wi-Fi

135 45 180 62 -118 -118 0 Delays by Capita, Roll out of computers will be 
completed in 2013/14, A decision was made to delay 
Wi-Fi until a decision on commissioning of service had 
been made. Upgrading printers delayed as is linked to 
Council's new print contract that is being rolled out 
currently.

Upgrading Library Management System 154 6 160 31 -129 -129 0 Delayed until 13/14 due to delays by Capita completing 
the internal IT work.

Leisure Centre Capital Infrastructure 100 -172 146 94 -52 -6 -46
Delivering a new Harrow Museum 
Programme

250 0 250 0 -250 -250 0

Headstone Manor (2011-12) 0 0 300 0 -300 -300 0

Harrow Arts Centre & Hatch End Library 65 -39 26 26 0 0 0
Empty Property Grants/Better Homes Grant 100 122 441 113 -328 -328 0 Delays due to planning and building control inspections 

and therfore will be completed in 2013-14.

Renovation Grants 70 0 70 16 -54 0 -54
Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) 2,000 0 2,421 1,151 -1,270 -50 -1,220 DFG additional Grant of £135k received to be carried 

forward for additional Hoist project.
Residential Homes (2011-12) 0 12 98 95 -3 0 -3
Supported Housing (HIV 2011-12) 0 -112 190 0 -190 -190 0 The agreement was reached in March resulting in 

delays in allocation of these funds.

Misc Projects (2011-12) 0 0 67 50 -17 -5 -12
Music Education Hub 0 25 25 25 0 0 0
NRC PFI Lifecycle Costs 0 4 4 4 0 0 0
Total 3,711 -9 5,912 2,035 -3,877 -2,542 -1,335

This relates to match funding for the Heritage Lottery 
Fund (HLF) programme in 2012-13. The initial 
submission was rejected and a second submission 
made; the outcome will be known in July 2013 and, if 
successful, match funding will be required. 

 
 

58



Appendix 2 - Capital Monitoring 

 17 

Childrens and Families Original 
Budget

Changes 
in Q4

Revised 
Budget Outturn

Total 
Variance Slippage

Under 
Spend Reasons for Variance 

Schools Expansion Programme 7,550 -77 7,573 1,883 -5,690 -5,690 0 School places required for Sept in School 
Expansion Programme

Schools Capital Maintenance 1,350 -262 1,088 858 -230 -230 0 £230k commitment school roofs being repaired
Special Education Needs Provision 650 0 650 73 -577 -577 0 Required for School Expansion Scheme (on going 

scheme and growth)
EMS - Data Exchange 17 0 17 0 -17 -17 0 Business case completed late in financial year
IT Strategy & integration 150 0 150 0 -150 -150 0 Business case completed late in financial year
Devolved Formula Capital 0 397 1,772 724 -1,048 -1,048 0 Ring fenced 3 yr rolling programme.  Bal c/f req'd 

for proposed classroom expansion
Short Breaks Capital 0 147 294 67 -227 -227 0 Projects part of Short Breaks Programme -c/f 

required for support of schemes within programme

Catering in schools (2011-12) 0 0 1,217 1,138 -79 -79 0 Required for School Expansion Programme
Whitmore School - Sports Pitch 0 0 63 -2 -65 -65 0 Delays in planning permission 
Project Fees During Defect Period 0 0 23 0 -23 -23 0 Project fees
School Amalgamation (2011-12) 0 0 1,265 1,048 -217 -217 0 Part of School Expansion Programme
Primary Development - Marlborough phase 1 
(2011-13

600 0 2,500 397 -2,103 -2,103 0 Delays in project construction and planning

Primary Development - Weald School (2011-
12)

0 -647 849 86 -763 -763 0 Part of School Expansion Programme

High School Development (2011-12) 0 0 340 53 -287 -287 0 Projects in construction
Capital Maintenance (2011-12) 0 -419 84 0 -84 -84 0 Support of further capital maintenance works
2 Year Old Entitlement Grant (2012-13) 0 438 438 0 -438 -438 0 Capital grant in support of 2 year old funding of 

revenue grant
Independent Schools Works (2011-12) 0 44 133 133 0 0 0
Schools PFI Lifecycle Costs 0 160 160 160 0 0 0
Misc Projects (2011-12) 0 -27 0 0 0 0 0
Total 10,317 -246 18,616 6,618 -11,998 -11,998 0

59



Appendix 3 - Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

18 

Description Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget

Outturn 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Employee Costs 2,095 1,925 1,808 -117 -6.1
Variation due mainly to to various vacant 
posts

Supplies & Services 707 779 658 -121 -15.5
Variation includes underspends on IT 
equipment & development

Utility cost 551 782 630 -152 -19.4
Variation includes agreement of credits 
form electricty suppliers and budget 

Estate & Sheltered 
Services

2,207 1,972 2,004 32 1.6
Unbudgeted consultancy cost for Sheltered 
Services restructure offset by fees received

Central Recharges 3,346 3,478 3,478 0 0.0
Operating 

Expenditure
8,906 8,936 8,578 -358 -4.0

Repairs - Voids 689 689 715 26 3.8
Variation due to completion on of small 
number of high value void properties

Repairs – Other 2,366 2,227 1,813 -414 -18.6

Variations relate mainly to external 
decorations programme and cyclical works 
partially offset by lower number of repairs 
attracting leasehold service charges

Repairs 

Expenditure
5,492 6,255 5,857 -398 -6.4

Contingency 200 215 126 -89 -41.4
Utilised for Business Planning & Project 
Officer

Investment in 
Services

900 460 119 -341 -74.1
Underspend due mainly to Getting Closer 
to Customer initiative taking longer to 
implement than anticipated (restructuring).

Impairment 200 200 147 -53 -26.5 Based on preliminary review of rent arrears
HRA Subsidy 0 0 -15 -15 -100.0 Over accrual 2011-12

Charges for Capital 6,420 6,420 6,363 -57 -0.9
Variation due to slightly higher than 
budgetted interest rate

Impairment of fixed 
assets

0 0 490 490 100.0

Valuation adjustment for shops & 
businesses which may not be reversed to 
capital adjustment account under HRA Self 
Financing

Depreciation 5,991 5,991 6,629 638 10.6
Revised componentisation policy for 
Council dwellings

Other Expenditure 13,711 13,286 13,859 573 4.3

Total Expenditure 28,109 28,477 28,294 -183 -0.6

Rents – Dwellings -26,206 -26,206 -26,150 56 -0.2
Variation due to void rent loss higher than 
expected.

Rents – Non 
Dwellings

-684 -343 -349 -6 1.7 Part year vacancies in commecial lets.

Service Charges - -686 -686 -685 1 -0.1
Service Charges – 
Leaseholders

-549 -549 -370 179 -32.6
Income is an initial estimate pending 
receipt of additional data from grounds 

Facility Charges -516 -516 -538 -22 4.3
Interest -4 -4 -5 -1 25.0 Comprises mortgage interest
Other Income -83 -425 -417 8 -1.9 Inludes rents from garages & car ports
Recharge GF -163 -163 -163 0 0.0  
Total Income -28,891 -28,892 -28,677 215 4.0

In Year Deficit / -782 -415 -383 32

BALANCE b/fwd -2,422 -2,792 -2,792

BALANCE c/fwd -3,204 -3,207 -3,175

Repairs - Responsive 2,437

Variation                                                                                          

Explanation

-10 -0.303,339 3,329
Variation due to lower unit costs as result 
of reprocurement exercise partially offset 
by exit costs payable to Kier

 
 

60



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

11 July 2013 

Subject: 

 

Progress Report on Scrutiny Review of 
Private rented sector housing in 
Harrow 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Lynne Pennington, Divisional Director 
of Housing Services 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Chris Mote, Policy Lead 
Member for Community, Health and 
Wellbeing;  
Councillor Stephen Wright, Policy 
Lead Member for Environment and 
Enterprise;  
Councillor Nana Asante, Performance 
Lead Member for Community, Health 
and Wellbeing;   
Councillor Phillip O’Dell,   Performance 
Lead Member for Environment and 
Enterprise 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Appendix 1: Progress update on 
Private Sector Housing Strategy action 
plan 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report sets out a progress update against the recommendations made in 
the scrutiny review of private rented sector housing in Harrow in July 2012. 
and which were incorporated in full in the Private Sector Housing Strategy 
approved by Cabinet on 11 April 2013 

 
Recommendations:  
 
To note progress against the Private Sector Housing Action Plan. 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 61 to 76

61



Section 2 – Report 
 
Background 
 
1. The final report from the “Private rented sector housing in Harrow” Scrutiny 

Review was reported to Cabinet on the 13 September 2012.  It 
acknowledged the importance of the private rented sector in increasingly 
meeting the housing needs of households in the borough. It set out an 
important aspiration to encourage the provision of additional good quality 
private rented accommodation as well as improve standards and tackle 
poor quality where it exists.   

 
2. Officers welcomed the opportunity to work with the Scrutiny Committee 

which coincided with the development of a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy. As a result all of the recommendations made through the 
scrutiny review were incorporated in the final strategy approved by Cabinet 
on the 11 April 2013, following a formal consultation process. 

 
3. In view of the Council’s limited resources the Private Sector Housing 

Strategy concentrates on what the Council can do to encourage and 
facilitate the continued provision of a good quality private rented housing 
sector working in partnership with other boroughs, landlords, developers 
and private tenants whilst using available enforcement resources to tackle 
the worst conditions. 

 
4. The Private Sector Housing Strategy is accompanied by a detailed action 

plan setting out the actions the Council is undertaking with regard to 
maintaining a good quality private rented housing sector in Harrow. 
Progress against the action plan is attached at Appendix 1. The Overview 
and Scrutiny actions have been cross referenced within the action plan. 

 
5. The main areas of progress are:  
 

a. An initial evaluation has recently been completed on the role the 
Council could play in directing and delivering new affordable 
housing to meet housing need and demand in order to achieve a 
balanced housing market in the borough. At its meeting on the 20 
June 2013 Cabinet considered options for increasing the delivery of 
affordable housing including longer term strategic delivery options 
where the Council could take a more direct role in using its land 
assets to deliver private rented housing. Business cases are to be 
taken forward to enable detailed assessment; 

 
b. A scheme has been launched to incentivise buy to let in Harrow and 

increase the number of private rented properties available for rent 
by households in housing need; 

 
c. Research is underway into the feasibility of selective licensing of 

private rented sector landlords. Recommendations are due to be 
presented to the Licensing and General Purposes Committee in 
August 2013 and will consider Harrow’s local context and findings 
from Newham Council, which implemented mandatory licensing for 
all private landlords in January 2013; 

62



 
d. A lead team has been formed and is proactively indentifying HMO’s. 

As at 16/4/13, 355 HMO’s were licenced out of an estimated 1500 
HMO’s in the borough. This is a significant improvement in 
performance since 187 HMOs were licenced in 2011 and 2012; 

 
e. We continue to exceed targets for bringing empty homes back into 

use, will shortly be accessing additional grant funding from the GLA 
through a successful West London Housing Partnership bid and 
have also bid for further funding from the GLA for which we are 
awaiting a response; 

 
f. Performance of the Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 

Programme continues to be above target and average times to 
complete adaptation works for owner occupiers, RP and private 
tenants was 18 weeks in 2012/13; 

 
g. All properties inspected under the Housing Act 2004 are now 

required to supply Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs) and 
those that attract a Category 1 hazard as a result will be subject to 
an Improvement notice; 

 
h. The project to procure a GreenDeal/ECO provider for the borough 

is progressing. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
6. The actions detailed in Appendix 1 are being taken forward with existing 

staff resources and budgets. Bids for new proposals where there is no 
existing budget are made through the appropriate commissioning channels 
on the basis of invest to save. 

 
7. The business cases being taken forward to examine the options for how 

the Council could take a long term and more direct role in delivering new 
housing, including private rented housing, will examine in detail the risks 
and benefits.  

 
8. Bids for external funding continue to be made where appropriate, for 

example to the GLA Mayors Housing Covenant for additional Empty 
Homes funding. The availability of new resources is very limited and 
therefore utilising external funding opportunities and partnership working 
with the private sector will be key to delivering the objectives of the draft 
Private Sector Housing Strategy. 

 

Performance Issues 
 
9. There are a number of Performance Indicators within the Housing 

Scorecard relating to housing demand and supply and the role of the 
private rented sector within this. Some of the actions in the Private Sector 
Housing Strategy Action Plan will positively impact on performance in key 
areas, for example by minimising increase in the numbers of homeless 
families in Bed and Breakfast.  

 

63



10.Current performance set out below reflects the pressures from rising 
homelessness and the difficulties in finding suitable private rented housing 
in Harrow. These difficulties are projected to continue.  The impact of new 
proposals such as selective licensing will need to consider the potential 
impact on supply in the lower quartile private rented sector and the knock 
on impact this may have on homelessness demand. 

 
11.Whilst current supply of affordable housing shows good performance, 

future supply can only be maintained by continuing to explore a range of 
new supply models.  

 

Performance 
Indicator 

Q4 2012/13 
Performance 

2012/13 
Target 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Average number of 
households in B&B 

69 100 Green: Numbers were 
well below original 
estimate due to effective 
prevention activity. 

Total no of 
households we 
housed in the Private 
Rented Sector (incl 
private sector 
leasing/Help2Let) 
 

248 400 Red: We could not obtain 
sufficient local housing, 
but we were able to keep 
B&B numbers below 
original estimate. 
 

Number of affordable 
homes delivered 
(gross) 

278 275 Green: The number of 
new homes completed 
was above target in 
2012/13. 

Empty private 
dwellings returned 
into use  

259 200 Green: Year end target 
exceeded.  New Repair to 
Lease grant scheme (up 
to £5k) has been 
successful in maintaining 

interest from landlords 

 

 
 

Environmental Impact 
 
12.  The outcomes from completion of the Private Sector Housing Strategy 

contribute to the Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Delivering 
Warmer Homes strategy through: 

 

• Improving energy efficiency and reducing CO2 in all housing tenures.  

• New affordable homes in London being required to achieve a minimum 
of level 4 of the Sustainable Building Code. 

• Other environmental improvements often included in new affordable 
housing developments or retrofitting of existing social housing include: 
provision of green roofs, solar thermal hot water systems to meet the 
target for use of renewable resources and resulting reduction in C02 
emissions, improved biodiversity as a result of increased tree planting 
and landscaped communal open spaces, provision of Sustainable 

64



Urban Drainage Systems, and green travel plans to encourage use of 
public transport and walking. 

 

Risk Management Implications 
    

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes  
  
Separate risk register in place?  No  
  
13. Risk assessment will be undertaken for specific projects and risk 

registers maintained for major projects.  
 

Equalities implications 
 
14. An equalities impact assessment was completed for the Private Sector 
Housing Strategy. None of the actions proposed discriminate either directly 
or indirectly under the public bodies duty of the Equality Act 2010. The 
majority of the actions set out within the strategy will have either a positive 
on neutral impact on protected groups. The equality actions are monitored 
and progress updates against these are included in Appendix 1. 
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
15. This report incorporates the following corporate priorities by working to 

ensure private housing in Harrow is of good quality particularly for 
households in high priority housing need or for those who are vulnerable 
by way of age or disability. It also aims to tackle poor conditions in the 
private housing sector: 

 

• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe. 

• United and involved communities:  A Council that listens and leads. 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 

Section 3 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Alison Pegg, Housing Partnerships and Strategy 
Manager, 020 8424 1933, email Alison.pegg@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Private Rented sector housing in Harrow, Scrutiny review report 
presented to Cabinet 13 September 2012  
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/g61071/Public%20rep
orts%20pack%20Thursday%2013-Sep-
2012%2019.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Response to Scrutiny Review on “ Private rented sector housing in 
Harrow” 11 October 2012   

65



http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/g61072/Public%20rep
orts%20pack%20Thursday%2011-Oct-
2012%2019.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Cabinet report 11 April 2013 - Housing Changes Review: Approval 
of Housing Strategy 2013/18, Homelessness Strategy 2013/18, 
Private Sector Housing Strategy 2013/18, Housing Allocations 
Scheme 2013,  and update on Housing Business Plan 2013 and 
draft Asset Management Strategy 2013 
 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/g61078/Public%20rep
orts%20pack%20Thursday%2011-Apr-
2013%2019.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 

66



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 1
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

p
ri

v
a
te

ly
 r

e
n

te
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

1
.1

D J
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

re
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
a
n

 m
a
k
e

 t
o
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

o
d
e

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
m

o
d
e
ls

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

g
o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
, 
w

e
ll 

m
a
n

a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r

T
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  
 

A
lis

o
n
 P

e
g
g
 /
 

E
la

in
e
 S

lo
w

e

A
p
r-

1
4

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 J

u
n
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 t
a
k
e

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 

s
h
o
rt

- 
a
n

d
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
h
ic

h
 

c
o
u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
ri
n
g
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e

n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 a

t 
L
H

A
 r

a
te

s
 u

n
d
e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

y
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

e
n
u
re

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u

s
in

g
.

H
a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 g
ra

n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

te
n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r.
  

T
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
, 

if
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
, 

is
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

la
u
n
c
h
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

 

1
.2

C
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 u

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 r
e
a
lis

ti
c
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 

a
n
d

 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h

re
a
te

n
e

d
 w

it
h
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

H
e
lp

2
L
e

t 
b
y
 1

5
%

b
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
a
te

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 
B

a
li 

R
a
i

A
p
r-

1
4

W
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

th
e
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 

a
tt
ra

c
t 
e

n
o
u
g
h
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 

o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 l
e
t 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

o
 

th
e
m

. 

1
.3

D J
W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
to

 

e
x
p
lo

re
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
ta

l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

re
n
ta

l 
p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
n
e

w
-b

u
ild

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s

A
lis

o
n
 P

e
g
g
 /
 

M
a
tt

h
e
w

 

P
a
tt

e
rs

o
n
 /
 

P
e
te

r 
B

a
rr

o
n

A
p
r-

1
4

S
e
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 f
o
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 1

.1
 

1
.4

C
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
a
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 

in
c
e
n

ti
v
is

e
 b

u
y
 t
o

 l
e
t 
in

 e
x
c
h
a
n
g

e
 f
o
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 r

ig
h
ts

 (
B

u
y
2

L
e
a
s
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

H
e
lp

2
L
e
t 

b
ra

n
d
)

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 P

R
S

 t
o
 w

h
ic

h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

 h
o

u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d

Im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

u
y
2
L

e
a
s
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e

U
p
 t
o
 4

5
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

to
 H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 

B
u
y
2
L
e
a

s
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-2

0
1
4

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n

A
p
r-

1
3

A
p
r-

1
4

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

n
 1

s
t 

A
p
ri
l.
  

P
u
b
lic

it
y
 i
s
 

s
h
o
rt

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
.

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
8
) 

A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
: 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 1

67



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 2
: 

E
n

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

2
.1

D F
P

ro
m

o
te

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 t
h
e
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 A

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 

lo
c
a
l 
fo

ru
m

s

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lis
m

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

P
R

S
  

H
o
ld

 3
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 

A
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 
B

a
li 

R
a
i

A
p
r-

1
4

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 m

a
k
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

t 
e
v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
m

a
ll/

m
e

d
iu

m
 

e
n
te

rr
p
is

e
s
. 
 A

 p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 o

n
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
n
o
 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u

le
d
 f

o
r 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1

3
. 
  
  

2
.2

E F
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
 

T
e
n
a

n
c
y
 g

ra
n

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

b
u
d
g
e

t-
s
e

tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e

c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

T
o
 u

ti
lis

e
 g

ra
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 P
R

S
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
n
e
w

 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
a
te

. 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
 /
 

E
la

in
e
 S

lo
w

e

M
a
y
-1

3
C

a
p
it
a
l 
b

id
 f
o
r 

£
2
0
0
k
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
F

o
ru

m
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l.
  

O
f 

th
is

, 
£
1
3
0
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

fo
r 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 u

s
e
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
 T

e
n
a
n
c
y
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

£
7
0
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
lly

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 
 O

n
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
 T

e
n
a
n
c
y
 g

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d
 a

n
d
 

is
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 c

o
s
ti
n
g
. 

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 g

ra
n
t 

in
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 w

a
s
 £

1
3
3
0
. 

O
th

e
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 

s
e
c
to

r 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
. 

 T
o
 b

e
 

fi
n
a
ili

s
e
d

 b
y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
.

2
.3

B F
F

in
a
lis

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 n

e
w

 P
ri
v
a
te

 

S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y

T
o
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 f
o
r 

b
ri
n
g

in
g
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 u

p
 t
o

 H
H

S
R

S
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

R
S

, 
e
m

p
h
a

s
is

in
g
 

a
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

it
h
 

la
n
d

lo
rd

s
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le

Im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
a
te

M
o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
P

o
lic

y

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

R
e
v
ie

w
 

J
u

n
-2

0
1
3
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

P
R

IS
M

)

A
 d

ra
ft
 o

f 
th

e
 P

S
H

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

u
t 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

P
R

IS
M

 p
ro

je
c
t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

In
 t

h
e
 m

e
a
n
ti
m

e
, 

a
 g

e
n
e
ri
c
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
.

2
.4

B F
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
 a

 n
e

w
 f
e
e
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n

T
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g

 t
h
e
ir
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 u

p
 t
o
 H

H
S

R
S

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

ilo
t 
o
f 
n

e
w

 f
e
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 

o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
P

R
S

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

J
u
n
-1

3
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 f
e
e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 

P
S

H
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 s
e
rv

e
 f
o

rm
a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
4
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

a
te

g
o
ry

 1
 h

a
z
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d

 i
f 
th

e
y
 f

a
il 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 a

 n
o
ti
c
e
 s

e
rv

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 f

e
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
a
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
-g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 n

o
 f

e
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
 y

e
t 

b
e
e
n

 c
h
a
rg

e
d
 

a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
. 

 

2
.5

E F
P

ro
m

o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

’ 
ri
g
h
ts

 a
n

d
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o
 t
h
e

ir
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

ig
h

ts
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
a
n
d

 w
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
a
n

 o
ff
e
r 

to
 h

e
lp

 p
ri
v
a
te

 

re
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
te

n
a
n
ts

 e
n

c
o
u
n
te

ri
n
g
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 

D
e
liv

e
r 

1
0
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r

S
e
p
-1

3
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
. 

  
H

a
rr

o
w

 u
s
e
s
 "

H
a
rr

o
w

 P
e
o
p
le

" 
to

 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 H

M
O

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
v
e
 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 r

o
a
d
 s

h
o
w

s
.

2
.6

B F
R

e
v
ie

w
 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e

c
to

r,
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 p

ilo
t 

a
n
d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
e

n
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n

s
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

. 
  
  

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

R
e
v
ie

w
 

J
u

n
-2

0
1
3
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

P
R

IS
M

)

A
 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 P
ro

je
c
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
e
le

c
ti
v
e
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
. 

 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n

 A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
n

te
x
t 
a
n
d
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 N
e
w

h
a
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

m
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 O
p

ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a

l 
is

 a
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t

e
x
t 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

in
 a

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
n
o
ti
c
e
. 

It
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
s
 t

y
p
e
 o

f 
n
o
ti
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
rv

e
d
 e

.g
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 
o
r 

H
a
z
a
rd

 A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
. 

O
p
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a

ls
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 f

o
rm

a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

n
o

ti
c
e
 

s
e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 a

 P
S

H
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

ly
 r

e
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
to

c
k
 w

it
h
in

 H
a
rr

o
w

, 
o
u
tl
in

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 n

o
ti
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o
r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 2

68



2
.7

F
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
c
e
d
u

re
 t
o
 o

u
tl
in

e
 h

o
w

 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
s
e
v
e

re
 o

v
e

rc
ro

w
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e

n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 o
n
 a

 c
a
s
e
-b

y
-c

a
s
e
 b

a
s
is

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
is

s
u
e

s
 o

f 
o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n

 r
e
s
p
o
n

s
e

Im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

 b
y
 

ta
rg

e
t 
d
a

te
. 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
, 
fo

r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 b
y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

P
R

S
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r

R
e
v
ie

w
 

J
u

n
-2

0
1
3
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

P
R

IS
M

)

N
o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r

2
.8

A
F

o
rm

a
lis

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
s
p

e
c
t 
B

e
d
 &

 

B
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

“S
e
tt

in
g
 t
h
e
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

”)
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

a
d
o

p
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 a

re
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 

a
n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e

d
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

Im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 

ta
rg

e
t 
d
a

te
. 
  
  
 

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m
, 
J
o
n
 

D
a
lt
o
n

J
u
n
-1

3
T

h
e
 S

e
tt

in
g
 t
h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 (
S

T
S

-2
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

a
n
-L

o
n
d
o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 w
h
ic

h
 t

a
k
e
s
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
v
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
4
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t.

  
S

T
S

-2
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 f

o
r 

B
&

B
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 y

e
t 

to
 a

d
o
p
t 

S
T

S
-2

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 B
&

B
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 P

S
H

 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 a
ri
s
e
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
t 

a
ll 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 p

la
c
in

g
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

2
.9

F
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a

te
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is

e
 l
a
n
d

lo
rd

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o
n
, 
w

h
e
re

 

it
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h

e
 P

R
S

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 

T
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

e
n
ta

l 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

. 
 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

D
e
c
-1

3
T

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
m

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 y

e
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
s
e
a
c
h
in

g
 i
n
to

 w
a
y
s
 

o
f 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
c
to

r.
 

2
.1

0
E F

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 h
o

w
 H

a
rr

o
w

 c
a
n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

o
re

 s
ta

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 

te
n
a
n

c
ie

s
, 
u
s
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 
a
n
d

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 H
a
rr

o
w

 m
a
k
e
s
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
u
s
e
 

o
f 
o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
e
n
a

n
c
y
 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
P

R
S

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

, 
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
n
a

n
c
ie

s
, 
m

o
re

 

tr
a
n

s
p
a
re

n
t 

re
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

n
o
ti
c
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
s
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 

in
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
to

r.
  
T

o
 r

e
a

c
h
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
e
n

a
n
c
y
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

. 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

u
tl
in

in
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

, 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

, 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n

A
p
r-

1
4

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 y

e
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
to

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 i
n
te

re
s
t

2
.1

1
B F

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
 H

M
O

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f
o
r 

H
M

O
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
d
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
H

M
O

s
 

lic
e
n
s
e
d

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
  

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

A
p
r-

1
3

W
o
rk

 o
n

 t
h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
. 

A
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 (

H
M

O
) 

le
a
d
 

te
a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 f

o
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 H

M
O

s
. 

 A
s
 a

t 

1
6
/0

4
/2

0
1
3
, 
3
3
5
 H

M
O

s
 w

e
re

 l
ic

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 1

5
0

0
 H

M
O

s
 

in
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 T

h
is

 m
a
rk

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
; 

1
8
7
 

H
M

O
s
 w

e
re

 l
ic

e
n
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
2
. 

 

2
.1

2
B F

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
o

f 
a
 “

b
e
d
s
 i
n
 s

h
e
d

s
” 

p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 s

u
b
-s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 p
ri
v
a
te

 

re
n
te

d
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

“b
e
d
s
 i
n

 s
h
e
d
s
” 

p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 

a
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

R
e
v
ie

w
 

J
u

n
-2

0
1
3
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

P
R

IS
M

)

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
d
s
 i
n
 s

h
e
d
s
 a

re
 a

 s
ig

n
fi
c
ia

n
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

o
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

. 
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

S
H

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 f
o
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a

ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 a

ri
s
e
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
v
e
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 3

69



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 3
: 

B
ri

n
g

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 u

s
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

3
.1

C D H

M
a
x
im

is
e

 t
h
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

, 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
ty

 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 g

ra
n

ts

B
ri
n

g
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 

B
ri
n
g
 4

5
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

.

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
tt
, 

E
la

in
e
 S

lo
w

e
, 

M
a
ri
e
 O

’S
h
e
a
, 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 
B

a
li 

R
a
i

A
p
r-

1
4

 6
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

 

T
h
is

 e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 Q
1
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
. 

  
8
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
g
ra

n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
1
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ip
e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

a
v
a
l.
  

O
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 m

e
e
t 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

4
5
 w

it
h
in

 

b
u
d
g
e
t.

3
.2

C D H

S
e
c
u

re
 f
u

n
d
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
e
m

p
ty

 

h
o
m

e
s
 g

ra
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 W
e

s
t 
L
o
n
d
o

n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

T
o
 b

ri
n
g
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 

u
s
e

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
n
t

Im
p
le

m
e

n
t 
e
m

p
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 g

ra
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

E
la

in
e
 S

lo
w

e
 /
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
tt

M
a
y
-

2
0
1
3

In
te

rn
a
l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
1
3
0
k
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
, 
a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 2

.2
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
w

o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 g

ra
n
t 
a
n
d

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
 w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

fo
u
r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 b

y
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t.

  
T

h
e
ir
 g

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
. 

W
e
s
t 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 L

A
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ly

in
g
 f

o
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 G

L
A

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 s

ig
n
e
d
-o

ff
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 

B
re

n
t 
a
n

d
 t
h
e
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
n
t 

to
 H

a
rr

o
w

 f
o
r 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
. 

 I
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
h
o
rt

ly
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

, 
W

e
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rw

ri
te

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 u
n
u
s
e
d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 E

m
p
ty

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

 a
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
 o

f 
a
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

m
p
ty

 f
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 

b
a
c
k
 7

 u
n
it
s
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 w

it
h
 5

 y
e
a
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t.

 

B
id

 u
n
d
e

r 
M

a
y
o
r'
s
 C

o
v
e
n
a
n
t 

fo
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 G

L
A

 a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

 

3
.3

H
M

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
h

a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 f
o

r 
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
re

s
e

n
t 
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n

 

th
e
 s

a
m

e

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

 t
o
  

re
m

o
v
e
 a

n
y
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 o

w
n
e
rs

 i
n
 

le
a
v
in

g
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 e

m
p
ty

 a
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
, 

a
n
d

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 

s
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 

if
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
 /
 

L
y
n

n
 A

lla
k
e
r 

D
e
c
-1

3
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

3
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
n
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

C
h
a
n
g
e

s
 t
o
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 e

x
e
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3
. 
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 s

e
n
t 

to
 a

ll 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
u
ld

 a
s
s
is

t 
to

 b
ri
n
g
 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

e
m

p
ty

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 H

e
lp

2
L
e
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

 S
ta

ff
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e
n
 d

e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 p

ro
m

p
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e
.

D
a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 c

h
a
n
g
e

s
 h

a
v
e
 

le
d
 t
o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

b
u
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 v

e
ri
fi
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 s

ta
ff

. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 

m
a
k
e
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

. 
 

3
.4

D F H

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 l
o

n
g
-t

e
rm

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

h
e

re
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
, 
a

n
d
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 w

h
e
re

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 

m
e
a

s
u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 1
0
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 e
m

p
ty

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

E
la

in
e
 S

lo
w

e
 /
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
tt

D
e
c
-1

3
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 C

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 O

rd
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 f

ro
m

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
, 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

, 
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 L
e
g

a
l.
  

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
s
.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 4

70



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 4
: 

M
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

4
.1

E
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

u
p
ta

k
e
 a

n
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

o
f 
fl
o
a

ti
n
g

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

th
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 

n
e
e

d
 t
h
e
m

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

e
m

a
in

 

in
d
e

p
e
n
d
e
n

t

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

  
o
f 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

P
R

S
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
th

ro
u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
),

 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
in

g
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

S
a
n

d
ie

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
 

/ 
T

im
 M

ill
e
r

A
p
r-

1
4

T
h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 P
R

S
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
n
iit

o
re

d
 s

in
c
e
 f

ro
m

 

A
p
ri
l 
1
3
, 

a
n
d
 a

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

.

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 4

0
0
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 f

lo
a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 

a
n

y
 o

n
e
 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
n
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
, 

2
0
4
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 e
n
te

re
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 F

lo
a
ti
n
g
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
, 

w
it
h
 1

9
%

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ri
v
a
te

 

re
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
. 

 O
f 

th
o

s
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

, 
8
8
%

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
is

. 
9
0
%

 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 d

id
 s

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
. 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
a
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r.

  

T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
3
3
%

 o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 
w

h
ils

t 

s
ti
ll 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

4
.2

E
v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
W

e
lf
a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 o

n
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n

d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 

o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

T
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 o

n
 

h
o
u

s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 S

h
a
re

d
 A

c
c
o

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 R

a
te

 a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
r 

h
a
v
e
 

a
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

Im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 
L
H

A
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
a
te

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 

J
e
n

n
if
e
r 

T
o
w

n
s
le

y

J
u
l-
1
4

T
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

 T
h

e
 R

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 B

u
s
ti
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

A
B

, 
to

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
e
c
o
n
o

m
ic

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o

n
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 f

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
. 
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 f

o
rm

e
d
 a

 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

C
a
p
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 f

o
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
 c

a
p
 o

n
 w

e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 s

o
 f

a
r 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 2

8
1
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d

 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h
 o

v
e
r 

1
5
0
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 

 S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
, 

4
5
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 a

re
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
w

 e
x
e
m

p
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

 c
a
p
. 
 A

ll 
a
ff

e
c
te

d
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
p
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
3
. 

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 t

h
e
 H

E
L
P

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 l
a
u

n
c
h
 i
n
 

la
te

 S
u
m

m
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 R

e
lie

f 
in

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
3
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

 p
ilo

t 
b
a
s
is

, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
le

a
s
e
d

 a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 

 A
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 

p
o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
.

4
.3

E
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a
n
d

a
to

ry
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 O

T
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

a
p
p

ro
v
a
l 
a
re

 m
in

im
is

e
d
, 

th
e
re

b
y
 

a
llo

w
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
e
 

in
d
e

p
e
n
d
e
n

c
e
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

h
o
m

e
s

D
e
liv

e
r 

D
F

G
’s

 w
it
h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 

3
5
 w

e
e
k
s
. 
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 

th
e
 D

F
G

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
b
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

. 
 

M
ic

k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

A
p
r-

1
3

T
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
c
o
re

c
a

rd
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u

p
ie

rs
, 

R
S

L
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 w
a
s
 1

8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
. 

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
ts

4
.4

R
e
s
e

a
rc

h
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
ri
v
a
te

 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t

T
o
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
s
 

w
h
o

 m
a
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 h

e
lp

 i
n
 a

p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 

c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

rs
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
ir
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 o

n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
d

a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
a
te

. 
 

M
ic

k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

D
e
c
-1

3
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 s
e
t 

th
e
 H

IA
 u

p
 a

s
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 

o
n
 

h
o
ld

. 
 F

o
r 

le
g
a
l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

o
ff

e
r 

th
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

b
u
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

g
a
in

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 5

71



4
.5

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a

re
n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

to
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 h

a
n
d
y
p
e
rs

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
it
y
 

re
le

a
s
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
th

e
re

b
y
 a

llo
w

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
h

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e

n
c
e
 

to
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
n
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

. 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

 b
y
 1

5
%

. 
 

M
ic

k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

A
p

r-
2
0
1
3

A
p

r-
2
0
1
4

C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
la

c
e
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 "

H
a
rr

o
w

 P
e
o
p
le

" 
to

 r
a

is
e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
, 

a
n
d
 

p
la

c
e
s
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 (
e
.g

. 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
fl
e
t)

. 
 O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 t
h
is

 p
u
b
lic

it
y
 h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 h

a
n
d
y
p
e
rs

o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 b
y
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

5
%

. 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
in

 b
u
d
g
e
t.

4
.6

E
C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
g
o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 

o
f 
fl
o
a

ti
n
g

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
c
h
e

m
e
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
, 
a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 r

e
c
e

p
ti
v
e
 

to
 i
n

n
o
v
a
ti
v
e

 m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
g
iv

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n

d
e
n
t 
in

 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

S
a
n

d
ie

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
 

/ 
T

im
 M

ill
e
r

D
e
c
-1

3
T

h
e
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 f

lo
a
ti
n
g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 A
n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 s

te
e
ri
n

g
 g

ro
u
p
. 

 

T
h
e
 e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 6

72



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 5
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 f

u
e
l 
p

o
v
e
rt

y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

5
.1

F L
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 i
n

s
p
e

c
t 

H
M

O
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

  

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
F

u
m

A
p
r-

1
3

T
h
e
 H

M
O

 a
n
d
 P

S
H

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

a
c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
. 
 A

 H
M

O
 b

o
o
k
le

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h
e

 W
e
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

e
g
u
la

tr
o
y
 G

ro
u
p
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

 T
h

e
 w

e
b
p
a
g
e
 f

o
r 

P
S

H
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
e
b
 t

e
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 

n
e
w

 w
e
b

s
it
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
. 

H
H

S
R

S
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

5
.2

F L
P

ro
v
id

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 P

R
S

 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s

T
o
 a

d
v
is

e
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

f:

• 
le

g
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
d
 

E
n
e

rg
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

 (
E

P
C

) 

to
 n

e
w

 t
e
n
a

n
ts

• 
L
a

n
d
lo

rd
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 

to
  
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
rm

a
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

• 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 m
e

e
t 
m

in
im

u
m

 E
P

C
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
E

 b
y
 2

0
1
8

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 

C
o
u
n
c
il.

  

A
n
d

re
w

 B
a
k
e
r,

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n

A
p
r-

1
3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 s

it
e
 (

e
.g

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 

H
o
u
s
e
w

a
rm

e
rs

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
w

a
ll 

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
t 

S
ti
v
e
n
 

C
re

s
c
e
n

t 
- 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 D

E
C

C
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 F

u
n
d
 (

a
ls

o
 D

E
C

C
 

fu
n
d
e
d
).

  
T

h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 t
im

e
-l
im

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 f

in
is

h
. 

 

A
 d

ra
ft
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

5
.3

F L
A

d
o
p

ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

in
im

u
m

 E
P

C
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h

e
 P

R
S

T
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 “

p
u

rc
h
a
s
in

g
 

p
o
w

e
r”

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

in
im

u
m

 E
P

C
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
F

 

w
h
e
re

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
P

R
S

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o

ld
s
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
. 
 O

ff
e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 w

h
e
re

 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 ‘
G

’ 
ra

te
d
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

in
im

u
m

 E
P

C
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
E

A
n
d

re
w

 B
a
k
e
r,

 

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

E
m

m
a
n
u
e
l 

M
F

u
m

, 
J
o
n
 

D
a
lt
o
n

A
p
r-

1
5

A
p
r-

1
8

In
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 P
S

H
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 

E
P

C
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 

fo
r 

E
P

C
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

ta
n
d

 a
t 

1
7
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
a
s
 o

f 
1
2
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 b

u
t 

th
is

 f
u
g
u

re
 w

ill
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a
te

 

re
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

5
.4

B F
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 t
e

n
a
n
ts

 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
w

h
e
n

 l
e
tt
in

g
 a

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y

T
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
e
n

a
n
ts

 a
w

a
re

 t
h
a
t 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 

n
e
e

d
 t
o
 s

h
o

w
 t
h
e
m

 a
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
E

n
e
rg

y
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 (
E

P
C

) 
a

n
d
 a

 

G
a
s
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 l
e

tt
in

g
.

S
o
ft

 f
u
rn

is
h
in

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

‘K
it
e

 M
a
rk

’ 
re

g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

’ 

ri
g
h
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 (
e
.g

. 
v
ia

 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

C
A

B
 a

n
d
 l
e
tt
in

g
s
 a

g
e
n
ts

).
  

D
e
liv

e
r 

1
0
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

  
 

A
n
d

re
w

 B
a
k
e
r,

 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

D
e
c
-1

4
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t

h
a

t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 s

it
e
 (

e
.g

. 
H

a
rr

o
w

 

H
o
u
s
e
w

a
rm

e
rs

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
w

a
ll 

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
t 

S
ti
v
e
n
 

C
re

s
c
e
n

t 
- 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 D

E
C

C
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 F

u
n
d
 (

a
ls

o
 D

E
C

C
 

fu
n
d
e
d
).

  
T

h
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 t
im

e
-l
im

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 f

in
is

h
. 

 

A
 d

ra
ft
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

5
.5

F L
A

d
o
p

t 
a
 p

o
lic

y
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d

 E
n
e
rg

y
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 (
E

P
C

) 
ra

ti
n
g
 o

f 
F

 

o
r 

G
 i
n
 P

R
S

 a
s
 a

 t
ri
g
g
e

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
. 
 

W
h
e
re

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 t
e
n
a
n

t 

a
g
re

e
s
, 
c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 f
u
ll 

H
H

R
S

R
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 h

o
m

e
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 o
n
e
 h

a
z
a
rd

 e
x
is

ts

A
n
 E

P
C

 r
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
F

 o
r 

G
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

n
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 o
n
e
 

H
H

S
R

S
 h

a
z
a
rd

 i
n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 c

o
ld

.

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 f
o
rm

a
lis

in
g
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 
 I
f 
th

is
 l
e
a
d
s
 t
o
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
, 
re

v
ie

w
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 t
ri
g
g
e
r 

to
 

te
n
a
n
ts

, 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 l
e

tt
in

g
 

a
g
e
n
ts

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r

A
p
r-

1
3
 

(s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

P
R

IS
M

)

A
ll 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
4
 a

re
 n

o
w

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 E
n
e
rg

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 (

E
P

C
s
).

  
P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
tt

ra
c
t 

a
 

c
a
te

g
o
ry

 1
 h

a
z
a

rd
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 w

ill
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

a
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
4
 n

o
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 7

73



5
.6

F
P

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 G

re
e

n
 D

e
a

l 
to

 o
w

n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p

ie
rs

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

P
R

S

H
o
u

s
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o

r 
6
6
%

 o
f 
c
a

rb
o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

. 
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n

s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 

s
in

g
le

 m
o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e

 A
c
t.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 G
re

e
n
 D

e
a
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

a
s
 

a
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 G

re
e
n
 D

e
a
l 

in
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u

c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
t 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e

 t
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 D

e
a

l.
  

A
n
d

re
w

 B
a
k
e
r

J
u
n
-1

3
T

h
e
 G

re
e
n
 D

e
a
l 
is

 a
 v

e
ry

 n
e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

is
 s

ti
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
in

w
a

rd
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

 h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
ls

o
 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 m
a
x
im

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

P
ro

je
c
t 
to

 p
ro

c
u

re
 a

 G
re

e
n
D

e
a
l/
E

C
O

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
. 
A

 s
u
p
p
lie

r 
d
a
y
 f

o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

4
 J

u
ly

. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

 I
t 

is
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
T

e
n
d
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 C
o
n

tr
a
c
t 

a
w

a
rd

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
rr

 2
0
1
3
.

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 8

74



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

 6
: 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
c

ti
o

n
 n

o

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

&
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

R
e
c

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

3
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

6
.1

F
M

a
in

ta
in

 c
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e

c
to

r 
h
o
u

s
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 H
a

rr
o
w

, 

s
u
p
p
o

rt
in

g
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
s
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

h
o
u

s
in

g
, 
a
n

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

im
s
 

a
n
d

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

re
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 

S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro

u
p

A
lis

o
n
 P

e
g
g
, 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 

S
h
a

n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r,

 

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

O
n
g
o
in

g
T

h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

te
e

ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t
o
 t
ra

c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

it
 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
is

s
u
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
.

6
.2

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 s
u
b
 r

e
g
io

n
a
lly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e

 

W
e
s
t 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 s

h
a

re
d
 g

o
a
ls

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 s

u
b
 r

e
g
io

n
, 
a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 g
o

o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

P
e
ri
o
d
ic

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 W

L
H

P
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

B
e
s
t 
u
s
e

 o
f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
  

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

O
n
g
o
in

g
H

a
rr

o
w

 m
e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 W

e
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
is

s
u
e
s
. 

 M
o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
, 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 b
id

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

L
A

 t
o
 t

a
c
k
le

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

(s
e
e
 3

.2
).

  
F

o
rm

a
lis

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
t 

B
e
d
 &

 B
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

“S
e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

”)
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 (
s
e
e
 2

.8
 a

b
o
v
e
)

6
.3

F G
In

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
g

a
g
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

s
e
c
to

r 
te

n
a
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
.

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
te

n
a

n
ts

 k
n
o
w

 h
o

w
 t
o
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 t
h
e

ir
 r

ig
h
ts

 t
h
e
 P

R
S

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

F
o
c
u
s
-g

ro
u
p
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
ri
g
h
ts

 a
n
d

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
b
ili

ti
e
s

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
, 

N
a
d

e
e
m

 D
in

A
p

r-
2
0
1
3
 

a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 

to
 A

p
r-

2
0
1
8

A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 P
ri
v
a
te

 T
e
n
a
n
ts

' F
o
ru

m
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 

S
u
m

m
e

r 
2
0
1
2
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

fr
o
m

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
is

 F
o
ru

m
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 a

n
 e

v
e
n
t 

to
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
 o

n
 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 

T
e
n
a
n
ts

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
. 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

th
e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a

r

6
.4

E F
R

e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 t
e
n
a

n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

c
a
n
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t
e
n

a
n
ts

’ 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 r

ig
h
ts

 a
n
d

 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
te

n
a

n
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 r

ig
h
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
 t
e

n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
e
n

a
n
t 
a
n
d

 p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

s
e
c
to

r 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
. 
 T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
e
n

a
n
ts

 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il.

  

D
e
liv

e
r 

1
0
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a

te
 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
w

id
e
n
in

g
 

th
e
 a

u
d
ie

n
c
e
 t
o
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
  
 

J
o
n

 D
a
lt
o
n
 /
 

M
a
ri
e
 O

’S
h
e
a

A
p
r-

1
4

W
e
’r
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 H

M
O

 p
re

-t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
. 

6
.5

D
Im

p
ro

v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
a
n

d
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
P

R
S

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
a
n

d
lo

rd
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

a
n
d

 f
o
ru

m
s

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 1

0
0
 m

o
re

 l
a
n
d

lo
rd

s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

A
p
r-

1
4

T
h
e
 E

C
O

/G
re

e
n
 D

e
a
l 
(a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

w
a
y
 o

f 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
a

n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

6
.6

M
a
in

ta
in

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

te
a
m

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
s
 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
a
n
 o

b
ta

in
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
t 
le

a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

te
a
m

s
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

O
n
g
o
in

g
A

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
th

e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t

o
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 

jo
in

e
d
-u

p
. 

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 9

75



E
q

u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

A
c
ti

o
n

R
e
a
s

o
n

s
M

e
a
s
u

ra
b

le
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

T
a
rg

e
t/

P
ro

g
re

s
s

A
ll

E
x
p
a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

R
o
b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

e
q
u
a
lly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 E

m
m

a
n
u
e
l 

M
fu

m

A
p
r-

1
3

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 f
o
r 

P
S

H
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
s
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 c

a
p
tu

re
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
.

A
ll

E
x
p
a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
f 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

R
o
b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

e
q
u
a
lly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 M

ic
k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

A
p
r-

1
4

T
h
is

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
tu

rn
s

A
ll

E
n
s
u
re

 e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

R
o
b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

e
q
u
a
lly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

ll 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 E

la
in

e
 S

lo
w

e
/ 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 S

c
o
tt

A
p
r-

1
4

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 G

ra
n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
rm

 f
o
r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
rm

. 
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
rm

s
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 o

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

A
ll

Im
p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 M
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

m
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

J
o
n
 D

a
lt
o
n
 /
 

S
h
a
n
k
a
r 

S
iv

a
s
h
a
n
k
a
r

R
e
v
ie

w
 

A
p
r-

2
0
1
4

A
 d

ra
ft
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

A
g
e
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
. 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
.

J
o
n
 D

a
lt
o
n
 /
 

J
e
n
n
if
e
r 

T
o
w

n
s
le

y

J
u
l-
1
3

W
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 

d
a
ta

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
 

to
 c

a
p
tu

re
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 d

a
ta

A
g
e
, 
R

a
c
e

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 w
a
rm

th
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

in
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fu

e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 
d
e
a
th

s

A
n
d
re

w
 B

a
k
e
r

F
ro

m
 

A
p
r-

2
0
1
3
 

a
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 w

a
rm

th
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 
a
g
e

H
a
n
d
y
p
e
rs

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
it
y
 

re
le

a
s
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

(o
n
ly

 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

o
ld

e
r 

a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
).

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

h
o
m

e

M
ic

k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

R
e
v
ie

w
 

A
p
r-

2
0
1
4

R
e
g
u
la

r 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
s
 d

ra
m

a
ti
c
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

h
a
n
d
y
p
e

rs
o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
e
q
u
it
y
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

e
rs

.

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 
a
g
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ri
v
a
te

 w
o
rk

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

a
y
 b

u
t 

n
o
t 
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

h
o
m

e

M
ic

k
 S

h
e
e
h
y

A
p
r-

2
0
1
4
 

(p
ro

p
o
s

a
ls

 D
e
c
-

2
0
1
3
)

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 s
e
t 

th
e
 H

IA
 u

p
 a

s
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 

o
n
 

h
o
ld

, 
fo

r 
le

g
a
l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

o
ff

e
r 

th
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

re
v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

 

in
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

E
q

7

E
q

8

E
q

3

E
q

4

E
q

5

E
q

6

E
q

1

E
q

2

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
c
ti

o
n

 n
o

C
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v
\D

a
ta

\A
g

e
n

d
a

It
e

m
D

o
c
s
\5

\6
\3

\A
I0

0
0

8
3

3
6

5
\$

u
d

s
h

m
s
w

y
.x

ls
P

a
g

e
 1

0

76



 
 

Page 1 of 14 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

 
11 July 2013 

Subject: 

 

 
Children and Families Performance 

Responsible Officer: 

 

 
Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of Children 
and Families 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

 
Councillor Christine Bednell, Policy Lead Member 
for Children & Families  
Councillor Victoria Silver, Performance Lead 
Member for Children & Families 

Exempt: 

 

 
No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Education Scorecard 
Appendix 2 – Children’s Services Scorecard 
 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

1.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested a report on Children 
and Families performance at the meeting in March 2013.  It was 
agreed with the chair of O&S that the report should be considered by 
Performance and Finance Sub Committee.  

 
1.2. Scrutiny members have also asked for information on school place 

planning.  A brief update is provided in the schools’ section of this 
report.  A more detailed members’ briefing session is scheduled for 
2nd July and a report on school place planning goes to Cabinet on 
18th July. 

 
Recommendations:  
1.3. This report is presented for the Committee’s consideration and 

comment 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 77 to 98

77



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 

 
2.1. The Children and Families Directorate is continuing with its work to 

improve the service quality and outcomes for children and families. We 
have closed down the post-Ofsted improvement plan and embarked 
on the next stage of our improvement journey. Our new improvement 
plan arises from our self-evaluation, our quality assurance activity 
(including external evaluation, staff and user feedback) and service 
improvement priorities. It is a high-level systemic plan focusing on 
what we want to achieve in relation to our arrangements for the 
protection of children. Our improvement plan has five over-arching 
improvement themes which sit across child protection services in the 
directorate, including early help services:  

 
§ Culture that changes things for children 
§ Working together for children 
§ Quality of casework and managing risk to children 
§ Holding the perspective of the child (ie not just 'voice') 
§ Good systems 

 
2.2. The improvement plan is being supported by strengthened 

commissioning of local services.  The strategic commissioning 
approach in C&F involves work to identify efficiencies, transform 
services and to be the engine of change for the whole children and 
families system.  Re-commissioning is taking place across internal and 
externally-provided services, including short breaks and capital 
funding for children with disabilities, speech and language therapies, 
substance misuse services, sexual health and child & adolescent 
mental health services. The aim is to both meet financial challenges 
and improve outcomes for children and their families. 

 
 
Quality Assurance Work 2012-13 
 

2.3. The Child’s Journey improvements have been informed by the 
strengthened Quality Assurance function in C&F.  The following 
reviews took place over the last year: 

 

Children with Disabilities 
(CwD) Team Audit 

Children with Disabilities cases April 2012 

Social Work Supervision 
Audit 

Supervision across Children in 
Need (CiN), CLA, Access & CwD 
services 

April 2012 

CiN1 Team Audit 1 CiN & Child Protection (CP) 
cases managed by CiN1 

April 2012 

CLA Audit Children in Care, almost all in 
CLA1 or CLA2 Teams 

May 2012 

CiN1 Team Audit 2 CiN & CP cases managed by June 2012 

78



 
CiN1 

LSCB Early CP Cases Audit Early stages of child protection 
cases (multi-agency) 

Sept 2012 

LSCB Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
Evaluation 

MASH Service/Team Sept 2012 

CLA1 Team Deep Dive Children Looked After October 
2012 

Early Intervention Service 
Managers QA Away Day 

Early Intervention Service November 
2012 

Safeguarding Peer 
Challenge 

Contact, Referral and Access 
Service; CiN 1 & 2; Documents 

December 
2012 

Independent Reviewing 
Officer Inspection 

Independent Reviewing Officers 
work with Looked After Children 
cases 

December 
2012 

LSCB & C&F Action Plans Response to a ‘near miss’ case November 
2012 

Sixteen Cases as Potential 
Examples of Good Practice 
Interim Report 

Factors enabling and restraining 
16 high-potential cases to 
become ‘good’  

February 
2013 

§ Five child protection 
cases re young children  

§ Multi agency review of 
supervision and 
management oversight  

§ Multi agency observation 
of CP Conferences 

§ Parents’ experience of 
child protection planning 

§ Child’s safeguarding 
journey  

 

Multi stranded review resulting in 
a single summary report 

March 
2013 

 
2.4. The themes emerging from these reviews are all captured in our 

overarching Child’s Journey improvement plan, 2013-14. Resulting 
changes include the revised multi-agency threshold document, daily 
MASH meetings, child protection panels and reduction in longer term 
child protection plans.  Training is being provided for staff and 
managers in systemic thinking – with a focus on systemic input and 
making a difference to the lives of vulnerable children.  

 
2.5. Work on thresholds has already resulted in more cases going to court 

and an increase in numbers of looked after children.  The service is 
continuing to increase its use of in-house foster carers to meet this 
increasing demand. 

 
2.6. The Children and Families Management Team invited the Local 

Government Association in to do a peer review of our safeguarding 
arrangements. We wanted an external assessment of improvements 
at the end of the six-month period following the Ofsted Inspection in 

79



 
May. The LGA’s team undertook the safeguarding peer review in 
December 2012. The team identified the following improvements: 

 
• Harrow has shown demonstrable commitment to rapid service 

improvement and this was apparent at all levels of the organisation. 
There are some very innovative approaches to service improvement 
including direct work with children, consultation and direct work by 
Morning Lane Associates, and the approach being taken to deliver 
rapid improvement in the Contact Referral and Assessment service. 

• We found good political and corporate support for the safeguarding 
agenda and the work of the LSCB. 

• There is a strong focus on quality assurance led by an experienced 
and able team who have been able to deliver direct ‘hands on’ support 
to services and to work collaboratively with operational teams on 
developing a more comprehensive approach to evaluating practice. 
This new approach includes practice observations and interviews as 
well as case audit and gives a much more in depth view of the quality 
of work. 

• The department and its partners work well together at strategic and 
operational levels. We noted the recent work on strengthening the 
LSCB as well as the very good evidence of inter-agency working in the 
case file audits and the practice observations. 

• People that we met demonstrated a real passion and commitment to 
Harrow and wanting to do the best possible job for the benefit of its 
children and families. We saw a workforce that is resilient and keen to 
progress. 

• There was some evidence on files of drift and inappropriate case 
closures in the past although there has been significant improvement 
and much more pro-activity in recent months. 

(Extract from peer review report) 

 
2.7. We are not complacent about the level of the challenge or the distance 

to travel in terms of improving the quality of practice and securing 
good outcomes for children. We believe our new approach to service 
improvement, which focuses relentlessly on the child’s journey will 
enable us to make rapid improvement.  

 
 
Inspection Results 
 

2.8. Children’s services are the most inspected area of public services with 
tough regimes in place for schools, social care and all major areas of 
provision.  

 
2.9. Harrow’s rates of good and outstanding schools are amongst the best 

in England.  Since the revised school inspection framework was 
introduced in September 2012, the number of schools nationally 
judged ‘Outstanding’ has fallen significantly.   

 
2.10. Harrow schools' Ofsted Inspection judgments of their 'Overall 

Effectiveness' as at May 2013 were as follows: 

80



 
 
Overall 
effectiveness 

Total number of 
providers 

Outstanding Good Requires 
Improvement 

Inadequate/ 
Special 
Measures 

Harrow 
schools  
 

62 56%  
(34 
schools) 

39% 
(24 
schools) 

5%  
(3 schools) 

2% 
(1 school) 
 

London 2,455 28% 52% 17% 2% 
England  21,548 21% 53% 23% 3% 

Source: HSIP records for Harrow, Ofsted Dataview for comparators as at 31.12.12 
 

2.11. Recent school inspections:   
§ Pinner Park Junior School - Good 
§ Whitchurch Junior School - Outstanding 
§ Kenmore Park Junior School – Good 
§ Camrose – Good 
§ Alexandra – Outstanding 
§ Stanburn – Good  
§ Aylward – Inadequate, Special Measures 
§ Park High - Outstanding 
§ Woodlands – Outstanding 
§ St John’s CofE – awaiting judgement 
§ Grange Primary – awaiting judgement 
§ Weald Junior – awaiting judgement 

 
2.12. Other judgements (most recent): 
§ Safeguarding and Looked After Children’s Services - Adequate 
§ Fostering Services – Good 
§ Adoptions Services – Good 
§ Private Fostering Services – Good 
§ Honeypot Lane – Good 
§ The Firs - Outstanding 
§ Children’s Centres – Pinner Wood Adequate, Grange Adequate, 

Cedars Good, Hillview Hub awaiting judgement 
§ Youth Offending (HMIP led inspection) – no grading, substantial 

improvement required 
§ Childminders – 67% good or outstanding, no inadequate providers 
§ Childcare in PVI settings – 75% good or outstanding, 2 inadequate 

providers 
 
 
Performance Challenges in Targeted Services 
 

2.13. The focus on improving the quality of social care has involved review 
of thresholds to ensure that vulnerability is being identified and 
appropriate intervention takes place.  As a result more children and 
families are being assessed and more child protection investigations 
are being carried out.  The ‘front door’ is identifying a greater level of 
need in the local community leading to greater levels of early 
intervention or targeted services.   

 
2.14. From 2011-12 to 2012-13 there was an increase of 56% in number of 

core assessments carried out by social workers, a 51% increase in 

81



 
Section 47 investigations.   The activity has been seen to increase 
further in the early months of 2013-14 – there were 23 and 17 new 
child protection plans put in place in April and May respectively 
compared with an average of 12 per month in 2012-13.  There have 
also been 34 new children looked after in the first 2 months of the year 
compared with an average of 8 per month in 2012-13. 

 
2.15. Comparison of monthly activity for April 2013 with the previous April 

highlights the increase in Harrow’s activity: 
 

    Contacts 
Description Apr-12 Apr-13 % increase 

Number of contacts started (month on 
month) 606 809 33% 

     Referrals 

Description Apr-12 Apr 13 % increase 
Number of referrals started (month on 
month) 91 231 154% 

    Assessments 
Description Apr-12 Apr-13 % increase 
Number of Initial Assessments 
completed (month on month) 43 96 123% 

   Safeguarding workflow 
Description Apr-12 Apr-13 % increase 
Number of strategy discussions held 
(month on month) 34 116 241% 
Number of s47 enquires started 
(month on month) 22 82 273% 

                               
 
 

2.16. Comparison of ‘front door’ activity with statistical neighbours shows 
that Harrow’s assessment activity was comparatively low in previous 
years.  While referral rates in 2012 were similar to authorities such as 
Kingston and Merton, a far lower number of assessments were 
completed.  In the context of the introduction of single assessment, it 
is reasonable to compare total assessment numbers.  The recent 
increase brings Harrow close to levels in similar authorities.  

 

Statistical 
Neighbours 

No. of 
Referrals 

No. of Initial 
Assessments 

No. of Core 
Assessments 

Total 
Assessments 

Barnet 3,315 3,096 653 3,749 
Croydon 4,177 3,414 1,725 5,139 
Ealing 3,864 2,672 1,661 4,333 
Enfield 2,660 2,387 1,450 3,837 
Harrow (2011-
12) 

1,536 749 601 1,350 

Harrow  (2012-
13 Prov) 

1,460 824 937 1,761 

Hillingdon 3,625 3,024 1,162 4,186 

82



 
Hounslow 2,221 1,728 897 2,625 
Kingston Upon 
Thames 

1,232 1,169 746 1,915 

Merton 1,527 1,143 657 1,800 
Redbridge 3,691 3,435 1,608 5,043 
Slough 1,871 1,736 822 2,558 

 
2.17. The activity is resulting in increased care proceedings for the most 

vulnerable children, as the data below shows: 
 

Harrow Care Proceedings   

  % increase 2012/13  2011/12 

Legal Planning Meeting 
 

17% 91 78 

Pre Proceedings Meeting 
 

18% 20 17 

Stage 1: On Issue And At First 
Appointment 

114% 45 21 

Stage 2: Advocate’s 
Meeting/Discussions & Cm 
Conference 

100% 
 

28 14 

Stage 3: Advocates Meeting And 
Issues Resolution Hearing 

50% 
 

18 12 

Stage 4: Hearing 50% 15 10 
 
 43% 217 152 

 
2.18. The rate of repeat child protection plans is down on the previous year.   

Focused work, early intervention and preventative work is reducing the 
need for repeat plans for all children in need. This, combined with the 
very large increase in activity levels described above, demonstrates 
our commitment to lowering the threshold for social care intervention 
over the past year.  It is likely that we will continue to see sustained 
higher levels of assessments, child protection plans and children in 
care. 

 
2.19. A weekly safeguarding meeting is chaired by the Director of Children’s 

Services and monitors caseloads, activity and compliance levels 
across social care.  This session focuses on improving social care, 
which has recently seen a number of management changes and faces 
significant workforce issues. 

 
2.20. Stability of social care workforce – there is a high number of agency 

workers currently in the service.  Our recruitment and retention 
strategy was finalised during May. We have recruited an external HR 
specialist who is project managing this. Our recent recruitment 
campaign from Feb 2013 resulted in over 70 applications for social 
work posts and we have appointed 12 social workers, 4 senior 
practitioners and one service manager. We continue to offer 
placements for step up to social work students and are offering 6 for 

83



 
autumn 2013 with a view to those becoming members of staff in due 
course. We have also expressed interest in the new national graduate 
programme for social work – ‘Frontline’ - and are hoping to form a 
partnership approach to this with our West London Alliance 
colleagues. Our change proposals are being implemented to realign 
work flow, to reduce numbers of changes of social worker that children 
experience, and to enable better quality and more timely work at the 
front line.   We are launching a further recruitment campaign shortly to 
address posts that were not filled - some senior practitioners and team 
manager posts - and to ensure ongoing recruitment of social workers. 
Currently all social workers in the Children Looked After Service are 
permanent.  However, due to the levels of increased activity, and 
number of open cases including child protection plans we are currently 
operating with12 social workers above establishment.  

 
2.21. Social Care Assessments - Our thresholds for social care 

intervention were reviewed in early 2013-14 in order to ensure that all 
vulnerable children receive an appropriate intervention either through 
Targeted Services or Early Intervention.  Oversight and timely 
completion of assessments has improved significantly for Q4 since the 
Service Manager Quality Assurance was seconded into this area. 78% 
of Initial & 81% of Core assessments were completed on time in 
March 2013.  For 2013-14, a single assessment has been introduced 
in line with the Munro recommendations and the focus on quality of 
social work practice is being supported with simplified systems and 
processes.   We have appointed a permanent service manager for our 
front line service who starts in August 2013.  

 
2.22. Stability of placements for CLA – Both short and long term stability 

of placements need further focused work to be in line with our 
statistical neighbours. We have scrutinised reasons for this through 
forensic examination of individual children. The Divisional Director 
Targeted Services Division (DD TSD) has set up an Access to 
Resources Panel which scrutinises all placement moves for 
authorisation before they are implemented. This panel sits weekly and 
although it is too early to see impact yet we are confident that the 
required change in approach to placement moves and entry to care in 
a planned and purposeful way will improve. 

 
2.23. Outcomes for care leavers - Rates of care leavers in suitable 

accommodation and in education, employment and training (EET) are 
both below expected levels. A workshop has already been held with 
the team and managers to develop ownership and action planning to 
improve our outcomes for care leavers.  Care leavers EET is being 
supported by additional resource to track cases and support young 
people through the Virtual School.  

 
2.24. Educational outcomes for CLA - Harrow School Improvement 

Partnership has been commissioned to support improvements in the 
CLA virtual school.  This project, involving a range of Council and 
school staff began during Q4 2012-13 and aims to improve 
attendance, achievement and educational experience for CLA.  As we 

84



 
near the end of the academic year, attendance of CLA shows 
significant improvement on the previous year.  7 CLA have had a fixed 
term exclusion compared to 9 last year; these young people are a 
priority for the Virtual School.  There have been no permanent 
exclusions. Two workshops so far have been held to promote and 
prioritise the work of the Virtual School and a robust action plan has 
been developed. 

 
 
Youth Offending 
 

2.25. The implementation of the improvement plan for the Youth Offending 
Service continues.  The most recent monitoring has shown significant 
improvement, particularly for assessments.  There is work to do to 
ensure that the quality of plans is good and that timely visits are 
carried out. The team continues to focus on improving practice and is 
receiving internal and external support to drive this.  Most recent 
outcomes data shows that first time offending has dropped for Harrow.  
Reoffending and custody rates remain stable.  Education, employment 
and training rates for offenders are below average – this is a priority 
for improvement given the high levels of EET in the general 
population. 

 
 
Schools and SEN 
 

2.26. Harrow sets challenging targets for education indicators and continues 
to perform well in comparison with similar authorities.   Challenges 
remain on exclusions and narrowing the achievement gap.  In 2013, 
absence rates in primary schools improved slightly during the spring 
term; secondary dropped slightly.  One academy high school received 
a judgement of ‘requires improvement’ around behavioural standards.  
One primary school and one academy high school are currently below 
2012 floor standards.  The authority is working with both schools to 
improve this position. 

 
Targeted Basic Need 

2.27. The Government launched the Targeted Basic Need Programme 
(TBNP) on 1 March to support local authorities with the greatest 
pressure on school places.  There is £982m funding for the two year 
period 2013-2015.  The funding is for new schools (academies and 
free schools), and to permanently expand good and outstanding 
schools with high levels of demand in areas of pressure.  The funding 
is in addition to the Government’s Basic Need Allocation of which 
Harrow received £14.69million over the two years 2013/14 – 2014/15.   

 
2.28. The Education Funding Agency (EFA) has also made £80m available 

to address 16-19 demographic growth in schools and colleges.  Both 
funding streams can be used to increase provision for pupils with 
special education needs.  16 bids in total were submitted on 30 April. 
DfE announcements are expected in June. 

 

85



 
School Place Planning in Harrow 

2.29. The school population has been increasing in Harrow and there is 
current pressure on primary school places (which will impact on 
secondary schools in future) and on special school places.  To 
address the pressure on school places: 
§ Cabinet agreed the Phase 1 Primary Expansion Programme in 

June 2012, and as a result, 9 schools on 7 sites will be 
permanently expanded. In November 2012 a proposal to bring 
forward a second phase of expansions was agreed.   This will be 
taken to Cabinet in July 2013 

§ A consultation was undertaken on special schools and SEN 
placement planning framework in Autumn 2012 including options 
to increase capacity in Harrow. 

§ For September 2013, an additional 17 reception classes will open 
including the 8 permanent expansions (the above plus Krishna 
Avanti). 

 
Development of Phase 2 Primary Expansion Programme  

2.30. The pupil population in Harrow has been increasing and is projected to 
continue to do so. The availability of places is also changing. For 
example: 
§ Avanti House primary phase will not be in Harrow from 

September 2014 and therefore a further two forms of entry are 
now required.  

§ It is increasingly difficult to secure agreement from schools to 
open bulge classes for a variety of reasons. There is a preference 
for permanent expansion; spaces that would have been available 
from the change in age of transfer have either been used for 
bulge classes to date or accommodation has been reconfigured 
to improve the learning environment, and therefore there are 
capital requirements to reinstate spaces.   

§ Some schools that have potential for expansion are not in the 
right location to meet demand.  

§ There may be some issues that arise in relation to expectations 
about school size arising from the need for schools in Harrow to 
become larger than has historically been the case. 

 
2.31. In the light of the current position and the potential for funding through 

TBNP, it is proposed that a larger number of permanent expansions 
are brought forward across Harrow.  A target for the second phase of 
13 additional permanent reception classes, 10 community schools and 
3 voluntary aided schools is being considered to be delivered by 
September 2015 or earlier. If these are implemented, when the Kodak 
primary school is opened (a further 3 forms of entry), expected to be in 
September 2015 or 2016, there will be 24 additional reception classes 
from the September 2009 baseline. 

 
2.32. It is proposed, subject to agreement by schools, that the statutory 

process to permanently expand schools will commence in Autumn 
2013 with an implementation date of September 2014.  This will 
include those schools that have been included in the Priority Schools 

86



 
Building Programme and those that will be funded from DfE Basic 
Need allocations as well as those included in the TBNP bid. 

 
Secondary 

2.33. The demand for secondary school places peaks in September 2021 
with a small shortfall of places starting in September 2016. The 
demand for secondary school places falls outside the timescale for the 
TBN funding. However, 2 bids were included  - one around a proposal 
for the Teachers Centre site, to be developed in partnership with 
Whitefriars and high schools. 

 
Special Schools and Provision for Pupils with Special Educational Needs 

2.34. A consultation was undertaken in autumn 2012 on the Special School 
and SEN Placement Planning Framework which included options to 
increase provision in Harrow for pupils with special educational needs.  
Applications will be included in line with the options in the Framework. 

 
2.35. Options to increase capacity within Kingsley and Shaftesbury Schools 

are being considered. These schools are also working with Harrow 
and Stanmore Colleges to explore options for increasing provision for 
16-25 year olds.  TBNP bids were submitted to increase capacity at 
Kingsley, Shaftesbury and Woodlands. A bid for 16-24 provision was 
submitted to the Demographic Growth Fund.  

 
2.36. The Special School and SEN Placement Planning Framework also 

includes options to increase resourced provision on mainstream 
school sites and three bids were submitted for the TBNP. 

 
2.37. The report on the next phase of the transformation of the special 

needs transport service was considered by Cabinet on 11 April.  The 
decision of Cabinet was subject to call-in.  A call-in committee on 29 
April upheld one of the three grounds that were presented to the 
committee, relating to consultation with the trades unions, the 
workforce and service users.  A further report is due to go to Cabinet 
recognising the need to consult more fully. 

 
 
Early Intervention 
 

2.38. The Early Intervention Service is continuing lead on implementation of 
the Families First project.  The service has worked with 120 high need 
families under this programme (which is know nationally as ‘Troubled 
Families’) during 2012-13.  Measurement of outcomes against the 
baseline is currently taking place and the first report to DCLG is due in 
July 2013.  Additional families are being identified for intervention 
during 2013-14, with a further 200 families expected to be involved. 

 
2.39. To support improving school attendance and reducing persistent 

absence, EIS has piloted an Attendance Intervention Model and the 
use of Education Penalty Notices with a number of Harrow schools 
during this academic year. The project is currently being reviewed and 
streamlined ready for a September roll-out across the borough. Whilst 

87



 
prosecution of parents is seen by EIS and schools as a last resort, 
pilot schools have been encouraged that this has become a genuine 
option, as previously legal action rarely took place.  

 
2.40. Children’s Centres continue to deliver services to Harrow’s youngest 

children through the hub and spoke model, which sees 16 settings 
continue to operate to maximise the reach to Harrow’s communities.  
Nearly 15,000 families have registered with our Children’s Centres.  
3,908 different Harrow families accessed Children's centre services 
from January - March 2013 .  45% of these families live in the most 
deprived areas of Harrow.  75% of children attending during Q4 were 
from BME groups. 

 
2.41. From Jan - March 2013  1,475 families accessed Early learning & Play 

groups, 1,343 families accessed Health Visitors, 609 families 
accessed Midwives, 130 families accessed ESOL courses and 149 
families accessed Healthy Eating courses.  These are just some of the 
activities - many more activities are held at centres. 

 
 
Additional Issues and Highlights from Performance Scorecard 
 

2.42.  Note that all social care indicators are currently provisional, 
submission to DfE is due before end July: 
§ Year end positions on timeliness of contacts, referrals and 

assessments reflect the significant drop in performance earlier in 
the year – see above 

§ Only 6 Child Protection Plans (CPP) have been in place for more 
than 2 years.  This is a major improvement from the peak of 30 
cases in 2011 and robust monitoring and action on CPP is now 
being demonstrated 

§ Although incidences of repeat CPP are above target, the rate is 
significantly down on the previous year  

§ Timeliness of adoptions is 100% which is an excellent result. We 
currently have 9 children in adoptive placements who should be 
formally adopted in the next year. We are also likely to place 
more children for adoption this year and increase our numbers of 
children being placed permanently with family members under a 
Special Guardianship Order. 

§ The result on CLA reviews within timescale is disappointing 
compared with prior years and is a priority for improvement  

§ A process for initial health assessments of CLA has been agreed 
with health partners but timescales are not yet being met 

§ Absence of CLA – major reduction on previous year, but 
continued reduction in absence is a priority for the virtual school 

§ 7 CLA have had a fixed term exclusion, significantly lower than 
this time last year but also a priority for the virtual school.  There 
have been no permanent exclusions  

§ Our numbers of children looked after who are placed more than 
20 miles away has significantly reduced on previous years which 
is also a very positive change. We are now performing well above 
our statistical neighbours on this indicator. Placing children closer 

88



 
to their home borough means it is easier to ensure robust care 
planning for their health and education arrangements, and being 
closer to home means they are likely to have better arrangements 
for contact with family. 

§ From the public health scorecard, 12 week booking for maternity 
is below target – this has been raised with the CCG 

§ Immunisations continue to be a challenge for local GP practices – 
work is focusing on new arrivals and hard to reach families    

 
2.43. See attached scorecards for full details of C&F performance 

indicators. 
 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 
Financial Implications 
 

2.44. The Children’s social care budgets currently face pressure due to the 
12 social workers above establishment.  The service is looking to 
manage this pressure within the overall budget. 

 
2.45. The school place planning financial implications are covered by grant 

i.e. DSG and bulge classes funding form part of the expansion 
programme and are supported from capital funding.  The local 
authority is currently waiting to hear from the DfE on outcomes of 
some bids. 

 
Performance Issues 

2.46. Integral to the report 
 
Environmental Impact 

2.47. None 
 
Risk Management Implications 

2.48. No new implications.  Risks relating to poor performance and 
inspections are already included in the C&F risk register and are 
reviewed and updated each quarter. 

 
Equalities Implications 

2.49. None 
 
Corporate Priorities 

2.50. Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 
 

 

 

89



 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:Patricia Harvey √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 28 June 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Sarah Wilson √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 28 June 2013 

   
 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact:  David Harrington 
Tel : 020 8420 9248  e-mail : david.harrington@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: Performance Scorecard 2012-13 

90



2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

R
e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
N

 A
V

G

2
0
1
2
/1

3

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
3
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

Q
4
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

E
1

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�

0
.0

3
%

(s
p
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

0
.0

4
%

 /
 

1
1

(s
p
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

(s
p
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

0
.0

3
%

 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

 H
R

0
.0

2
%

 /
 8

 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-

1
3
)

↑
H

G

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 

fa
ll 

fr
o
m

 1
2
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 t
o
 8

 (
0
.0

2
%

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
) 

in
 

th
e
 s

p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

s
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
la

rg
e
ly

 r
e
lie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

A
c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

E
2

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 
F

ix
e
d
 T

e
rm

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 H
a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�

1
.0

%

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

1
.0

9
%

 /
 

3
3
3
 

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
R

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

0
.9

7
%

 

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

H
G

0
.6

1
%

 /
 1

9
7
 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-

1
3
)

↑
H

G

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

fa
ll 

fr
o
m

 2
6
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 t
o
 1

9
7
 (

0
.6

1
%

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
) 

in
 t
h
e
 s

p
ri
n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

s
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
la

rg
e
ly

 r
e
lie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

A
c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

c
o
u
ld

, 
o
n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

, 
re

la
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 o

n
e
 a

s
 i
f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 l
o
n
g
 

o
r 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
 F

T
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

E
3

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
-

4
.0

3
%

a
u
tu

m
n

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

(a
u
tu

m
n

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

4
.5

%

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

 H
R

4
.7

3
%

 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-

1
3
)

↑
 L

R

A
 m

o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
  
ta

rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 l
o
w

 

re
d
 r

a
g
 s

ta
tu

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 s

p
ri
n
g
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
p
a
s
s
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 L

A
 i
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

E
4

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
-

5
.2

%

(a
u
tu

m
n

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

(a
u
tu

m
n

2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

T
e
rm

ly
 r

a
te

 

n
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

5
.0

%

(s
p
ri
n
g

2
0
1
2
-1

3
)

 L
R

5
.6

8
%

 

(s
p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
-

1
3
)

↓
 H

R

A
 m

o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
  
ta

rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 h
ig

h
 

re
d
 r

a
g
 s

ta
tu

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 s

p
ri
n
g
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 
 

T
h
e
 L

A
 i
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

E
5

P
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 o

r 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
5
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

9
8
.9

%

(u
p
 t
o
 3

1
s
t 

D
e
c
 2

0
1
0
)

9
3
.8

%
9
5
%

H
G

1
0
0
%

↔
H

G

E
6

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 o

r 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
0
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

8
8
.1

%

(u
p
 t
o
 3

1
s
t 

D
e
c
 2

0
1
0
)

8
1
.6

%
1
0
0
%

L
R

9
0
%

↔
L

R
O

n
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

y
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

ju
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

E
7

S
E

N
-s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
w

k
s
 (

e
x
c
l.
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
)

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
5
%

1
0
0
%

H
G

9
5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

9
5
%

9
5
%

H
G

9
8
.5

%
↓

L
G

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
b
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
. 
 S

ta
ff
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

ta
b
le

 a
n
d
 w

e
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r.

 O
u
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
A

p
ri
l 
to

 M
a
rc

h
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
t 
9
8
.2

%
. 
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

e
ig

h
t 
w

e
e
k
s
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

E
8

S
E

N
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

k
s
 (

a
ll 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

)

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
0
%

9
0
%

L
G

8
4
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

8
7
%

8
5
%

H
G

8
8
.8

%
↓

L
G

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 s

o
m

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

u
c
h
 l
ia

is
o
n
 

a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
. 
J
u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

a
 t
h
ir
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 f
it
te

d
 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
, 

th
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 S

E
N

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 

O
u
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fo

r 
A

p
ri
l 
to

 M
a
rc

h
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
t 
8
8
.1

%
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 t
o
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
u
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

’ 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

e
 w

e
re

 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

6
 w

e
e
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 c

a
s
e
s
, 
w

h
e
re

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
u
p
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
/s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

E
9

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

S
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
5
5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

5
6
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

L
G

6
4
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

6
4
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

5
8
%

 

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
G

6
0
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
L

G

E
1
0
 -

 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
h
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
3
7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

3
6
.5

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

L
G

3
1
.1

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

3
1
.3

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

3
4
.5

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

3
0
.8

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

G

E
1
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

s
 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 t
e
s
ts

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
7
9
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

7
8
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

A
8
1
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

7
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

8
2
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
G

8
3
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
L

G

T
h
e
 D

fE
 h

a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. 
M

o
s
t 
n
o
ta

b
le

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 

o
f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
e
d
 o

f 
R

e
a
d
in

g
 

te
s
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

; 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 

a
n
y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

.

1
0
1
/0

7
/1

3

91



2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

R
e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
N

 A
V

G

2
0
1
2
/1

3

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
3
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

Q
4
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

E
1
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
0
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

8
7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

A
9
1
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

8
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

9
0
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
G

9
1
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
L

G

T
h
e
 D

fE
 h

a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

 a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. 
M

o
s
t 
n
o
ta

b
le

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 

o
f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
e
d
 o

f 
R

e
a
d
in

g
 

te
s
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 W

ri
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

; 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 

a
n
y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

.

E
1
3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
8
7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

8
6
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

A
8
8
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

8
7
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

8
8
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
G

9
0
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
L

G

E
1
4

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ri

m
a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 n

o
t 

re
a
c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 K

S
2
 f

lo
o

r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 u
n

d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

A
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
is

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fl
o
o
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 i
f 
(i
) 

le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

6
0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
, 
(i
i)
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 m

a
k
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 (

2
0
1
2
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

n
 =

 9
2
%

) 
, 
a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 m

a
k
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 (

2
0
1
2
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

n
 =

 9
0
%

).

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
0

4

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

1
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

4
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

0

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

1

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

R

O
n
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fe

ll 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
2
 K

S
2
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 

n
o
t 
a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
a
tt
e
rn

 t
h
e
 L

A
 i
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l,
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

S
IP

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

E
1
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

b
o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
2
6
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

2
0
%

(2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

H
G

1
5
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

1
7
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

1
5
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

 L
R

1
6
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
 L

R

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
in

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 v

e
ry

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.
 W

e
 a

re
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
 1

5
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fe

ll 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 F

is
c
h
e
r 

F
a
m

ily
 

T
ru

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 A

 a
n
d
 B

. 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

 D
, 
b
e
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
 m

in
d
 o

u
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 u
n
re

a
lis

ti
c
 

ta
rg

e
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 i
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r

E
1
6

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

b
o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

4
7
.8

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

-
4
6
%

 

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

4
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

4
0
.5

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

 L
R

4
4
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
 L

R

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
in

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 v

e
ry

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.
 W

e
 a

re
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
 4

0
.5

%
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fe

ll 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 F

is
c
h
e
r 

F
a
m

ily
 T

ru
s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 A

 a
n
d
 B

. 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

 D
, 
b
e
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
 m

in
d
 o

u
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 

u
n
re

a
lis

ti
c
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 i
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r

E
1
7

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 

p
u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

2

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
3
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

6
3
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

7
5
.9

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

A
7
4
.9

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
A

E
1
8

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 

3
0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
6
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

7
0
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

 L
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

8
0
.8

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

6
4
.1

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
H

R

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 G

a
p
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 p

u
p
il 

g
ro

u
p
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

is
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 i
s
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
H

S
IP

).
 T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 E

S
S

O
 

a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t.
 

E
1
9

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e
r 

B
la

c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
0
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

7
8
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
G

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

7
6
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

A
7
3
.5

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
A

E
2
0

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e
r 

W
h
it
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
0
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

6
7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

A
N

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

7
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

8
4
.6

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

G

E
2
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
4
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
. 

E
n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
6
5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

6
4
.6

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

A
6
2
.5

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

5
8
.4

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

6
5
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

A
6
3
.6

%
 (

2
0
1
1
-

1
2
)

↓
A

E
2
2

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
9
1
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

7
9
.3

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

7
4
.9

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

6
7
.7

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

8
2
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

A
8
1
.2

%
 (

2
0
1
1
-

1
2
)

↑
A

E
2
3

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l 

(C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
8
9
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

7
8
.5

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

7
6
.6

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

6
8
.5

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

7
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
G

7
9
.4

%
 (

2
0
1
1
-

1
2
)

↑
L

G

E
2
4

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 n

o
t 

re
a
c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 K

S
4
 f

lo
o

r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 u
n

d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

a
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 “

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
” 

if
 i
ts

 K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
:

• 
fe

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 4

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 (
K

S
4
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 A

*-
C

 (
o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

) 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
; 
a
n
d

• 
b
e
lo

w
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 %

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
4
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 (

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
 =

 7
0
%

);
 a

n
d

• 
b
e
lo

w
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 %

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
4
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 (

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
 =

 7
0
%

).
 

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
0

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

0

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
G

2
.7

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

6
.6

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

0

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

1

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
H

R

O
n
e
 h

ig
h
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
fe

ll 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
2
 K

S
4
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

n
o
t 
a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
a
tt
e
rn

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 
fa

r 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

. 
T

h
e
 L

A
 h

a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
 a

n
d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

u
t 
a
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
 D

fE
 O

p
e
n
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ie
s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
is

 a
ls

o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l.

E
2
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
4
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

B
a
c
c
a
la

u
re

a
te

 (
G

C
S

E
s
/i
G

C
S

E
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
, 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
, 
a
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

 h
u
m

a
n
it
ie

s
 s

u
b
je

c
t.
)

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

2
3
.7

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

-
2
1
.8

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

1
6
.1

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

2
5
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

2
1
.8

%
 (

2
0
1
1
-

1
2
)

↓
H

R

H
a
rr

o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 w
e
ll 

(2
5
th

) 
o
n
 t
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
T

h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 a

 v
e
ry

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 p

o
in

t.
 A

s
 t
h
e
 1

6
-1

9
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
S

tu
d
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
s
 t
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 

2
0
1
/0

7
/1

3

92



2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

R
e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
N

 A
V

G

2
0
1
2
/1

3

E
n

g
la

n
d

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

H
a
rr

o
w

 

ta
rg

e
t 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
3
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

H
a
rr

o
w

 

a
c
tu

a
l 
Q

4
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

Q
4
 R

A
G

 

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

E
2
6

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
* 

to
 C

 

g
ra

d
e
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
2
5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

2
6
.7

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

L
R

2
1
.9

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

2
6
.4

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

2
1
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

2
8
.8

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
H

R

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 G

a
p
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 p

u
p
il 

g
ro

u
p
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

is
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 i
s
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 E

S
S

O
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

in
g
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

a
s
p
e
c
t.

E
2
7

T
h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 (

S
E

N
)/

n
o
n
-S

E
N

 g
a
p
 –

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

5
 A

*-
 C

 G
C

S
E

 i
n
c
. 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t

5
1
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

-
4
5
.1

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

4
7
.0

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

4
5
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

A
4
6
.3

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
A

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 G

a
p
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 p

u
p
il 

g
ro

u
p
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

is
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 i
s
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 E

S
S

O
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

in
g
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

a
s
p
e
c
t.

E
2
8

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 

p
u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
3
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

4
8
.2

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

5
9
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

L
R

5
3
.4

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

↑
L

R
H

a
rr

o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 

E
S

S
O

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

in
g
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t.

E
2
9

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri
b
b
e
a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 

3
0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
6
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

5
5
.6

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

6
3
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

4
9
.6

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

↓
H

R
H

a
rr

o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 

E
S

S
O

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

in
g
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t.

E
3
0

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e
r 

B
la

c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
7
0
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

5
7
.4

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

5
3
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

4
4
.7

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

↓
H

R
H

a
rr

o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 E

P
T

 a
n
d
 

E
S

S
O

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 o
n
 a

 d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
d
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

in
g
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 a
s
p
e
c
t.

E
3
1

%
 A

n
y
 O

th
e
r 

W
h
it
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

A
n
n
u
a
l

�
6
2
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

5
5
.1

%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
R

N
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

N
o
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

6
8
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
R

5
7
.8

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

↓
H

R

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 G

a
p
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 p

u
p
il 

g
ro

u
p
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

is
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
. 
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a
p
 i
s
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 .
 H

a
rr

o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 g

re
a
te

r 

a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

E
3
2

A
n
n
u
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
0
.1

5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

0
.0

7
%

 /
 

2
3

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

L
G

0
.0

7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

0
.0

7
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

B
e
lo

w
 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

A
c
tu

a
l

H
R

0
.1

0
%

 /
 3

3

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↓
H

R
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 t
o
 0

.1
0
%

 (
3
3
) 

fr
o
m

 0
.0

7
%

 

(2
3
) 

in
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
.

E
3
3

A
n
n
u
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
F

ix
e
d
 T

e
rm

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 %

 H
a
rr

o
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
3
.8

5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

3
.6

6
%

/1
1

4
3

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

H
G

3
.7

4
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

4
.3

4
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

B
e
lo

w
 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

A
c
tu

a
l

H
G

3
.0

6
%

 /
 9

6
9

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

G
F

ix
e
d
 t
e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 (

9
6
9
 -

 3
.0

6
%

) 
a
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
5
 y

e
a
rs

.

E
3
4

A
n
n
u
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
-

5
.1

5
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

-
-

-
5
.4

%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

4
.5

7
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

G

E
3
5

A
n
n
u
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

A
n
n
u
a
l

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
c
o
re

c
a
rd

)

�
-

5
.9

3
%

(2
0
1
0
-1

1
)

-
-

-
6
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

H
G

5
.3

2
%

(2
0
1
1
-1

2
)

↑
H

G

↑ ↓ ↔ H
R

L
R A L
G

H
G

G
o

o
d

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n

t 

R
A

G
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 N

e
e
d

s
 p

ro
m

p
t 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n

P
o

o
r

A
d

e
q

u
a
te

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l:
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 t
h
e
 

3
0
1
/0

7
/1

3

93



94

This page is intentionally left blank



 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

4
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 -
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
o

re
c
a
rd

R
e

f 
N

o

P
re

v

. 
N

I 

R
e

f:

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

H
a

rr
o

w
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

(P
ro

v
)

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
3

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 Q

4

T
S

 1
%

 o
f 

N
e

w
 C

a
s
e

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 

e
p

is
o

d
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

w
it
h

in
 2

4
 h

rs

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
6

6
%

H
G

7
0

%
6

3
.6

6
1

.6
0

%
H

R
H

R
↓ ↓↓↓

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 d

ro
p

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 6
5

%
, 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
e

in
g

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

A
c

ti
o

n
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 T
e

a
m

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

h
a

s
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 

re
c

e
n

t 
m

o
n

th
s

T
S

 2
In

it
ia

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 1

0
 d

a
y
s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

�
7

1
%

H
R

8
5

4
3

.2
5

1
.9

H
R

H
R

↑ ↑↑↑

T
S

 3
6

0
(P

A
F

 C
6

4
) 

T
im

in
g

 o
f 

C
o

re
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

N
I 

6
0

)
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
8

4
%

L
G

8
3

6
3

.7
6

5
.8

H
R

H
R

↑ ↑↑↑

T
S

 4
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 a
n

 I
n

it
ia

l 
C

P
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 1

5
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

�

8
8

.2
4

%

A
9

0
8

3
.5

0
7

9
.2

0
H

R
H

R
↓ ↓↓↓

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
a

in
ly

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
. 

 

L
a

te
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
 s

ib
lin

g
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
7

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 

in
d

ic
a

to
r 

th
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

A
c

ti
o

n
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 T
e

a
m

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 

T
S

 5
N

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

(C
P

P
) 

fo
r 

o
v
e

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
1

2
H

G

1
4

 (
Q

1
) 

  
1

2
 (

Q
2

) 
  

1
0

 (
Q

3
) 

 

 8
 (

Q
4

)

1
0

6
L

G
H

G
↑ ↑↑↑

M
a

jo
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 p

e
a

k
 o

f 
3

0
 c

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

. 
 C

P
 t

e
a

m
s
 a

re
 

n
o

w
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 w

it
h

in
 

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
.

T
S

 6
6

7
 (

B
V

 1
6

2
 P

A
F

 C
2

0
) 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

c
a

s
e

s
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
1

0
0

%
L

G
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
L

G
L

G
↔

A
ll 

re
v
ie

w
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
im

e

T
S

 7
6

4
(P

A
F

 C
2

1
) 

D
u

ra
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 

R
e

g
is

te
r

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

↔ ↔↔↔
1

8
%

H
R

1
2

1
2

.3
1

1
.2

L
G

H
G

↑ ↑↑↑

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
In

it
ia

l 
&

 C
o

re
 A

s
s
e

s
s
e

n
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r,

 7
8

%
 o

f 
In

it
ia

l 
&

 8
1

%
 

o
f 

C
o

re
 a

s
s
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 

m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 a

 S
in

g
le

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
 f

ro
m

 1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
v
is

e
d

 W
o

rk
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

A
c

ti
o

n
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 T
e

a
m

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 S

e
c

o
n

d
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
h

a
s

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 r

e
c

e
n

t 
m

o
n

th
s

. 
 R

e
c

ru
it

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 s

o
c

ia
l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

tr
a

n
s

fe
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 

to
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

.

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
4

95



 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

4
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 -
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
o

re
c
a
rd

R
e

f 
N

o

P
re

v

. 
N

I 

R
e

f:

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

H
a

rr
o

w
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

(P
ro

v
)

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
3

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 Q

4

T
S

 8
6

5
(P

A
F

 A
3

) 
R

e
p

e
a

t 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

e
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 (

C
P

P
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

↔ ↔↔↔
1

4
%

H
R

1
0

1
0

.2
1

1
.7

L
G

H
R

↓ ↓↓↓
S

lig
h

tl
y
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 2

0
1

1
-1

2
, 

1
7

 

o
u

t 
o

f 
1

4
5

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
w

 C
P

P
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 h
a

d
 a

 

C
P

P

T
S

 9
6

6
(P

A
F

 C
6

8
) 

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
L

o
o

k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
9

9
%

A
1

0
0

%
9

5
.5

9
1

.3
A

L
R

↓ ↓↓↓

A
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 w

e
re

 l
a

te
 i
n

 Q
3

 b
u

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

to
 b

e
 o

n
 t

im
e

. 
1

4
6

 o
u

t 
o

f 
1

6
0

 c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 h

a
d

 a
ll 

th
e

ir
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
 Y

T
D

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 D

a
ta

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 &
  

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 t
a

k
e

n
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 o

n
c
e

 t
h

e
s
e

  
h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

T
S

 1
0

P
A

F
 C

6
3

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

L
A

 i
n

 R
e

v
ie

w
s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

�
9

2
.4

4
%

A
9

5
9

5
9

2
.8

L
G

A
↓ ↓↓↓

T
S

 1
1

1
4

7
C

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

(5
0

3
7

S
C

)
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
7

3
%

H
R

8
8

6
3

.2
7

5
.0

H
R

H
R

↑ ↑↑↑

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t/
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
4

 o
f 

3
2

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
. 

 7
 

a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 (
3

 a
re

 d
e

p
o

rt
e

d
),

 O
f 

th
o

s
e

 2
5

 

th
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

, 
2

4
 a

re
 i
n

 s
u

ta
b

le
 a

c
c
o

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 1
 

Y
P

 i
s
 i
n

 c
u

s
to

d
y
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 &
  

le
a

d
in

g
 o

n
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 r

is
k

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
ra

n
s

it
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 

le
a

v
e

rs

T
S

 1
2

1
4

8
C

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 

tr
a

in
in

g
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
3

2
%

H
R

7
5

4
7

.4
4

3
.8

H
R

H
R

↓ ↓↓↓

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 -
  

1
4

 o
f 

3
2

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 
O

f 
th

e
 1

8
 N

E
E

T
, 

 7
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

w
it
h

 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

3
 d

e
p

o
rt

e
d

) 
, 

9
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
, 

1
 i
s
 a

 f
u

ll 
ti
m

e
 m

u
m

  
a

n
d

 1
 

in
 c

u
s
to

d
y
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

n
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 E
a

rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
&

 T
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 X
-1

6
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
M

y
 B

a
n

k
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 -

a
 n

 a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

, 
m

e
n

to
ri
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 l
if
e

 s
k
ill

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
a

ll 
th

e
s
e

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 

s
k
ill

 u
p

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 d
id

 n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 A
* 

to
 C

 

G
C

S
E

's
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 Y

o
u

th
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
. 
T

h
e

 L
e

a
v

in
g

 

C
a

re
 t

e
a

m
 i

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
s

it
io

n
 -

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

e
rs

 a
d

v
is

o
r 

a
d

v
is

e
s

 N
E

E
T

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 

o
p

ti
o

n
s

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le

T
S

 1
3

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
(P

A
F

 C
1

9
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

�
9

2
%

A
9

5
8

2
.3

9
2

.6
H

R
A

↑ ↑↑↑

T
S

 1
4

In
it
ia

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 5

 

d
a

y
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
N

e
w

tb
c

3
2

.3
H

R

T
S

 1
5

In
it
ia

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 

2
8

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
N

e
w

tb
c

2
5

.8
H

R

C
L

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 N

H
S

 H
a

rr
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
C

L
A

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

L
A

 N
u

rs
e

. 
A

 n
e

w
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 a

n
d

 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

IH
A

s
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 u

p

T
h

e
 C

L
A

 N
u

rs
e

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

e
 

s
ta

ff
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

o
o

r,
 t

h
e

 C
L

A
 N

u
rs

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 

to
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 

 I
n

 Q
4

, 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

fo
r 

1
0

 o
u

t 
o

f 
3

1
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 5

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 

b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r.
  

8
 o

u
t 

o
f 

 3
1

 n
e

w
 c

h
ild

re
n

  
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
 

h
a

d
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 2

8
 d

a
y
s

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
4

96



 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

4
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 -
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
o

re
c
a
rd

R
e

f 
N

o

P
re

v

. 
N

I 

R
e

f:

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

H
a

rr
o

w
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

(P
ro

v
)

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
3

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 Q

4

T
S

 1
6

 %
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
in

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
2

1
%

A
2

0
1

5
.3

1
5

.9
H

G
H

G
↑ ↑↑↑

T
S

 1
7

B
V

 1
6

3
 P

A
F

 C
2

3
 A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

↔ ↔↔↔
1

0
%

H
R

3
.5

 (
Q

1
) 

 7
(Q

2
) 

  

1
0

.5
 (

Q
3

) 
 

 1
4

 (
Q

4
)

8
.4

8
.2

H
R

H
R

↔

6
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
re

 i
n

 a
d

o
p

ti
v
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
8

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

e
re

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 

a
n

d
 2

 S
G

O
's

 g
ra

n
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

, 
d

e
la

y
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
u

rt
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

in
g

s
 m

e
a

n
t 

s
o

m
e

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
fi
n

a
lis

e
d

 

in
 2

0
1

2
-1

3

T
S

 1
8

6
1

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

L
A

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

�
8

3
%

H
G

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

H
G

H
G

↔
A

ll 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
.

T
S

 1
9

P
A

F
 C

2
4

 C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
(1

 y
e

a
r+

)m
is

s
in

g
  

 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
5

 d
a

y
s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

1
9

%
H

R

0
%

 (
Q

2
)

4
%

 (
Q

3
)

8
%

 (
Q

4
) 

  

1
2

%
 (

Q
1

) 
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 

y
r

5
.5

1
0

.6
H

R
H

R
↓ ↓↓↓

T
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

e
a

rs
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

,t
h

is
 i
s
 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
a

n
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 

s
o

m
e

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

in
 y

e
a

rs
 1

0
 a

n
d

 1
1

. 
In

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 9

/2
3

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 -

 

V
ir
tu

a
l 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
d

ir
e

c
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 

in
 f

o
u

r 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
,a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 .
 5

 c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
v
e

 m
is

s
e

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
5

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l.
 

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 w

it
h

 H
S

IP
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 v

ir
tu

a
l 

s
c

h
o

o
l 

a
n

d
 

e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
L

A

T
S

 2
0

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

b
s
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 C
L

A
, 

in
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
1

5
.6

%
H

R
1

2
7

.6
8

.4
H

G
H

G
↓ ↓↓↓

T
S

 2
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
w

it
h

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 

C
h

ild
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r,
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
0

%
L

G
0

0
.0

0
.0

H
G

H
G

↔

T
S

 2
2

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

C
L

A
 w

it
h

 f
ix

e
d

 t
e

rm
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 C
L

A
, 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
1
7
.6
4
%

H
R

1
5

%
 (

Q
1

) 
  

1
%

 (
Q

2
) 

  
  

5
%

 (
Q

3
) 

1
0

%
(Q

4
) 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n

 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 

y
r

2
.7

8
.5

H
G

H
R

↓ ↓↓↓

D
ro

p
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
u

t 
a

 h
u

g
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

3
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

d
 a

 f
ix

e
d

 t
e

rm
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
is

 

a
c
e

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

d
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 d
ro

p
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
Y

T
D

 7
 o

u
t 

o
f 

8
2

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 C
L

A
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 a

tl
e

a
s
t 

o
n

e
 f

ix
e

d
 t

e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 w

it
h

 H
S

IP
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 v

ir
tu

a
l 

s
c

h
o

o
l 

a
n

d
 

e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
L

A

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
4

97



 2
0
1
2
-1

3
 Q

4
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 -
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
o

re
c
a
rd

R
e

f 
N

o

P
re

v

. 
N

I 

R
e

f:

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

P
o

la
ri

ty

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

R
A

G
 

S
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

H
a

rr
o

w
 

T
a

rg
e

t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

3
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

H
a

rr
o

w
 

a
c

tu
a

l 
Q

4
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

(P
ro

v
)

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
3

R
A

G
 

s
ta

tu
s

 Q
4

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e

l
C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 Q

4

T
S

 2
3

6
2

(B
V

4
9

) 
P

A
F

 A
1

 S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
P

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

C
L

A
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
1

6
.2

3
%

H
R

2
 (

Q
1

) 

  
4

(Q
2

) 
  

6
 (

Q
3

) 
 

 1
1

 (
Q

4
)

9
.8

1
2

.4
H

R
H

R
↓ ↓↓↓

2
1

 o
f 

1
7

0
 C

L
A

 h
a

d
 h

a
d

 3
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 d

a
ta

 c
le

a
n

in
g

. 
A

c
ti

o
n

 i
s

 b
e

in
g

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 b

o
th

 s
h

o
rt

 

a
n

d
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

b
il

it
y

 -
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

in
g

 

re
a

s
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 f
o

re
n

s
ic

 e
x

a
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c

h
il

d
re

n
. 

T
h

e
 D

D
 T

S
D

 h
a

s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 a
 P

a
n

e
l 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 

b
e

 c
h

a
ir

in
g

 t
o

 s
c

ru
ti

n
is

e
 a

ll
 p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
m

o
v

e
s

 f
o

r 

a
u

th
o

ri
s

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
y

 a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

T
S

 2
4

6
3

P
A

F
 D

7
8

 L
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

ta
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

C
L

A
 (

2
.5

 y
e

a
rs

) 

(N
I 

6
3

)
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

�
7

1
%

H
G

7
1

%
6

0
.0

5
8

.8
H

R
H

R
↓ ↓↓↓

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 d

ro
p

p
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 

s
m

a
ll 

c
o

h
o

rt
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 c

a
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
 b

ig
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

1
0

 o
u

t 
o

f 
1

7
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
fo

r 
2

.5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

2
 y

e
a

rs
. 

A
 s

ib
lin

g
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 
3

  

e
n

te
re

d
 t

h
is

 c
o

h
o

rt
  

in
 Q

2
 w

h
o

  
h

a
d

 a
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

m
o

v
e

 a
s
 t

h
e

re
 

w
a

s
 a

 C
P

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

 w
h

ic
h

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

rr
a

n
te

d
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

 T
h

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

fo
s
te

r 
p

la
c
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
c
y
 P

a
n

e
l 
a

s
 t

h
e

ir
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
y
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

o
v
e

s
.

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 -
 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 /
 e

a
rl

y
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
a

c
k

a
g

e
s

 t
o

 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

b
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 .
 A

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

 P
a

n
e

l 

g
a

te
k

e
e

p
in

g
 a

ll
 p

o
s

s
ib

le
 m

o
v

e
s

T
S

 2
5

N
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 w

h
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 d
ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

(C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

S
c
o

re
c
a

rd
)

�
8

4
H

G
1

0
5

1
2

8
H

G
↑ ↑↑↑

P
o

o
r

A
d

e
q

u
a

te

G
o

o
d

E
x

c
e

ll
e

n
t 

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v

e
l:

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
d

a
ta

 i
n

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
te

d

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

R
A

G
 S

T
A

T
U

S
 

N
e

e
d

s
 p

ro
m

p
t 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
4

98


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 23/04/2013 Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee

	8 Chair's Report
	Appendix A - PF briefing - notes - 17-06-13 DRAFT
	Appendix B - PIs to monitor Q4 2012-13 17-06-13 DRAFT
	Q4 Quarterly Corporate Scorecard 2012-13 v1_PF
	Annual Corporate Scorecard 2012-13 v1_PF

	9 Revenue and Capital Outturn 2012-13
	10 Progress Report on Scrutiny Review of Private rented sector housing in Harrow
	Action plan progress 26 05 2013 v5 FINAL

	11 Children and Families Performance
	Education Scorecard Q4 12-13
	CS 2012-13 Q4 Scorecard


